
 
 A meeting of the CABINET will be held in THE AQUARIUS SUITE, 

ONE LEISURE ST IVES INDOOR, WESTWOOD ROAD, ST IVES, 
PE27 6WU on THURSDAY, 16 JUNE 2016 at 7:00 PM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 

 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 
May 2016. 
 

M Sage 
388169 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary 
and other interests in relation to any Agenda item. 
 

 

3. REVIEW OF THE OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE OF 
ORPHAN SITES  (Pages 9 - 22) 

 

 

 To consider the proposals for future ownership and maintenance of 
the orphan sites that the Council currently maintains but does not 
own. 
 

A Merrick 
388635 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT  (Pages 23 - 44) 
 

 

 To review the Corporate Risk Register and consider if any further 
risks should be included.   
 

D Harwood 
388115 

5. HUNTINGDONSHIRE LOCAL PLAN TO 2036 QUARTERLY 
UPDATE AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING UPDATE  (Pages 
45 - 52) 

 

 

 To provide an update on preparation of submission of the 
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 and its supporting evidence base 
and to agree the approach regarding the revalidated Cambridge Sub-
Regional Model for the Strategic Transport Study.  
 

C Bond 
388435 

6. INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT, 2015/16 QUARTER 4 
(INCLUDING THE PROVISIONAL OUTTURN FOR 2015/16)  
(Pages 53 - 108) 

 

 

 To receive performance management information on the Council’s 
Corporate Plan for 2015/16 and updates on current projects, 
including the Provisional Outturn for 2015/16. 
 
 
 

D Buckridge 
388065 
L Lock 
388086 
G Oliver 
388604 



 
7. SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP  (Pages 109 - 112) 
 

 

 To consider revisions to the Council’s approach to the management 
of health and safety at work and the Safety Advisory Group. 
 

C Stopford 
388280 

8. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16  (Pages 
113 - 130) 

 

 

 To report on the performance of the Treasury Management activity 
over the past financial year. 
 

C Mason 
388157 

O Colbert 
388067 

9. 3C EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BUSINESS PLANS  (Pages 131 - 160) 
 

 

 To consider and approve the Executive Summaries of the business 
plans for the ICT, Legal and Building Control Shared Services for the 
period 2016/17. 
 

J Slatter 
388301 

10. CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH DEVOLUTION DEAL  
(Pages 161 - 164) 

 

 

 To consider a report and agree that the Cabinet will not exercise its 
executive powers to determine the Council’s position regarding the 
devolution deal. 
 

J Lancaster 
388001 

   
 Dated this 8 day of June 2016  

  

 
 Head of Paid Service 

 
Notes 
 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
 (1) Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and unless you 

have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the matter at the meeting and 
must also leave the room whilst the matter is being debated or voted on. 

 
 (2) A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it - 
 
  (a) relates to you, or 
  (b) is an interest of - 
 
   (i) your spouse or civil partner; or 
   (ii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or 
   (iii) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners 
 
  and you are aware that the other person has the interest. 
 
 (3) Disclosable pecuniary interests includes - 
 
  (a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain; 
  (b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses incurred carrying 

out his or her duties as a Member (except from the Council); 
  (c) any current contracts with the Council; 
  (d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area; 
  (e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area; 



 
  (f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person in (2)(b) above) 

has a beneficial interest; or 
  (g) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any body which has a 

place of business or land in the Council's area. 
 
 Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests 
 
 (4) If a Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest then you are required to declare that 

interest, but may remain to discuss and vote providing you do not breach the overall 
Nolan principles. 

 
 (5) A Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest where - 
 

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably be regarded 
as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a member of your family or a 
person with whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect 
the majority of the council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's 
administrative area, or 

 (b) it relates to or is likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest, but in respect of a 
member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) above) or a person with whom 
you have a close association, or 

 (c) it relates to or is likely to affect any body – 
 

   (i) exercising functions of a public nature; or 
   (ii) directed to charitable purposes; or 

   (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
(including any political party or trade union) of which you are a Member or in a 
position of control or management. 

 
  and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 
2. Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings 
    
 The District Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision 

making and permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are 
open to the public.  It also welcomes the use of social networking and micro-blogging 
websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with people about what is 
happening at meetings.  Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with 
guidelines agreed by the Council and available via the following link filming,photography-and-
recording-at-council-meetings.pdf or on request from the Democratic Services Team.  The 
Council understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to 
be filmed.  The Chairman of the meeting will facilitate this preference by ensuring that any 
such request not to be recorded is respected.  

 

Please contact Mrs Melanie Sage, Democratic Services Team, Tel No. 01480 388169/e-
mail Melanie.Sage@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  if you have a general query on any 
Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would 
like information on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 
 
 
 

http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf


 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or 
would like a large text version or an audio version please 

contact the Elections & Democratic Services Manager and 
we will try to accommodate your needs. 

 
 

Emergency Procedure 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 

 
 



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Civic Suite, 

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on 
Wednesday, 18 May 2016. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor R B Howe – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors D Brown, R C Carter, S Cawley, 

S Criswell, J A Gray, R Harrison, J M Palmer 
and D M Tysoe. 

   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillor G J Bull. 
 
 

1. MINUTES   
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2016 were approved as a 

correct record and signed by the Chairman.   
 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary or other interests 

received at the meeting.  
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
a) That the executive responsibilities for the Municipal Year 

2016/17 be allocated as follows: 
 

Strategic Partnerships and Shared 
Services 

Councillor D Brown 

Planning Policy, Housing and 
Infrastructure 

Councillor G J Bull 

Environment, Street Scene and 
Operations 

Councillor R C Carter 

Organisation and Customer 
Services 

Councillor S Cawley 

Community Resilience Councillor S Criswell 

Strategic Resources  Councillor J A Gray 

Business, Enterprise and Skills  Councillor R Harrison 

Leisure and Health  Councillor J M Palmer 

Operational Resources Councillor D M Tysoe 

 

5

Agenda Item 1



 
b) that the Executive Leader of the Council be appointed to serve 

as an ex-officio Member of the Employment Committee; and 
 

c) that Executive Councillors be appointed to serve as ex-officio 
Members of the following: 

 

Executive Councillor for 
Planning Policy, Housing and 
Infrastructure 

Development 
Management Committee 

Executive Councillor for 
Community Resilience  

Licensing and Protection 
Panel/ Licensing 
Committee. 

  
 

4. HINCHINGBROOKE COUNTRY PARK JOINT GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

  
that Councillors R C Carter, J P Morris, T D Sanderson and  
R J West be appointed to serve on the Hinchingbrooke 
Country Park Joint Group for the ensuing Municipal Year.  

 

5. DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICY ADVISORY GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors P L E Bucknell, G J Bull, E R Butler, Mrs S J 
Conboy, D B Dew, I D Gardener and R G Tuplin be appointed 
to serve on the Development Plan Policy Advisory Group for 
the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 

6. MEMBER DEVELOPMENT WORKING GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors G J Bull, S Cawley, Mrs S J Conboy, Mrs R E 
Mathews, R G Tuplin and R J West be appointed to serve on 
the Member Development Working Group for the ensuing 
Municipal Year. 

 

7. SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors Mrs B Boddington, J W Davies, Mrs P A 
Jordan and Mrs R E Mathews be appointed to serve on the 
Safety Advisory Group for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
There remained one Independent vacancy. 
 
 
 
 

6



8. ONE LEISURE HUNTINGDON SPORTS CENTRE JOINT 
COMMITTEE   

 
 RESOLVED 

 
that Councillors J P Morris, J M Palmer and T D Sanderson be 
appointed to serve on the One Leisure Huntingdon Sports 
Centre Joint Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 

9. SHARED SERVICES JOINT GROUP   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that the Executive Leader be appointed to serve on the 
Shared Services Joint Group for the ensuing Municipal Year, 
as per the Terms of Reference agreed by the Cabinet at the 
meeting on 21 April 2016. 

 

10. HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL GROWTH AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE THEMATIC GROUP   

 
 RESOLVED 

 
i. that Councillors E R Butler, Mrs S J Conboy and  D B Dew be 

appointed to serve on the Huntingdonshire District Council 
Growth and Infrastructure Thematic Group for the ensuing 
Municipal Year; and 

 
ii. that the Executive Councillor for Planning Policy, Housing and 

Infrastructure (formerly Strategic Planning and Housing) be 
appointed to serve as an ex-officio Member as Chairman of 
the Group.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Public 
Key Decision - Yes 
 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Review of the Ownership and Maintenance of Orphan Sites 
 
Meeting/Date: Corporate Management Team – 9th May 2016 
 Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Communities and 

Environment) – 7th June 2016 
Cabinet – 16th June 2016 

  
Executive Portfolio: Councillor Robin Carter – Executive Councillor for 

Environment, Street Scene and Operations 
 
Report by: Alistair Merrick – Interim Head of Operations 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

 
Executive Summary:  
 
1. There are 240 sites that are maintained by the Operations Service at a cost 

to the Council that are not in the Council’s ownership. This is a historic 
anomaly and the sites are termed orphan sites. The review of all grounds 
maintenance regimes and costs has highlighted that there are not 
insubstantial costs associated with the maintenance of these orphan sites. 

 
2. With the support of the former Legal and Estates Support Assistant the 

ownership details of all of these sites has been reviewed in order to transfer 
the maintenance responsibilities to the rightful landowner. 

 
3. In summary the following action is being recommended in respect to the 240 

orphan sites: 
 

a) Maintenance activities would cease on all 60 privately owned sites and 
the one utility company site and to be effective as of 31 July 2016. 

b) The County Council have already been advised of the need to adopt the 
66 sites identified to be part of the Highway under their statutory function 
as the Highway Authority. The costs of maintaining these sites will then 
be included in the negotiations already taking place with the County on 
maintenance costs going forward.  

c) The additional costs of maintaining the 23 Luminus sites will be directly 
recharged to Luminus for 2016/17. 

d) Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) should adopt 42 of the orphan 
sites and continue with the maintenance of these sites because the 
review has confirmed these sites to be appropriate for this Council to own. 

e) Further review work should be carried out of the 23 sites yet to have their 
ownership determined. 

 
 
 
 

 

9

Agenda Item 3



Recommendations: 
 

The Cabinet is recommended: 
 
to approve the proposed treatment of the categories of orphan sites in 
respect to future ownership and maintenance arrangements as detailed in 
paragraph 3.2 of the report. 

 
 

10



1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1 To outline the review work carried out on 240 orphan sites that the Council 

currently does not own but maintains at its own costs; and to set out 
proposals for future ownership and maintenance of these orphan sites. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 There are 240 sites that are maintained by the Operations Service at a cost to 

the Council that are not in the Council’s ownership. This is a historic anomaly 
arising from developments across the District and the sites are termed orphan 
sites. The review of all grounds maintenance regimes and costs has 
highlighted that there are not insubstantial costs associated with the 
maintenance of these orphan sites, circa £35,170 per annum. With the 
support of the former Legal and Estates Support Assistant the ownership 
details of all of these sites has been reviewed in order to transfer the 
maintenance responsibilities to the rightful landowner. Appendix 1 contains a 
schedule of the orphan sites categorised by Town and Parish Council. 

 
3. Analysis and Proposed Action 
 
3.1 Detailed in Table 1 below are the outcomes of the review work and the 

proposed course of action in respect to the different categories of site 
determined by the actual landowner of the sites. 

 

Identified 
ownership 
of site 

No. of 
sites 

Future 
maintenance 

Responsibility 
for 
maintenance 
costs 

Recommended action 

Developer/
privately 
owned 

60 Withdraw 
maintenance  

 Landowner Each landowner to be written to 
advise that Ground Maintenance 
activities on their site by HDC will 
cease from 31st July 2016 

Town and 
Parish 
Councils 

25 Withdraw 
maintenance 

Town and 
Parish Councils 

Sites to be identified to Town 
and Parish Councils for formal 
adoption with maintenance 
responsibility and costs 
transferring on 31st March 2017. 

Utility 
Companies 

1 Withdraw 
maintenance 

Utility 
companies 

Write to the utility company to 
advise that Ground Maintenance 
activities on their site by HDC will 
cease from 31st July 2016. 

County 
Council 

66 Continue 
maintenance 

CCC Sites to be added to the CCC 
schedule for maintenance and 
then included in the negotiations 
on future maintenance costs. 

Luminus 
Housing  

23 Continue 
maintenance 

Luminus 
Housing 

Sites to be identified to Luminus 
and added to their contract with 
an adjustment in the annual 
maintenance fee for 2016/17. 

HDC 
owned 

23 Continue 
maintenance 

HDC Formally adopt the sites, amend 
landownership records and 
continue maintenance. 

HDC 
interest – 
LSVT 

19 Continue 
maintenance 

HDC Formally adopt the sites, amend 
landownership records and 
continue maintenance. 

11



Further 
investigation 
required 

23 Continue 
maintenance 

HDC Continued investigation until 
landownership responsibility 
clarified for 2017/18. 

TOTAL 240       

 
3.2 In summary the following action is being recommended: 

 
a) Maintenance activities would cease on all 60 privately owned sites and 

the one utility company site and to be effective as of 31 July 2016. 
b) The County Council have already been advised of the need to adopt the 

66 sites identified to be part of the Highway under their statutory function 
as the Highway Authority. The costs of maintaining these sites will then be 
included in the negotiations already taking place with the County on 
maintenance costs going forward.  

c) The additional costs of maintaining the 23 Luminus sites will be directly 
recharged to Luminus for 2016/17. 

d) HDC should adopt 42 of the orphan sites and continue with the 
maintenance of these sites because the review has confirmed these sites 
to be appropriate for this Council to own. 

e) Further review work should be carried out of the 23 sites yet to have their 
ownership determined. 

 
4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
  
4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Communities and Environment) 

considered the Review of the Ownership and Maintenance of Orphan Sites at 
its meeting held on 7th June 2016. The Panel recommended that the Cabinet 
should agree to completing the recommend actions of the report in relation to 
the 240 orphan sites. 

 
4.2 In addition to the recommendation the Panel made the following comments: 
 

 Members expressed concern that resident’s concerns could be a 
secondary factor whilst the District Council, County Council and Parish 
Councils discuss how different segments of land should be 
maintained. 

 The Panel wanted to ensure that sites that should have been 
transferred over when the housing stock was transferred are retained 
by the District Council in order to protect the green space. 

 Members understand that it is difficult to recover costs for previous 
maintenance work but however would like reassurance that for any 
future maintenance work the costs are fully recovered. 

 The Panel wanted to ensure that where requested Members had maps 
of orphan sites for their ward. 

 
5. KEY IMPACTS/RISKS AND HOW THESE WILL BE ADDRESSED 
 
5.1 The proposed timeframes for the transfer of the orphan sites into new 

ownerships has been phased to allow for negotiations and specifically for the 
Town and Parish Councils to include for future maintenance costs in their 
budget setting for 2017/18. 

 
5.2 The privately owned sites may not be properly maintained going forward by 

their owners and to avoid criticism of this Council the Call Centre and Town 
and Parish Councils will be provided with the location plans and ownership 

12



details of these sites to enable them to properly deal with queries from 
residents. 

 
5.3 If this failure to maintain a privately owned site is adjacent to the Highway and 

it detrimentally impacts on the Highway this will be referred by the Operations 
Service to the County Council for enforcement action as the Highway 
Authority. 

 
6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
 
6.1 A project plan will be developed against the timeframes for the transfer of 

various categories of orphan sites to ensure that the proposed actions are 
implemented in accordance with the deadlines set. 

 
7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN 
 
7.1 The proposed action in respect to orphan sites will ensure that the Operations 

Service becomes more business-like and efficient in the way it delivers 
grounds maintenance services and focuses on the assets owned by this 
Council or on assets that the Operations Service is contracted to maintain. 

 
8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 The private landowners have already been written to with a request to confirm 

that they own specified sites and to confirm that they will undertake the 
maintenance of these sites going forward. Consequently the proposed action 
to cease maintenance of these sites from 31 July 2016 will not be without 
forewarning. 

 
8.2 Negotiations with the County Council are already on-going regarding their 

need to adopt the orphan sites that are part of the Highway and this includes 
future maintenance costs. 

 
8.3 The proposed deadline for transfer of ownership and maintenance 

responsibilities to the Town and Parish Councils allows substantial time for 
negotiations with these councils and for financial implications to be included in 
their budgets for 2017/18. 

 
8.4 Luminus will be advised of the 23 orphan sites that they need to adopt and 

the revised maintenance costs for the sites. The Operations Service will offer 
to undertake this work at market rates as an extension of the current service 
level agreement for grounds maintenance with Luminus. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
  
9.1 The proposed action reflects the legal review carried out of all the orphan 

sites and for the need for further review work in respect to the ownership of 
23 orphan sites. 

 
10. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10. 1 The proposed action is to address the current spend by this Council of 

£35,170 on the maintenance of orphan sites that it does not own; and it will 
contribute to the savings targets that the Operations Service has to make in 
accordance with approved ZBB proposals, £28,710. 

 

13



11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The support from the Legal Shared Service will be needed for the further 

review work required for 23 orphan sites.  
 
12. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
  
12.1 The proposed action resolves a long standing anomaly regarding the orphan 

sites and sets out clear proposals for their future ownership and maintenance 
that are sustainable within this Council’s medium term financial strategy. 

 
13. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 
 
13.1 None. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Alistair Merrick – Interim Head of Operations 
Tel No. 01480 388635 
 

14



Appendix 1: Schedule of Orphan Sites by Town & Parish Council 
 

PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

ALCONBURY Spinney Lane √   Owners: Alconbury Developments Ltd Private Ownership 

ALCONBURY 
WESTON 

Highfield Avenue √   Owners: Diamond Construction Co Ltd Private Ownership 

BRAMPTON Chestnut Close √   Owners: Mr Mrs SM Johnson Private Ownership 

BRAMPTON Chestnut Close √   Owners: Ms M Pawula &  Mr DE Neville Private Ownership 

BUCKDEN The Osiers   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

EATON FORD Brook Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Ouse Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Culloden Close   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

EATON FORD Brook Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Brook Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Mill Hill Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Mill Hill Road √   Owners: Wheatley Homes (PPE) Ltd Private Ownership 

EATON FORD Great North Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Culloden Close   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

EATON FORD St Neots Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD St Neots Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON FORD Culloden Place   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

EATON SOCON Alpha Drive √   No commercial interest NO INTEREST IN LAND – NO 
OWNERS 

EATON SOCON Knights Close √   Owners: Ms AM Williams & Mr C Brown Private Ownership 

EATON SOCON Great North Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

EATON SOCON Shakespeare Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Shakespeare Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

15



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

EATON SOCON Shakespeare Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Simpkin Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Colmworth Gardens √   Owners: Bedfordia Developments Ltd Private Ownership 

EATON SOCON Colmworth Gardens √   Owners: Bedfordia Developments Ltd Private Ownership 

EATON SOCON Duchess Close √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

EATON SOCON Beaver Close   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

EATON SOCON Viscount Court √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

EATON SOCON Roe  Green √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Elizabeth Court √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Elizabeth Court √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Fallow Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

EATON SOCON Fallow Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

EATON SOCON Fallow Drive √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EATON SOCON Fallow Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

EYNESBURY Hampden Way √   Owners: Mr SJ Sizer & Ms TAL Calliste Private Ownership 

EYNESBURY Berkley Court √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EYNESBURY Chestnut Grove √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

EYNESBURY Howitt’s Lane √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

EYNESBURY Hampden Way √   Or Private Ownership CCC 

EYNESBURY Hampden Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GODMANCHESTER The Avenue √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

GODMANCHESTER Windsor Road √   If not Parish then County Parish 

GODMANCHESTER Tudor Road √   If not Parish then County Parish 

GODMANCHESTER Tudor Road √   If not Parish then County Parish 

GODMANCHESTER The Avenue   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

GODMANCHESTER Saxon Close √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

GODMANCHESTER Saxon Close √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

16



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

GODMANCHESTER Saxon Close √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

GODMANCHESTER Lancaster Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GODMANCHESTER Stuart Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GODMANCHESTER Lancaster Way √   Belongs to County CCC 

GREAT PAXTON Towgood Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GREAT PAXTON Towgood Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GREAT 
STAUGHTON 

Beachampstead 
Road 

√   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

GREAT STUKELEY Moorfield Way √   Part of open space design NO INTEREST IN LAND – NO 
OWNERS 

HARTFORD Mill Road √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HARTFORD Prospero Way √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HARTFORD Falstaff  Way √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HARTFORD Nelson Road √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HARTFORD Main Street √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HARTFORD  Falstaff  Way √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HEMINGFORD 
GREY 

Gunnings Way √   Part of open space design CCC 

HEMINGFORD 
GREY 

Gunnings Way √   Part of open space design CCC 

HEMINGFORD 
GREY 

St Ives Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HEMINGFORD 
GREY 

St Ives Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HOLME Holmewood TBC TBC Further investigation – Estates Access to 
field? 

Query & Further Investigation  

HOUGHTON The Thicket TBC TBC Cannot locate the area on the system Query & Further Investigation  

HUNTINGDON Prospero Way √   Owners: Mr Mrs A L Potts Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Nelson Road √   Owners: Compton Construction Ltd Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Nelson Road √   Owners: Compton Construction Ltd Private Ownership 

17



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Nelson Road √   If not Parish then County Parish 

HUNTINGDON Nightingale Close √   If not Parish then County Parish 

HUNTINGDON Hardy Close √   Owners: R & J Eyre Construction Ltd Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON The Walks North TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

HUNTINGDON Essex Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Norfolk Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Essex Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Essex Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Norfolk Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Kent Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Kent Road √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Maple Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Maple Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Maple Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Sycamore Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON Moorhouse Drive √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

HUNTINGDON American Lane √   Near highway CCC 

HUNTINGDON Drivers Avenue √   Near highway CCC 

HUNTINGDON Alberta Crescent √   Near highway CCC 

HUNTINGDON Norfolk Road TBC TBC Cannot locate the area on the system Query & Further Investigation  

HUNTINGDON Norfolk Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Claytons Way TBC TBC Further investigation – Estates Query & Further Investigation  

HUNTINGDON Newnham Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Prospero Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Duncan  Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Falstaff Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Macbeth Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Prospero Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

18



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Falstaff Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Falstaff Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Macbeth Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Othello Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Othello Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Othello Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Oberon Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Veasey Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Nelson Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Buttsgrove Way √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

HUNTINGDON Nelson Road √   Owners: Compton Construction Ltd Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Walnut Tree Drive √   
Owners: Cotman Housing Association 
Ltd 

Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Prospero Way √   Owners: Federated Homes Ltd Private Ownership 

HUNTINGDON Sycamore Drive √   In Keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Sycamore Drive √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

HUNTINGDON Sallowbush Road TBC TBC Cannot locate the area on the system Query & Further Investigation  

HUNTINGDON Westbury Road √   
Footpath side County or FC Club 
HDC1549  

CCC 

HUNTINGDON  Mill Common TBC TBC Shrub Bed Estates to inspect Query & Further Investigation  

LITTLE PAXTON River Close √   No commercial interest Parish 

LITTLE PAXTON River Close √   If not Parish then County Parish 

NEEDINGWORTH Priory Road √   No commercial interest CCC 

NEEDINGWORTH Silver Lane √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

OFFORD D’ARCY 72-74 High Street √   No Commercial value CCC 

RAMSEY The Avenue √   No commercial interest 
NO INTEREST IN LAND – NO 
OWNERS 

RAMSEY Great Whyte √   Ramsey Drainage – Water Authority utilities 

RAMSEY Abbots Close TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

19



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

RAMSEY Abbots Close TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

RAMSEY Abbots Close TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

RAMSEY Abbots Close TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

SAWTRY Cromwell Way √   Check with s106 Agreement CCC 

SAWTRY Rockingham Road √   No commercial interest Parish 

SAWTRY Alwin Close √   No commercial interest 
NO INTEREST IN LAND – NO 
OWNERS 

SAWTRY Cromwell Way √   Owners: Colroy Homes Ltd Private Ownership 

SOMERSHAM Bishops Road √   Check with s106 Agreement CCC 

SOMERSHAM Parkhall Road √   Skate Park  Parish 

ST IVES Thorndown Close √   In keeping with layout of land Luminus 

ST IVES Little How   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Chaucer Way   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Chaucer Way   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Burns Way   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Dryden Close   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

20



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

ST IVES Shakespeare Road   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Hill Rise   √ Check claim with Luminus after LSVT & 
LR 

HDC INTEREST  
LUMINUS/LSVT - LR 

ST IVES Westwood Road √   Beside cemetery – Town Council own Parish 

ST IVES Westwood Road √   Beside cemetery – Town Council own Parish 

ST IVES The Waits √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

ST IVES Bure Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES California Road √   Owners: BPT Ltd Private Ownership 

ST IVES Wheatfields √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES Virginia Way √   Owners: BPT Ltd  Private Ownership 

ST IVES Lavender Way √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES Lavendar Way √   Or possibly the School CCC 

ST IVES Westwood Road √ TBC in keeping with layout of land TC 

ST IVES Bure Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES Bure Close √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES Westbury Road √   In Keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST IVES  Erica Road TBC TBC Possibly part of the houses Query & Further Investigation  

ST NEOTS Sandfields Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST NEOTS Sandfields Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST NEOTS Sandfields Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST NEOTS St Anselm Place TBC TBC Further investigation - Estates Query & Further Investigation  

ST NEOTS Kings Road √   Belongs to County CCC 

ST NEOTS Green End Road √   Belongs to County CCC 

ST NEOTS Green End Road √   Belongs to County CCC 

ST NEOTS Green End Road √   Belongs to County CCC 

ST NEOTS Springfield Close √   Belongs to County CCC 

ST NEOTS Mallard Lane √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

ST NEOTS Cambridge Road √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

21



PARISH/TOWN ADDRESS HDC - 
No 

HDC - 
Yes 

NOTES Recommendation for Future 
Ownership 

ST NEOTS Cambridge Road TBC TBC Cannot locate the area on the system Query & Further Investigation  

ST NEOTS Green End Road √   Belongs to County CCC 

WARBORS Goldpits √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

WARBOYS Goldpits √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

WARBOYS Goldpits √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

WARBOYS Goldpits √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

WARBOYS Goldpits √   In keeping with layout of land CCC 

WARBOYS Flaxen Walk √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

WARBOYS School Road √   In keeping with layout of land Parish 

 
 

22



Public 
Key Decision – No 

 
 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Risk Management  
 
Meeting/Date: Cabinet – 16 June 2016 
  
Executive Portfolio: Strategic Resources: Councillor J A Gray (Deputy Executive 

Leader) 
 
Report by: Internal Audit & Risk Manager  
 
Ward(s) affected: All Wards 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
This is the first report the Cabinet have received on risk management and the contents 
of the Council’s risk register. Reports were previously submitted to the Corporate 
Governance Committee.  
 
The risk register is reviewed frequently by Heads of Service to ensure that it remains fit 
for purpose and captures the significant risks to the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives.  
 
The report details the contents of the risk register as at 24 May 2016.  It focuses in the 
main on corporate risks and the corporate risk register is attached for review. 
 
The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high 
or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they 
should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This report 
provides information in respect of the one ‘red’ risk that currently falls into this category.  
 
There are currently no financial implications arising from this report, however some 
costs may be incurred if it is decided that further risk mitigation should be introduced.  
 
The Cabinet is  
 
RECOMMENDED 
 

1. To review and scrutinise the corporate risk register and then consider what, if 
any, further risks should be included in it; and  

2. Decide whether it requires further action to be taken to mitigate risk 58.  

23

Agenda Item 4



 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides Cabinet with information about the current risks in the risk 

register. It concentrates mainly on corporate risks – that is those risks that 
may be potentially damaging to the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been 

developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. 
Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported 
regularly to the Corporate Governance Committee (CGC). Council have 
decided that responsibility for oversight of the risk management process 
should rest with the Cabinet rather than the CGC.   

 
2.2 The risk management strategy requires Cabinet to receive reports on the 

management of risk and decide upon the action to be taken for all mitigated 
risks that exceed the Council’s risk appetite or have the potential to harm its 
reputation or the continuity of services.  

 
3. ANALYSIS 

 
3.1 Risks contained within the register are in the main identified by Heads of 

Service and Team Managers and reflect the risks associated with the delivery 
of the themes and aims contained in the Corporate Plan and individual Service 
Plans.  

 
3.2 The total number of corporate and operational risks and their ‘risk scores’ (the 

sum of likelihood and impact) at both the inherent (without controls) and 
residual (with controls) levels are summarised in Appendix 1 and 2.  The full 
corporate risk register is attached at Appendix 3.  

 
3.3 The risk management strategy approved by Cabinet in July 2015 introduced 

differing risk appetite levels for key areas of the business. The appetite levels 
have been applied to all of the risks in the register. Appendix 4 plots the 
corporate risks against each risk appetite level.  

 
Corporate risks: likely to affect the medium to longer term priorities of the 
Council . 
 

3.4 In respect of corporate risks, there is one risk – risk 40 (that refers to planning 
policy being insufficient to meet government requirements) that exceeds its 
risk appetite level. As per the risk management strategy this risk has been 
reviewed by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and accepted.   
    

 In addition there is one very high (‘red’) corporate residual risk, risk 239 that 
relates to the Huntingdon town centre redevelopment. This risk has been 
classified as a transformational risk which the risk management strategy 
states can be accepted so long as the benefits and risks were properly 
assessed and accepted before the redevelopment progressed.    
 
Operational risks: risks that are encountered in the day-to-day provision of 
services. 

 
3.5  There is one operational very high (‘red’) risk, risk 58, that refers to information 

security and information use.  The risk owner is of the view that the loss of IT 
services is the key risk that needs to be addressed. A number of systems 

24



have been successfully tested and recovered back to their ‘live’ state since 
December 2014. With the introduction of the IT shared service, this 
programme needs to be extended to cover all systems. Once that has been 
done it is considered that the inherent risk score will reduce to high (amber). It 
is not proposed that any further risk mitigation be introduced at this time. (see 
Appendix 5).  

 
3.6 There are 14 operational risks that exceed their risk appetite category levels. 

All of these have been considered by CMT and been accepted.  
 

Risk Description Risk category 
   
 15 IT security is breached Compliance & Regulation 
 192 Loss of vehicle operating licence  
 209 Inaccurate management information   
   
 14 Staff involved in accidents Health & Safety 
 17 A member of the public is injured   
 20 Closure of One Leisure site due to incident or 

accident 
 

 22 Ineffective Safeguarding procedures   
 31 Bailiffs are subject to violence and injured  
 32 Poor site security at Eastfield House  
 57 Plant and equipment used by staff is not 

properly maintained 
 

 186 Assets used by the public are not maintained  
   
 254 Disabled facilities grants funding is lost to the 

County Council 
Operational / Service 

   
 29 Deficiencies in the election process Reputation 
 228 Loss of land charges personal search income  

 
 
4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Performance and Customers) made the 

following comments on the report at their 6 June meeting.  
 
4.2  Members identified risks 53 and 107 as risks that the Council have little 

influence over and question whether they are worth including on the register. 
The Panel recommended that consideration is given in removing the low risk 
items from the register. 

                                            
4.3 Members recommended that consideration should be given to include a risk 

concerning the withdrawal of one party from the shared service agreements. 
Members were concerned that the full implications of such an event had not 
been fully considered by Cabinet or Senior Officers. 

 
4.4 The Panel recommended that the management of risk 58 should be a priority. 

Although the Panel were informed that work on mitigating the risk was in 
progress Members would like to receive a report on the item at a future Panel 
meeting.  

 

25



5. KEY IMPACTS  
  
5.1 The significant corporate and operational risks that have the potential to affect 

the delivery of the Corporate Plan need to be identified, controlled and 
monitored. If effective risk management (as set out in the risk management 
strategy) does not take place, there is the possibility that inappropriately 
informed decision-making may take place and the Corporate Plan outcomes 
may not be achieved. Maintaining an adequate and effective risk register and 
risk management process is a key management control. 

 
6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN 
 
6.1  The risk register is a dynamic document and is subject to regular review. 

Depending on the decisions taken by Cabinet, Managers may be required to 
identify further mitigation. If this is the case, Cabinet will be informed of the 
outcome of that review process.  

 
6.2 Future reports to the Panel will provide information in respect of Corporate and 

Operational inherent and residual risk scores. Due to the size of the 
Operational risk register it is planned that risks will be reported at risk appetite 
category. This will mean appetite areas will be reported individually so 
allowing Cabinet to review the whole register within a year.  

 
7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 Risk management is one of the six core principles within the Council’s Code of 

Governance – taking informed and transparent decisions, which are subject to 
effective scrutiny and managing risk.  

 
7.2 Good risk management practice contributes to the overall delivery of the 

Corporate Plan.  It improves the performance of the Council by identifying and 
assessing current and emerging risks and opportunities and how they are to 
be treated.    

 
8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Risk management is a business as usual activity and as such the cost of risk 

mitigation is controlled within individual service budgets. Additional resources 
may be required to further mitigate any risk that exceeds its risk appetite, but 
these will not be known until the mitigation has been identified.  

 
8.2 The cost of any risk materialising also needs to be considered. Whilst an 

individual residual risk score may be below its risk appetite level the failure of 
any control may result in unknown levels of financial costs being incurred.   

 
9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
 
9.1 Cabinet need to ensure that the risk management process is robust and that 

the corporate risk register reflects their understanding of the significant 
corporate risks faced by the Council.  In addition, they also need to be 
satisfied that risks have been mitigated to an appropriate level.  

 
10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 
 

 Appendix 
1  Risk matrix – inherent to residual scoring: Corporate risks  

26



2  Risk matrix – inherent to residual scoring: Operational risks  
3 Corporate risk register 
4  Corporate risks - Risk appetite levels 
5  Risk treatment option form   
  

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Risk register. 
Risk management strategy. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
David Harwood. Internal Audit & Risk Manager  
Tel No. 01480 388115 
Email: david.harwood@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 

27

mailto:david.harwood@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


Corporate Risks                                                                                          Appendix 1 
 

 Inherent Risks 
before controls 

 
   Residual Risks 

after controls     

 May 2016     May 2016    
                    

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

5  1 1    

Residual risk scores rely on the 
identified controls working 
effectively. 
 
Cabinet and CMT rely on internal 
audit and managers’ ‘assurance’ 
statements to judge whether this 
is the case. 

 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

5         

4   4 4 2  
 

4   1  1a    

3   7 6 1  
 

3  2 4    
total 

 

2    2   
 

2  3 13 3   28  

1       
 

1   1      

 
1 2 3 4 5    1 2 3 4 5    

Impact         Impact    
                    

                  

 ‘Very High’ Residual Risks May 2016 Accepted by 
Cabinet 

  

 

         
  

                                             Likelihood X  Impact    
        

1
 

a
 239 a Town Centre redevelopment 4 / 5 July 2012   

   Dec 2012   
       

 
 

   ----   
   ----   

         
    July 2012    

       
         

       

  
                     

Corporate             

28



Operational Risks                                                                                        Appendix 2 
 

 Inherent Risks 
before controls 

    Residual Risks 
after controls     

 May 2016     May 2016    
                    

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

5  2 5 2   

Residual risk scores rely on the 
identified controls working 
effectively. 
 
Cabinet and CMT rely on internal 
audit and managers’ ‘assurance’ 
statements to judge whether this 
is the case. 

 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

5         

4  8 10 6 1  
 

4 1 3 4      

3 1 6 16 16 2  
 

3 3 11 6    
total 

 

2  2 3 3 2  
 

2 1 16 28 6 1 b  86  

1   1    
 

1  1 1 3 1    

 
1 2 3 4 5    1 2 3 4 5    

Impact         Impact    
                    

                  

 ‘Very High’ Residual Risks May 2016 Accepted by 
Cabinet  

 

 

         

                                          Likelihood X Impact    
         

58 b Information security policy is not 
followed 2 / 5  ----   

    ----   
       

 
 

    July 2012   
    July 2012   

         
        
       

         
       

  
                     

Operational             
 

29



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

53 The Council is unable to 
deliver sustained economic 
growth for the District leading 
to (over a period of time) 
reducing employment 
prospects and declining 
prosperity.  

Business Support Services 
pursue inappropriate projects 
and activities for the support of 
the local economy.
Effect:
Economic implications
Increasing unemployment in 
the district
Changing degrees..
Risk Owner : Sue Bedlow
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

The Council provides funding for business support 
and monitors take-up of service

A local Growth Plan and an annual action plan are in 
place, which take into account changes in 
employment levels and prosperity in the district and at 
the macro level, the implications on equality and 
inclusion policies

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

54 Managers discriminate 
against certain service users 
by not considering the needs 
of all service users when 
delivering or developing 
services.

Effect:
Allegations relating to 
discrimination
Services don’t meet the needs 
of the local population
Non - compliance with 
legislation / statutory 
requirements / new initiatives
Reputation..
Risk Owner : Adrian Dobbyne
- Corporate Team Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

Consultation and engagement strategy is designed to 
obtain the views of local residents and involve them 
where appropriate in the provision of services.

Equality Impact Assessments carried out in 
accordance with the council's programme and service 
reviews

The Council set out its framework for equality and 
inclusion in a strategy document together with an 
associated action plan

The Council's Equality and Inclusion policy is followed 
and council business is conducted in an open and 
transparent manner

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

Corporate Risks at 25 May 2016 Appendix 3

30



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

56 Communications and 
marketing of services with 
employees, local residents, 
visitors and stakeholders is 
poor, leading to rumours and / 
or incorrect information  being 
circulated, damaging staff 
morale and lower use of 
services and local reputation.

Effect:
Failure to consult / 
communicate with the public 
and stakeholders
Reputation damage
Customer resistance to 
change
Staff and external parties don’t 
know what is happening / what 
to do
Low..
Risk Owner : Patricia Harnett
- Communications Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

Sound mechanisms are used to consult with the 
public and stakeholders regarding council services.
Service Plans require all consultations planned to be 
stated.

The Council's Communications and Customer Service 
Strategies are in place to guide manager

Good relationships with the media.  

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

86 Orphaned contaminated sites 
may fall to HDC to manage 
long-term high revenue costs

Sites if orphaned may fall to 
HDC to manage long-term 
high revenue costs.
Risk Owner : Chris Stopford
Head of Community
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

County Council considering their planning 
enforcement options, planning action may negate the 
need for  Contaminated Land declaration and mitgate 
risk of non-treatment of effluent by operator

 Report to LICENSING & PROTECTION PANEL 26 
October 2010
UPDATE ON BUCKDEN SOUTH LANDFILL SITE & 
LEACHATE TREATMENT PLANT
(Report by Head of Environmental and Community 
Health Services)

Report to LICENSING & PROTECTION PANEL 19 
March 2009
BUCKDEN SOUTH LANDFILL SITE & LEACHATE 
TREATMENT PLANT (Report by Head of 
Environmental and Community Health Services)

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

31



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

268 Inadequate performance of 
Legal Shared Service 
resulting in legal challenge.

The Legal Shared Service 
could be under-resourced or 
have conflicting priorities (as 
shared with SCDC and Cambs 
City); therefore advice and 
support could be untimely or 
potentially inaccurate.
Risk Owner : Clive Mason -
Head of Resources
Last Updated: 18 Jan 2016

L = 4 I = 4
Very High (16)

Legal SS Project Board.
Currently formulating the Shared Services agreement.

L = 3 I = 
3

High (9)

2 CMT The Council does not 
invest in or develop its staff 
leading to motivational 
problems and service 
developments not being 
delivered on time or within 
budget

Effect:
Staff resistance / reluctance to 
take risks and accept change
Staff are not adequately 
trained to do their jobs
Staff may leave
Reputation damage
Low staff morale
New initiatives etc..
Risk Owner : Jo Lancaster -
Managing Director
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 4 I = 4
Very High (16)

A Workforce Strategy and an associated action plan 
developed and has been adopted by Employment 
Panel.

Developed core management competences

A comprehensive in - house training programme is in 
place that is based on assessed training needs and 
the Council's objectives

Training needs are discussed and determined / 
agreed with staff at appraisal and recorded

L = 2 I = 
2

Low (4)

Training programme being developed to 
support core competencies.

Review of impact on appraisals needed

32



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

40 Planning policy may be 
insufficient to meet 
government requirements

Effect
Local Plan found unsound
High Court over turns Local 
Plan
Inappropriate decisions made
Disgruntled customers
Reputation damage
Actions taken which may 
adversely affect the local..
Risk Owner : Andy Moffat -
Head of Development
Last Updated: 11 Jan 2016

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

Well trained and experienced staff in post

Priority is given to developments which may result in 
severe impacts.

Quality control standards

Regular research and review of planning issues is 
carried out

A complete review of planning policies is being 
undertaken in order to produce a new Local Plan 
following the Governments decision to update all 
national planning policies (the NPPF)

Outside consultants used and legal advice taken 
where appropriate

L = 2 I = 
4

High (8)

47 Council's funds not invested 
appropriately leading to 
losses or poor returns 
resulting in unexpected 
service cuts.

Effect:
Loss of investments capital.
Reduction in interest received 
(although minimal at this time 
as interest rates are low; 
18/01/2016)
Risk Owner : Clive Mason -
Head of Resources
Last Updated: 18 Jan 2016

L = 4 I = 4
Very High (16)

External consultant appointed

Treasury strategy in place which limits size of loans, 
counterparties and maximum periods.

Suitably qualified and experienced staff

Prompt reaction to daily notification of changes to 
credit ratings.

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

33



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

59 The Council does not react to 
local transport issues, 
developments, and needs, 
leading to increased chance 
of adverse economic impact 
on the District. 

Effect:
Traffic gridlock / congestion in 
the District
Resistance from the public
Service provision may not 
meet needs
Reputation damage
Social responsibilities may not 
be delivered by the..
Risk Owner : Andy Moffat -
Head of Development
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

Delivery of the Market Town Transport Plan and the 
Local Transport Plan in conjunction with partner 
organisations

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

144 Fraud goes undetected 
leading to loss of funds from 
public purse

Fraud is perpetrated and goes 
undetected - this can lead to 
an increase in fraud due to a 
preception that the council is 
an easy target.
Reputational problems can 
occur.
Risk Owner : John Taylor -
Head of Customer Services
Last Updated: 17 Aug 2015

L = 4 I = 3
High (12)

Fraud team undertake regualar training and carry out 
risk assessment on every referral.  Investigations 
result in sanctions.  Prosecutions published in 
newspaper.

Information provied to public to enable them to tell us 
about a suspected fraud in the Huntingdonshire area :
Telephone the Fraud Hotline on 01480 388188 (24 
hour line) 
Complete on-line Report Benefit Fraud form or email 
visit or write to Pathfinder House 
 

Fraud Policy and Workplan approved by Cabinet in 
Dec15, This sets out the plans for the team and also 
the level of resource Cllrs wish to put into this area. 

L = 3 I = 
2

Medium 
(6)

34



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

251 Social media activity operates 
inconsistently leading to 
inappropriate and 
unauthorised use of social 
media by services

Staff unaware of the correct 
procedures to follow. 
Inconsistency of approach and 
control of social media. 
Council may not engage with 
customers in the most 
appropriate way. Reputational 
damage..
Risk Owner : Patricia Harnett
- Communications Manager
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 5 I = 3
Very High (15)

Social Media Policy and Guidelines written. User 
Group meets qtrly to discuss any issues around social 
media, how to manage reputational issues, to 
highlight any problems.

L = 3 I = 
3

High (9)

104 Delays to the construction of 
the new A14 may lead to a 
failure to achieve the longer 
term 
development/regeneration 
strategy for Huntingdon (see 
cause & effect for full risk)

Delays to the construction of 
the new A14 may significantly 
reduce the amount of new 
development land that 
becomes available for housing 
and other developments, 
leading to a failure to achieve 
the..
Risk Owner : Andy Moffat -
Head of Development
Last Updated: 11 Jan 2016

L = 2 I = 4
High (8)

Promote early implementation of the A14 by 
committing appropriate resources to the on-going 
studies and upcoming Public Inquiry etc.

L = 2 I = 
4

High (8)

237 Fundamental changes in 
Government Policy could 
undermine Council's ability to 
enable new affordable homes 
to be built.

Fundamental changes in 
Government Policy could 
undermine Council's ability to 
enable new affordable homes 
to be built.  This includes a 
increase in the threshold of 
sites on which affordable 
housing..
Risk Owner : Jo Emmerton -
Housing Strategy Manager
Last Updated: 11 Jan 2016

L = 4 I = 3
High (12)

If a developer contends that their affordable housing 
requirement (Section 106) is not economically viable 
for them to fulfil we would scrutinise the inputs to the 
development to assess overall site viability.  If proven, 
we would renegotiate a lower percentage of affordable 
housing, or we would revise the tenure split of the site 
to enable a viable development to proceed.

Review and increase provision of temporary 
accommodation as an alternative to B&B

Maximise new affordable housing opportunities on 
s106, rural exception sites and others.

L = 4 I = 
3

High (12)

35



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

267 Delivery of the Building 
Control service via the Shared 
Service arrangements is not 
adequately managed leading 
to poor performance and 
dissatisfaction of its 
customers

Causes:
Non-conformity to the Shared 
Service agreement

Effect:
Customer service deteriorates
Reduction in market share and 
income
Increased cost to the Council
Risk Owner : Andy Moffat -
Head of Development
Last Updated: 11 Jan 2016

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

Project Board meets to discuss objectives and 
performance indicator information to be provided 

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

Shared Service Agreement to be finalised 
and signed

74 Robust Partnerships 
agreement are not effectively 
secured with relevant 
organisation and as a 
consequence the delivery of 
key objectives is not 
achieved.

Effects:
Breakdown in relationship with 
partners
Targets not achieved (for 
example for the HSP)
New initiatives unsuccessful
Low staff morale
Adverse impact on the service 
received by..
Risk Owner : Adrian Dobbyne
- Corporate Team Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 5
Very High (15)

Current review of all Partnerships to ensure alignment 
with our corporate priorities, delivering value for 
money and are fit for purpose. 

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

157 Reduction in income streams 
would reduce the available 
revenue base leading to 
either the requirement for 
additional revenue support to 
maintain service levels, or a 
reduction in operating cost by 
reducing service provision 
(and staffing levels)

Reduction in income from Car 
Parks, Markets, Trade and 
Bulky waste collection along 
with countryside site and pitch 
lettings would require either 
additional funding from other 
sources, or an actual..
Risk Owner : Alistair Merrick
Last Updated: 24 Aug 2015

L = 4 I = 3
High (12)

Services at risk of income reductions, are where 
practical, being actively marketed.

L = 3 I = 
3

High (9)

CMT to agree to the redefinition of this risk or 
its' replacement with a risk that focuses on 
the delivery of the agreed ZZB proposals 
over the next four years because this will be 
the determinant of financial stability for the 
Operations Division.

36



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

141 The Council does not provide 
effective community 
leadership and engagement 
opportunities leading to the 
reduced inclusion of key 
sections of the community.

Increased Community 
tensions
public dissatisfaction
potential legal challenges in 
respect of diversity and 
equality
reputational
Financial
inequality of service delivery
Risk Owner : Adrian Dobbyne
- Corporate Team Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 4 I = 3
High (12)

Bring partners together to discuss and work together 
on Community issues in Huntingdonshire

Trained Managers
Equalities steering group
Equalities direction of Travel statement outlining 
where we are and what we need to do to maintain 
'achieving level' .

L = 3 I = 
3

High (9)

204 Service developments and 
new/amended policies 
introduced without due 
consideration of their 
equalities impact resulting in 
legal challenge in respect of 
equality and diversity.

Individual services may not 
fully consider the implications 
of equality and diversity issues 
and therefore services may 
not meet the needs of all our 
community groups eg. ethnic 
minority groups,..
Risk Owner : Adrian Dobbyne
- Corporate Team Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

Equality Steering group  raises awareness of equality 
and diversity work through out the organisation.  Also 
the group is made up of representatives from each 
major service who are champions within their 
department.  The group is supported by Corporate 
Project Officer with special responsibility for E&D. 

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

253 Income from sale of recyclate 
is not realised

Less income than estimated 
impacting on the Councils 
budget 
Risk Owner : Alistair Merrick
Last Updated: 24 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

Contract now let - monitoring contamination and 
income from recyclate.

L = 3 I = 
2

Medium 
(6)

1. CMT to agree the revision of this risk to 
state that income from the sale of recyclates 
is not realised because of the rejection of 
materials at the MRF because of 
contamination. This is necessary because 
this is the factor that HDC control. The 
market conditions for the sale of the 
recyclates is outside of the control of HDC.
2. Implementation and then consistent 
application of the new..

37



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

55 Leisure Centres do not keep 
pace with the changing 
expectations of their 
customers resulting in a loss 
of customers and income. 

Effect:
Failure to provide the facilities 
required by the public; 
competitors are more 
successful; levels of income 
drop; adverse publicity.
Additional efforts required to re
-capture..
Risk Owner : Jayne Wisely -
Head of Leisure & Health
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

Levels of income, admissions & expenditure are 
monitored
Service Plan/Business plan created annually

Staff structures reviewed

One internal & one external customer surveys are 
conducted each year plus External Benchmarking 
(performance)

Centres undertake demographic and socio-economic 
profiling to establish the optimum facilities required to 
increase attendance - new developments included
Competitor performance regularly monitored

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

239 Town centre development 
does not progress as 
agreement anticipates

 Sainsbury will not have new 
store so negotiations are 
needed to get Chequers Court 
to proceed.
S106 monies from the 2 
development is not paid to the 
council
Risk Owner : Chris Allen -
Project & Asset Manager
Last Updated: 25 May 2016

L = 4 I = 5
Very High (20)

meetings arranged L = 4 I = 
5

Very High 
(20)

260 The Council does not meet its 
obligations under the 2014 
Data Transparency Code 
leading to complaints from the 
public and a judicial review

Statutory deadlines not met. 
Relevant information not 
listed. Reputational and 
possible Judical Review.
Risk Owner : Adrian Dobbyne
- Corporate Team Manager
Last Updated: 05 Aug 2015

L = 5 I = 2
High (10)

Code is managed by Corporate Team to ensure 
publication.

L = 2 I = 
2

Low (4)

38



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

130 CMT Reductions in 
goverment funding leading to 
the need for additional 
savings in future years

That service cuts will have to 
be made in later years.
Risk Owner : Clive Mason -
Head of Resources
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 4 I = 5
Very High (20)

The Council considers regularly the minimum level of 
reserves and ensures through the MTFS process that 
these can be maintained.

Allowance in the MTFS for the possibility that 
government funding will fall.

Plans now in place for 16/17 and negotiations are 
underway with Gov to secure a four year settlement

L = 2 I = 
4

High (8)

73 CMT Legislation places 
additional burdens on 
services and demand for 
services result leading to 
increases in staff absences, 
reductions in current service 
levels and delays in improving 
service delivery

Effect:
Staffing impacts
Overspends
Priority need remains unmet
Changing targets
Inability of the Council to 
achieve in all areas
Priority setting may not be in 
line with requirements
Lobbying..
Risk Owner : Jo Lancaster -
Managing Director
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 4 I = 4
Very High (16)

Managers now consistently applying updated 
sickness management policies

MTFS process in place to bid for additional resources

Ongoing monitoring of impact of external economic 
forces to allow prompt reactions / early intervention 
programmes

Corporate Training Programme in place.  Also, as part 
of being a member of most professions, employees 
would undertake a certain amount of CPD and so 
would cover new legislation affecting their own 
profession

L = 2 I = 
2

Low (4)

248 CMT: Non achievement of 
actions set out in the MTFS 
leading to a failure to ensure 
financial sustainability

Failure to achieve savings or 
income targets identified in the 
plan on a page and through 
the Zero based budgeting 
process.

If actions do not lead to 
anticipated savings / income 
alternative..
Risk Owner : Julie Slatter -
Corporate Director Services
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 2 I = 4
High (8)

The Council now has in place a clear plan to secure 
both savings, efficiencies and additional income to 
address the challenges in the medium term financial 
strategy. This is underpinned by clear actions and 
plans for each service area and has been 
strengthened through the Zero based budgeting 
process.

Improved financial reporting and financial information 
for budget holders. This means that budget monitoring 
and forecasting has improved and any issues in terms 
of delivery will be identified at an early stage to enable 
recovery action to be taken.

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

39



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

6 CMT Corporate Business 
Continuity plans are 
inadequate resulting, over 
both the short and medium 
term, in the Council's inability 
to provide an appropriate 
service.

Cause:
Loss of utilities / power for 
substantial amount of time
Loss of core systems
Flu pandemic
Staffing and resourcing
Severe weather
Major accident

Effect:
Inability to deliver core..
Risk Owner : Julie Slatter -
Corporate Director Services
Last Updated: 21 Dec 2015

L = 3 I = 4
High (12)

2 telecoms switches in both PFH & EFH
Reviewing single points of failure.

server suite at Eastfield House in addition to 
Pathfinder House

Virtualisation of servers is complete.  This capability is 
being incorporated in the IMD BCP which allows 
greater resilience should either PFH or EFH 
inoperable.

BCP is reviewed and, if necessary, revised annually.  
This is then considered by COMT & CGP. 

IT recovery agreement in place; data is backed up for 
each site and is stored off site on a weekly basis; 
physical environment - air conditioning
UPS - allows 10 mins closing down time

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

CMT to agree process and mechanism for 
annual review of BCP. BC meetings to be 
reinstated to consider how this can be 
incorporated in Governance Boards 
potentially culture and compliance or risk to 
be agreed at SMT awayday Jan 2016

261 CMT Shared service provision 
fails to deliver the required 
service leading to potential 
deterioration in service 
delivery, loss of control, loss 
of reputation and potentially 
increased costs

perception that complications 
of implementing shared 
service working will be 
excessive
Poor governance 
arrangements
Differing visions, ambitions, 
priorities
Political issues divide the..
Risk Owner : Jo Lancaster -
Managing Director
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

No controls identified. 

Governance structure in place involving both 
members and senior officers of all councils
Robust project and programme management in place
Dedicated resources now in place and recruitment of 
a permanent team now in place

L = 2 I = 
3

Medium 
(6)

Monitor recruitment

40



Risk Ref Risk Title Cause & Effect Inherent Risk 
Priority (IL x 

II)

Risk Control Residual 
Risk 

Priority 
(RL x RI)

Action Required

262 CMT Failure to deliver vision 
of shared services leading to 
inability to deliver the required 
efficiency savings

Lack of buy in from partners 
and staff - benefits of shared 
working not communicated
Percception that efficiencies to 
be gained will be insufficient
Incompatible cultures

Risk Owner : Jo Lancaster -
Managing Director
Last Updated: 04 Jan 2016

L = 3 I = 3
High (9)

Regular board meetings to oversee roll out of projects 
across the three work streams and three councils

robust risk management now embedded in the 
programme

L = 1 I = 
3

Medium 
(3)

41



Appendix 4 
Corporate Risk – Risk Appetite levels  

Health & Safety 

Transformation

Compliance & 
Regulation.  
Reputation

Operational   
or Service

People 
& Culture

Financial

 

 
  
 
 

The grid above shows agreed risk appetite levels.  
 

The grid to the right maps corporate residual risk scores 
against the appetite. All risks have been categorised 
against the seven appetite statements. Risk 40 exceeds 
the agreed appetite level. (Risk 239 relates to a 
transformation risk and does not exceed its risk appetite 
level). 
 
As per the Risk Management Strategy, Corporate 
Management Team are considering whether risk 40 
requires further mitigation, or whether the risk that has 
been identified should be accepted, even though it 
exceeds its agreed appetite level.  Key: T = Transformation              PC = People & Culture  

        F = Financial                        Op = Operational or Service  
        R = Reputation         CR = Compliance & Regulation 
        H = Health & Safety 

42



Appendix 5 
Risk Treatment Option Form 

 
Risk Treatment – Action Plan 

Description of risk from register: Risk 
ID No:  58 Current residual risk score: 

Likelihood x Impact 2 5  

Information Security Policy is not followed leading to an inability to provide an appropriate service, litigation 
against the Council and a failure to respond to requests for information. 

Controls already in place as listed on the risk register: 
 

1. Information Security Policy covers all aspects of 
IT and information security. Policy agreed by 
CMT and HoS advised that their staff must follow 
the training. Guidance and Training provided by 
IMD. 
 

2. Online training provides staff with training and 
awareness of Information Security issues. 

 
3. Regular reminders / training given to staff 

regarding the need for confidentiality 
 

4. The Business systems and database register 
keeps a log of all the databases and IT business 
systems which are used by the Council.  

Are these controls operating effectively? No – Control 4 has only been given limited assurance. 
Controls 1 – 3 have been given adequate assurance.  

Risk Action Plan (All actions listed in priority order) 

Actions to reduce risk using existing resources 

New 
residual risk 

score1 
Extra 

resources 
required2 

L I  

Disaster recovery plan and successful testing of such.  2 4  

None. To be 
managed 
within 
existing 
resources.  

     

     

Actions requiring additional resources     

1. None at this time of assessment.     

2.     

Decision  

Agreed Option:  
 
Cabinet decision awaited 

Implementation Date Risk Owner 

 IT: 3C Shared Services 

Decision taken by:  on:  

 
 

                                                
1 New Residual Risk Score: after the action has been introduced 
2 Extra Resources: only complete if extra resources will be required to allow the proposed action to be 
introduced e.g. financial costs and staff time 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Public 
Key Decision - No 

 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 Quarterly Update and 

Infrastructure Planning Update 
 
Meeting/Date: Overview and Scrutiny (Economy and Growth) – 14 June 

2016 
 Cabinet – 16 June 2016 
  
Executive Portfolio: Planning Policy, Housing & Infrastructure 
 
Report by: Head of Development 
 
Ward(s) affected: All  
 

 
Executive Summary:  

 
 
This is the third quarterly update on progress on the Local Plan to 2036, as agreed at 
the Cabinet meeting on 19 November 2015. It provides confirmation that the Core 
Strategy (2009) meets the government’s requirement to have a submission local plan 
by March 2017 but expeditious preparation of a post-National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) Local Plan is required. The report provides updates on each 
element of the evidence base currently under preparation and highlights the risks 
arising from delays to the Strategic Transport Study and the Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment.  A December 2015 report to the Cabinet provided an Infrastructure 
Planning Update and this report also provides a further update in relation to 
highways and transport infrastructure projects. 
 
Recommendations: 

 
 
That the Cabinet: 
 

1) Notes progress on preparation of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 and 
its supporting evidence base, including confirmation that the Core Strategy 
(2009) meets the Government’s requirement to have a submission Local Plan 
by March 2017, and the update in relation to highways and transport 
infrastructure projects; and 
 

2) Endorses the use of approach b in paragraph 4.3 (the revalidated Cambridge 
Sub-Regional Model for the Strategic Transport Study. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

45

Agenda Item 5



 
1. PURPOSE of the report 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on progress on preparation of the proposed 

submission Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (HLP2036) and its supporting 
evidence base in the light of Government announcements relating to the 
timescale for the production of Local Plans, and to provide a further update on 
highways and transport infrastructure projects. 

  
1.2 The main purpose of the report is to: 

 

 Confirm the timelines required for delivery of the proposed submission 
Local Plan in response to confirmation of national deadlines.  

 Confirm the delivery programme for the evidence base necessary to 
deliver the HLP2036. 

 
2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At the Cabinet meeting on 19 November 2015 it was resolved that quarterly 

reports on progress with preparation of the HLP2036 should be provided.  The 
December 2015 report on Infrastructure Planning also stated that a further 
update would be provided in June 2016. 

 
3. NATIONAL TIMESCALES FOR UPDATING LOCAL PLANS 
 
3.1 ‘Fixing the Foundations’ (July 2015) set out the Government’s intention to 

publish league tables of local planning authorities’ progress in plan-making. The 
first data records for Huntingdonshire provide confirmation that the Core 
Strategy (2009) meets the requirement from the Written Ministerial Statement 
on Local Plans (July 2015) to have a development plan prepared post-2004.  
The deadline for ‘writing’ a Local Plan by March 2017 does not therefore apply 
to this district. However, as the Core Strategy pre-dates the introduction of the 
NPPF in 2012 a later deadline of March 2018 for review of the development 
plan is advocated by the Local Plans Expert Group report upon which 
Government consultation closed on 27 April 2016. 

 
4. PROGRESS WITH PREPARATION OF THE HLP2036 AND ITS 

SUPPORTING EVIDENCE BASE 
 

Strategic Transport Study 
 
4.1 Mott McDonald has been appointed to conduct the Strategic Transport Study on 

behalf of Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) and Cambridgeshire County 
Council. This is a fundamental element of the evidence base necessary to 
demonstrate that the preferred development strategy is deliverable. It will test 
the transport implications of four possible development scenarios (which were 
set out in the report to the March meetings), along with the necessary baseline 
assessment advocated by National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG). It will 
investigate the mitigation packages that would be required to facilitate each 
scenario and provide indicative costings for them.  
  

4.2 The Strategic Transport Study brief was prepared on the basis that the 
revalidation of the Cambridge Sub-Regional Model (CSRM) traffic model by 
consultants for the County Council would be completed in May 2016, as the 
County Council had confirmed earlier this year. This revalidation is essential to 
ensure modelling is based on an up-to-date data set and can provide forecasts 
to 2036. However, the County Council advise that this revalidation work is now 

46



not expected to be completed until the end of June 2016 and will then need 
further checking to test accuracy. 

 
4.3 Mott McDonald have discussed the modelling options with Atkins (the County 

Council’s consultants) who manage the CSRM on behalf of Cambridgeshire 
County Council and identified two possible approaches: 

 
a) Priority is to complete the proposed submission Local Plan by December 

2016: this would necessitate use of the old CSRM model which is available 
now but only forecasts to 2031, it would be open to challenge by developers 
on the basis that dated information has been used and incurs the major risk 
that at the Local Plan Examination the Inspector may ask for the 
development scenarios to be retested through the revalidated CSRM as that 
will be well established by that time. This could result in a suspension of the 
Examination of around six months and an additional cost of over £100,000 
to re-run the modelling and complete the analysis of its outputs. 

b) Priority is to develop a defensible transport evidence base: this would 
involve waiting for the revalidated CSRM to be available which could 
provide forecasts up to 2041 if required and would be based on an up-to-
date data set. This would form a more robust evidence base for the Local 
Plan Examination and be less susceptible to challenge from developers. 
Preliminary work could be undertaken in the short-term but this approach 
would necessitate delaying modelling the four development scenarios until 
the revalidation work on the CSRM is completed; checking to test accuracy 
for the Huntingdonshire area could be incorporated within the scope of the 
Strategic Transport Study. 

  
4.4 Mott McDonald has been asked to prepare a revised timetable for the Strategic 

Transport Study based on approach b) using the revalidated CSRM as this is 
expected to be the lower risk and potentially lower cost option in the longer 
term. This will have implications for completion of the HLP2036 resulting in 
several months delay as the development strategy cannot be finalised until the 
transport evidence demonstrates it is deliverable when accompanied by an 
appropriate transport mitigation package. 

 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) 
 

4.5 JBA are continuing to progress the SFRA as far as possible with the information 
released by the Environment Agency. However, two main sources of delay 
persist. Firstly, the Environment Agency has still not completed the Lower Great 
Ouse flood model. This is necessary to produce updated flood risk zones 
without which more detailed assessment of sites in zones at greater risk of 
flooding cannot be undertaken. Secondly, the Environment Agency issued 
updated guidance in February on consideration of climate change allowances to 
support the NPPF. The Environment Agency has confirmed that their modelling 
on revised climate change allowances in September will not include the Lower 
Great Ouse as funding limitations are restricting their work to areas at greatest 
risk. Discussions are ongoing between the Council, JBA and the Environment 
Agency to identify alternative approaches. These may include funding additional 
modelling, using generalised flow modelling or using flood zone 2 as a proxy 
measure for climate change allowances. Any solution will need to be agreed 
with the Environment Agency to prevent the risk of objection at the Local Plan 
examination. Until this agreement has been reached very little further progress 
can be made on the SFRA resulting in delay to the programme and preventing 
finalisation of site allocations for the HLP2036. 
 
 

47



Gypsy and Traveller Needs Assessment 
   

4.6 A replacement Gypsy and Traveller Needs Assessment (GTANA) is being 
coordinated by the Joint Strategic Planning Unit on behalf of Huntingdonshire 
District Council in partnership with 7 neighbouring authorities. All survey and 
direct engagement work has been completed and is now being analysed. Legal 
opinion has been sought from the QC retained by South Cambridgeshire District 
Council for their Local Plan examination on the implications of the new definition 
of Gypsies and Travellers as set out in the August 2015 Planning Policy for 
Traveller Sites. This, along with the need to obtain more detailed information 
from some partner authorities has led to delay in completing the report from 
May until early July. 
 
Retail and Commercial Leisure Needs Assessment 
 

4.7 Nexus Planning was appointed in April 2016 to undertake a Retail and 
Commercial Leisure Needs Assessment. This includes a survey of 1,000 
householders to ascertain current shopping and leisure behaviour patterns 
including use of internet and ‘click and collect’ services to help shape future 
policies for town centre uses.  Engagement with local stakeholders such as 
town councils, Huntingdon BID, St Ives town team as well as neighbouring 
authorities is scheduled for June. The Assessment will advise on the need for 
additional retail and commercial leisure floorspace to ascertain the quantity and 
nature of site allocations for the HLP2036 and to inform development 
management policies. 
 
Objectively Assessed Need Update 
  

4.8 To meet NPPF and NPPG requirements to take into account market signals and 
updated household projections, an update of the Objectively Assessed Need 
figure for Huntingdonshire has been commissioned from Cambridgeshire 
County Council’s Research Group. This is necessary to ensure the housing 
delivery target for the HLP2036 is up-to-date. It will complement the more 
detailed information contained within the Cambridge sub-region strategic 
housing market assessment (2013). It will also analyse and address overlaps 
with neighbouring housing market areas, including in particular Bedford and 
Peterborough Housing Market Areas, and consider the jobs/population/housing 
impacts of proposed MoD base closures at RAF Alconbury and RAF 
Molesworth. 
 
Wind Energy Development 
 

4.9 A consultation document is being prepared in response to the Written Ministerial 
Statement of 18 June 2015 which required suitable areas for wind turbines to be 
clearly allocated in a local or neighbourhood plan. The draft document will need 
to identify whether any general areas within Huntingdonshire are potentially 
suitable for wind energy development; it will set out a range of options and 
specify a preferred approach. It will not consider individual sites. Subject to 
discussions with the Member Development Plan Policy Advisory Group, 
consultation is expected in the summer. The outcomes of the consultation will 
inform preparation of the HLP2036.  
 
 
 

48



5. HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS UPDATE  
    

5.1 A14 trunk road: the Development Consent Order (DCO) was approved by the 
Secretary of State for Transport on 11 May 2016.  Works are due to commence 
by late 2016 and Highways England programmes the completion of the new 
route by the end of 2019. The removal of the Huntingdon viaduct will then 
commence and the new road network within the town centre should be 
completed 18 months later. HDC is currently involved in final design elements, 
including environment, delivery, legacy and noise & air quality and remains a 
key stakeholder in the overall delivery of the scheme. 
  

5.2 A428: Black Cat to Caxton Gibbet Improvement. This is one of 13 new 
schemes in the East of England due to start construction by 2020 and, if 
approved, will be constructed to Department for Transport ‘Expressway’ 
standard i.e. min. 2-lane dual carriageway. Highways England are now 
developing route options and are currently setting-up Stakeholder Forums with 
all tiers of local government, this Council being a Tier 1 Stakeholder. Public 
engagement on scheme will take place during Spring 2017 with a Ministerial 
announcement of a ‘Preferred Route’ due after that. Subject to a DCO 
submission and approval by Government, works are currently planned to 
commence during Spring 2020. This scheme also links to the Oxford to 
Cambridge Expressway scheme, see below. 

 
5.3 A1: Oxford to Cambridge Expressway and East West Rail: This continues to 

follow the same process as the A1 and is the second of the six Strategic 
Studies across England. Again, recommendations will come forward at the end 
of 2016 and the Council continues to act as a key stakeholder in assisting to 
develop emerging ideas. Currently at the ideas and options stage, work is on-
going with DfT and HE and any emerging options will take account of the earlier 
delivery of the Black Cat to Caxton Gibbet proposals, as above. Any scheme 
will also tie into any emerging proposals arising from the A1 Study, as well as 
the East West rail scheme, where Network Rail has recently announced that the 
Bedford/Sandy/Cambridge element will form the route of the ‘Central Section’ of 
the scheme following the consideration of 20 options that were considered in 
detail. 

   
5.4 Rail investment:  Network Rail (NR) continue to develop the East Coast Main 

Line (ECML) route study in order to identify the constraints to growth between 
London, Newcastle and Scotland. HDC is a key stakeholder and is working with 
NR and partners to develop and publish a strategic study for the long-term 
development of the route, including measures that benefit Huntingdonshire. 
Current options include a greater spread of long-distance stopping patterns in 
order to reduce congestion at key stations, such as Peterborough, and the 
possibility of hourly long-distance services from Grimsby and Lincoln stopping 
at Huntingdon and/or St. Neots. The Thameslink programme is on target for 
2018/19 to deliver services from Huntingdon and St. Neots, through Kings 
Cross St. Pancras, to a range of destinations south of London. New rolling-
stock on Great Northern services is due prior to the formal launch of 
Thameslink. 

  
5.5 An early scheme arising from the ECML Study is the reinstatement of 7 miles of 

4th track (Up Slow to London) between Huntingdon and the 4th track ‘loop’ at 
Woodwalton. This will provide additional capacity for Great Northern services by 
creating a line speed of 100/mph and freeing-up capacity for long-distance high 
speed services and will also include reconfigured design of overhead line 
arrangements to provide independent wiring thereby reducing incidents of 
complete line closure. Environmental surveys have commenced with Public 

49



Information Events taking place during Summer 2016. Subject to design 
approval, works will commence in mid-2018 and finish by December 2019. 

  
6. KEY IMPACTS / RISKS 

 
6.1 Continuing delays in availability of the revalidated CSRM means that a robust 

Strategic Transport Study cannot be completed by the date necessary to deliver 
the HLP2036 to the timeline anticipated in the Local Development Scheme 
(LDS). However, the risk of using the outdated version of the model is 
significant in the long term as the evidence base will be less robust and there is 
a significant likelihood that the Local Plan Examination Inspector will ask for the 
transport modelling to be re-run incurring additional cost and a greater overall 
delay than waiting for the revalidated model to be available. 
  

6.2 Difficulties in obtaining information from the Environment Agency that is 
necessary to complete the SFRA will also impact on the timeline for preparation 
of the HLP2036 as suitability and deliverability of site specific allocations cannot 
be confirmed. Additional costs may be incurred depending on the alternative 
approach necessary to ensure a robust SFRA is produced that can be 
supported through the Local Plan Examination by the Environment Agency. 

 
6.3 These delays from consultees are extremely frustrating as the District Council is 

committed to producing the certainty for all that a new adopted Local Plan will 
provide.  The Head of Development and the Executive Councillor for Planning 
Policy, Housing & Infrastructure will be seeking early meetings with these 
consultees to complain about and re-emphasise the importance of timely inputs 
and meeting timescales.  Confirmation received since the last quarterly report 
and the approval of the LDS does however mean that the adoption of the Core 
Strategy has already ensured that the Council has met the Government 
requirement deadline for ‘writing’ a Local Plan by March 2017.  

 
6.4 The table below is extracted from the Local Development Scheme approved by 

the Cabinet on 17 March 2016 and amended to show the currently anticipated – 
the exact delay in the availability of the CSRM is still being clarified – 
implications for the timetable for preparation of the HLP2036.  

 

Timetable: Key stages- completed 

Sustainability appraisal scoping report February – March 2012 

Issues and options consultation May – June 2012 

Strategy and Policy consultation August – November 
2012 

Full draft Local Plan (stage 3) consultation May – July 2013 

Additional sites consultation November – December 
2013 

(Long Term Transport Strategy preparation led by 
Cambridgeshire County Council) 

May – November 2014 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2026: Targeted 
Consultation 2015 

January – March 2015 

 

Timetable: key stage – to be completed/undertaken 

Finalisation of evidence base – including Housing and 
Employment Land Availability Assessment, Strategic 
Flood Risk Assessment and Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Needs Assessment 

August 2015 - 
September 2016 
November 2016 

Strategic Transport Study in collaboration with 
Cambridgeshire County Council 

January 2016 - August 
2016  December 2016 

Statutory consultation on proposed submission Local January – February 

50



Plan to 2036 (Reg. 19) 2017  May – June 
2017 

Submission to Secretary of State  July 2017 November 
2017 

Estimated examination July 2017 – December 
2018  November 2017 
– April 2019 

Receipt of Inspector’s report January May 2019 

Estimated date for adoption February June 2019 

 
7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND / OR 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
  

7.1 The production of the HLP2036 relates to the 2016/17 strategic priority of 
Delivering Sustainable Growth. 
  

7.2 The objective under the strategic priority is as follows: 
 “To improve the supply of new and affordable housing, jobs and community 

facilities to meet future need.” 
  Our work programme includes: 

 “ensuring an adequate supply of housing to meet objectively assessed 
needs; 

 planning and delivering the provision of decent market and affordable 
housing for current and future needs; 

 ensuring that there are the right community facilities to accommodate 
the housing growth.” 

 
7.3 The relevant key actions for 2016/17 are: 

 prepare the Local Plan; 

 facilitate delivery of new housing on the large strategic sites at: 
o   St Neots 
o   Wyton 
o   Alconbury Weald 

 maintain a 5 year housing supply position 
 

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 A single Planning Policy earmarked reserve was agreed at the Cabinet meeting 

of 17 March 2016 enabling money to be drawn down to support production of 
the evidence base. It is expected that any additional funding required for the 
SFRA can be drawn from this. 

    
9. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
 
9.1 To inform Members about Huntingdonshire’s compliance with national guidance 

on the timing of submission of replacement local plans. To update Members in 
relation to highways and transport infrastructure projects. To update Members 
on preparation of the HLP2036 and its associated evidence base and seek 
endorsement of the proposed approach to await the revalidated CSRM for the 
Strategic Transport Study with the acknowledgement that this will mean that the 
timetable set out in the Local Development Scheme cannot be met. 
 

 
 
 
 

51



BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Cabinet Report 17 March 2016 Item 3 
HM Treasury July 2015 Fixing the Foundations 
Written Ministerial Statement July 2015 Local Plans 
Environment Agency February 2016 Climate change allowance guidance  
Written Ministerial Statement 18 June 2015 on Wind Turbine Development 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Clare Bond, Planning Policy Team Leader 
Tel: 01480 388435 Email: clare.bond@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

52

http://moderngov.huntsdc.gov.uk:8070/documents/g14327/Public%20reports%20pack%20Thursday%2017-Mar-2016%2019.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/443898/Productivity_Plan_web.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/July%202015/21%20July/8-Communities-and-Local-Government-Local-Plans.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessments-climate-change-allowances
http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/June%202015/18%20June/1-DCLG-Planning.pdf
mailto:clare.bond@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


Public 
Key Decision - No 
 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Integrated Performance Report, 2015/16 Quarter 4 

(including the Provisional Outturn for 2015/16) 
 
Meeting/Date: Overview and Scrutiny (Performance and Customers) 

Panel, 6 June 2016 
Cabinet, 16 June 2016 

  
Executive Portfolio: Councillor Jonathan Gray, Executive Councillor for Strategic 

Resources 
Councillor Stephen Cawley, Executive Councillor for 
Organisation and Customer Services 

Report by: Corporate Team Manager and Head of Resources 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
 
Executive Summary:  
 
The purpose of this report is to brief Members on progress against the Key Activities 
and Corporate Indicators listed in the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2015/16 for the 
period 1 January 2016 to 31 March 2016. The report also incorporates progress 
reporting for current projects being undertaken at the Council and details of the 
2015/16 provisional outturn for revenue and capital spend. 
 
An update on the Commercial Investment Strategy includes details of the 
investments to date and the level of returns these are expected to generate.               
 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet are recommended to consider and comment on progress made against Key 
Activities and Corporate Indicators in the Corporate Plan and current projects, as 
summarised in Appendix A and detailed in Appendices B and C. 
 
Cabinet are recommended to consider and comment on the Council’s 2015/16 
provisional outturn. 
 
Cabinet are also asked to approve the: 

i. deletion of 21 Earmarked Reserves (paragraph 4.11.1), 
ii. formation of 9 Earmarked Reserves (paragraph 4.11.2), 
iii. transfer of £0.244m from the Budget Surplus Reserve to the Collection Fund 

Reserve, and 
iv. transfer of £0.561m from the Budget Surplus Reserve to finance the 

Democratic & Organisational Governance and Efficiency initiatives. 
 

 

53

Agenda Item 6



1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present performance management information 

on the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2015/16 and updates on current projects. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2014-16 was adopted as a two-year plan in 

2014, with an update approved in April 2015 setting out what the Council 
aimed to achieve in addition to its core statutory services during 2015/16. The 
information in the summary at Appendix A and the performance report at 
Appendix B relates to the Key Actions and Corporate Indicators listed for 
2015/16. Following approval of a refreshed Corporate Plan for 2016-18 in 
March 2016, a new set of Key Actions and Corporate Indicators will be 
included in quarterly reports on performance during 2016/17. 

 
2.2 As recommended by the Project Management Select Committee, project 

updates are included in this performance report at Appendix C. There are 
currently 24 open, pending approval or pending closure projects and 7 closed 
projects logged on the SharePoint site across all programmes. This report 
covers all of these projects, including all Capital Projects. 

 
2.3 This report also incorporates financial performance to the end of March. 

Performance is summarised in section 4 below and details are listed in the 
Financial Performance Monitoring Suite at Appendix D. 

 
3. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
3.1 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny (Performance and Customers) Panel 

have an important role in the Council’s Performance Management Framework 
and a process of regular review of performance data has been established. 
The focus is on the strategic priorities and associated objectives to enable 
Scrutiny to maintain a strategic overview. 

 
3.2 Progress against Corporate Plan objectives is reported quarterly. The report at 

Appendix B includes performance data in the form of a narrative of 
achievement and a RAG (Red/Amber/Green) status against each Key Action 
in the Corporate Plan and results for each Corporate Indicator. Appendix C 
gives a breakdown of projects including the purpose of the project and 
comments from the Programme Office as to the current status of each 
project’s SharePoint site as part of the new governance arrangements. 

 
3.3 Performance Indicator data has been collected in accordance with 

standardised procedures. Targets for Corporate Indicators and target dates for 
Key Actions have been set by the relevant Head of Service, after discussion 
with the appropriate Portfolio Holder. 

 
3.4 It should be noted that all references to Portfolio Holders in the report are 

based on Executive Councillor responsibilities for 2015/16. 
 
3.5 The table below summarises the achievement of Key Actions for 2015/16: 
 

Status of Key Actions for 2015/16 Number % 
Green (on track) 33 85 
Amber (within acceptable variance) 2 5 
Red (behind schedule) 4 10 

 

54



At the end of the year, 90% of actions were on track or had progress within an 
acceptable variance and only four actions were behind schedule. 
 
All of the actions behind schedule were affected by prioritisation of other work 
during the year. In particular, the actions relating to a St Neots market town 
improvement strategy and action plan, an update to the Buildings at Risk 
Register and an update to the Design Guide were not completed due to 
decisions to focus on other Planning Policy work, including the St Neots 
Neighbourhood Plan. Three of the four ‘Red’ actions are no longer listed as 
key actions in the Corporate Plan and the deferral of the action to adopt the 
Design Guide as a Supplementary Planning Document means that is now 
expected to be completed during 2016/17. 

 
3.6 Outturn results for 2015/16 Corporate Indicators are shown in the table below: 
 

Corporate Indicator results 2015/16 Number % 
Green (achieved) 19 53 
Amber (within acceptable variance) 11 31 
Red (target missed) 5 14 
Not applicable (no target set) 1 3 

 
This shows that the Council achieved the majority of its targets, with around a 
third within an acceptable variance and targets missed for only five indicators. 
 
Our target  to reduce staff sickness absence (under the ‘Ensuring we are a 
customer-focused and service led council’ strategic theme) was missed as a 
high level of long-term absence in particular contributed to an increase in the 
days lost per full-time equivalent employee compared to 2014/15. Further 
information on this will be included in the Workforce Report due to be 
considered by the Employment Committee in June. 

 
The three targets missed under the ‘Enabling sustainable growth’ strategic 
theme were all linked to national housing issues, with low levels of new 
affordable housing meaning we missed our target on delivering affordable 
housing. This has had an impact on the Council’s ability to deal with 
homelessness, with the number of homeless acceptances increasing despite 
the preventative measures taken by the Council as people have been unable 
to find alternative affordable housing. 
 
Within the ‘Working with our communities’ theme, the average time (in weeks) 
between date of referral and practical completion of minor jobs funded through 
Disabled Facilities Grants was not within the target set. The shared Home 
Improvement Agency (HIA) service provided by Cambridge City Council on 
our behalf has seen the time taken increase due to additional regulatory 
requirements, surveyor capacity and more variations to schemes being agreed 
as part of applications. The HIA Management Board is monitoriong 
performance and additional temporary staff resources will be brought in. 
 

3.7 The status of corporate projects at the end of March is shown below: 
 

Corporate project status at 31 March Number % 
Closed (completed) 7 23% 

Green (progress on track) 7 23% 

Amber (within acceptable variance) 3 10% 

Red (progress behind schedule) 2 6% 

Pending closure or approval 12 39% 

55



Seven projects have recently been closed down following sign-off of close-
down reports by the Project Management Governance Board, with another 
seven projects currently in the close-down stage. At the end of March, 
business cases for five projects had not yet been approved by the Board. 
 
Of the projects currently in the delivery stage, only two are behind schedule. 
These are a project to deliver invest to save schemes providing leisure 
facilities, which has been delayed by ongoing leasehold negotiations, and a 
project to replace roofs on industrial units, which is delayed due to difficulties 
in recruiting a project manager and issues with an overhead power line. 
 
Overall, 83% of corporate projects currently being delivered are on track and 
the sites set up for all projects are being kept up to date by project managers. 

 
4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2015/16 
 
4.1 Attached at Appendix D is the Year End Financial Performance Monitoring 

Suite (FMPS). With regard to the Provisional Outturn for 2015/16, key 
highlights are shown in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.12 below. Other aspects of the 
FMPS are shown at paragraphs 4.13 to 4.14. 

 
 Approved Revenue Budget 
 
4.2 Following the approval of the Councils budget in February 2015 and Cabinet 

approved carry-forward requests totalling £0.3m in June 2015, the Councils 
updated budget for 2015/16 was: 

 
 Net revenue expenditure budget of £19.1m 
 Contribution to reserves of £0.5m, and 
 Budget Requirement of £19.7m 

 
 Revenue Forecast Outturn and Variations in Revenue Spend 
 
4.3 As shown in Section 2 of Appendix D, the year end outturn revenue position 

for 2015/16 is a net revenue spend of £17.1m; resulting in a saving against 
budget of: 

 
 £2.0m when compared to the Updated Budget, and 
 when the planned budget surplus is taken into account the overall saving 

is £2.6m.  
 
4.4 Section 3 of Appendix D sets out the main reasons for the £2.0m variance 

across all departments and is summarised below: 
 

Departmental Variations to Budget: Provisional Outturn 2015/16 
Department Budget 

(Net) 
Provisional 

Outturn 
Variation Big-Ticket Reasons 

£m £m £m 
Community 2.126 1.674 (0.452) Staff vacancies and Income 

from Licensing. 
Customer 4.719 4.114 (0.605) Staff vacancies, e-Forms 

efficiency, Reduction in 
homelessness incentive 
payments. 

Development 1.701 1.192 (0.509) Staff vacancies, lower removal 
grants. 

56



Departmental Variations to Budget: Provisional Outturn 2015/16 
Department Budget 

(Net) 
Provisional 

Outturn 
Variation Big-Ticket Reasons 

£m £m £m 
Leisure & Health 0.070 (0.141) (0.211) NDR refunds, additional 

income. 
Operations 4.593 4.175 (0.418) Staff vacancies, lower building 

& equipment costs, fuel costs. 
Resources 3.930 4.155 0.225 Legal interim support, MMI 

clawback, higher commercial 
estate insurance costs. 

Directors & 
Corporate Team 

2.391 2.107 (0.284) Staff vacancies and Land 
Charges saving. 

Technical 
Adjustments 

(0.386) (0.177) 0.209 Impact of Printing & Pool Car 
Recharging. 

Total 19.144 17.099 (2.045)  
 
4.5 Over half of the above variance is due to staff vacancies (£1.059m) which 

have been kept vacant due to Zero Based Budgeting (ZBB) related 
restaructures taking place in the final quarter of 2015/16 to ensure that ZBB 
identified savings are achieved in 2016/17. 

 
4.6 The final year end variance has improved by £1.014m from the reported 

position as at the end of December. The reason for this improvement is shown 
in the table below, with £345,000 due to year end changes, £303,000 due to 
improved income and £365,000 due to other increased underspends. 

 
Reason  £’000 £’000 
Reduced Bad Debt Provision 39  
Reduction in Land Charges 
Provision 157  

Technical Adjustments 149  
  345 
Improved Income from P9 
forecast  303 

   
Additional unforecast staff 
vacancies 233  

Community Grants 39  
Underspends on Planned 
Maintenance 75  

Other 13  
  365 
TOTAL MOVEMENT 
PERIOD 9 – FINAL 
OUTTURN 

 1,013 

 
 Capital Outturn and Variations in Capital Spend 
 
4.7 Following the approval of the Councils “net” capital programme in February 

2015 of £9.6m and Cabinet approval of slippage of (£0.3m) in June 2015, the 
Councils final 2015/16 “net” capital programme was £9.3m.  

 
4.8 The year end outturn position for 2015/16 is net capital spend of £4.2m. A 

summary of the reasons for the variance is rephasing of £4.8m of capital to 
2016/17, net expenditure variations of (£0.4m) and new schemes of £0.1m; 

57



the latter being approved by Cabinet in October and November 2015. Detailed 
analysis of the variations in the Capital programme are shown in Section 4 of 
Appendix D. 

 
 Reserves 
 
4.9 Members will recall that in December 2015 Cabinet approved the Reserves 

Strategy, which included a change in approach to managing the General 
Fund. In addition, there has been a substantial review of the Earmarked 
Reserves maintained by the Council. A summary of the changes to both the 
General Fund and Earmarked Reserves is shown below, with Section 2 of 
Appendix D showing the detailed movements. 

 
- General Fund  

 
4.10 Members will recall that in December 2015 Cabinet approved that the 

minimum level of the General Fund was to be maintained at 15% of net 
expenditure. 

 
4.11 The 2015/16 opening General Fund balance was £9.3m. As a consequence 

of: 
 The service saving noted above. 
 Transfers to & from Earmarked Reserves: 

o in respect of the Collection Fund and external grant, 
o maintaining the general fund at 15% of net expenditure, and 
o a transfer to the Commercial Investment Reserve, 

the revised forecast General Fund balance is £2.7m. 
 

- Earmarked Reserve 
 
4.12 During the year there has been a significant review of the Earmarked 

Reserves held by the Council. At the start of the financial year there were 38 
separate Earmarked Reserves, totalling £15.7m. 

 
4.13 As a consequence of this review, the number of Earmarked Reserves has 

reduced by a net 12 to 26. Along with transfers from the General Fund and 
service savings etc, the value of the Earmarked Reserves has increased to 
£22.0m. A summary of this review is shown in the Table below and a more 
detailed analysis is shown in Section 6 of Appendix D. It should be noted that 
the Commercial Investment Strategy, S106 and the Special Earmarked 
Reserves account for £17.7m (80%) of all Earmarked Reserves. 

 

 
 
 
 

Action on Reserve Opening Adjustment Provisional 

Outturn

Opening Provisional 

Outturn

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 Remove New 2015/16

£000 £000 £000

Reserve to Remain 11,377 8,373 19,752 14 0 0 14

New Reserve 0 1,037 1,037 0 0 6 6

Consolidation 477 (1) 476 10 (10) 3 3

Reduce £ 2,849 (2,150) 699 3 0 0 3

Remove Reserve 994 (994) 0 11 (11) 0 0

Total 15,697 6,265 21,964 38 (21) 9 26

Adjustment

Numbers of ReservesValue of Reserves (Net)

Conclusion of Review of Earmarked Reserves

58



4.14 As per the requirements of the Reserves Strategy, approval is sought for: 
 
4.14.1 the deletion of the 21 Earmarked Reserves noted below. Heads of Service 

have confirmed that these reserves are not required to support current or 
future service priorities; consequently any balances have either been 
consolidated into the General Fund or redistributed to fund new reserves or 
increase existing reserves: 

 
i. Repairs & Maintenance – Parks Renewals Fund 
ii. Repairs & Maintenance – Countryside Management R&R Fund 
iii. Repairs & Maintenance – St Ivo Renewals Fund 
iv. Repairs & Maintenance – St Neots LC Renewals Fund 
v. Repairs & Maintenance – Huntingdon C Renewals Fund 
vi. Repairs & Maintenance – Ramsey LC Renewals Fund 
vii. Repairs & Maintenance – Sawtry SC Renewals Fund 
viii. Repairs & Maintenance – Ind Estates Renewals Fund 
ix. Repairs & Maintenance – Misc Properties Renewals Fund 
x. Repairs & Maintenance – Commercial Properties Renewals Fund 
xi. Repairs & Maintenance – Car Parks Renewals Fund  
xii. Repairs & Maintenance – Offices R&R Fund 
xiii. Repairs & Maintenance – Pavilions R&R Fund 
xiv. Repairs & Maintenance – Bus Station Shelter Renewals 
xv. Delayed Projects 
xvi. Home Improvement Agency 
xvii. PWLB Discount Reserve 
xviii. Clean Food Centre Reserve 
xix. Listed Building Grants Reserve 
xx. A14 Inquiry Reserve 
xxi. Alconbury & Molesworth 

 
4.14.2 the formation of the following reserves to meet current or future service 

priorities: 
 

i. Local Plan 
ii. TCA 
iii. NDR Relief 
iv. Fraud Hub 
v. Cambridge Anti-Fraud Network 
vi. Call Centre Move 
vii. Operations Efficiency 
viii. One Leisure Huntingdon Changing Room Project 
ix. Commercial Property Maintenance 

 
4.15 With regard to the £0.805m held in the Budget Surplus Reserve at the end of 

the financial year, Section 7 of Appendix D details the proposed use of this 
reserve; including the transfer of: 

 
i. £0.244m to “Collection Fund Reserve”, to finance CLG’s contribution as 

a consequence of HDC being above the NDR baseline funding in 
2015/16. 

 
ii. £0.561m to finance the Democratic & Organisational Governance and 

Efficiency initiatives noted in Section 7 of Appendix D (other than that 
noted in (i) above). 

 
 
 

59



 Other Financial Performance Commentary 
 
4.16 Revenues related activity 
 
 The Council Tax Support Scheme is well below budget and this has been 

consistent throughout the year. However, both Business Rates and Council 
Tax are marginally below budget. The main reason for Business Rates being 
lower than budget is as a consequence of the impact of appeals and a large 
number of insolvency cases. With regard to Council Tax, although collection is 
only marginally below target it is expected to be in line with expectations when 
residents pay amounts outstanding during the first months of 2016/17.  

 
4.17 New Homes Bonus 
 
 Members will recall that the New Homes Bonus (NHB) follows an October to 

September cycle. At this time, cumulative building growth is ahead of target 
which would, if this was the end of the cycle, reflect in higher NHB being 
awarded to the Council. It should be noted that the NHB scheme is currently 
being reviewed; the Council submitted its consultation response earlier this 
year and it is not expected that the government will announce its conclusions 
until late 2016. 

 
5. UPDATE ON THE COMMERCIAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
5.1 The Commercial Investment Strategy (CIS) was approved by Cabinet in 

September 2015 and the CIS Business Plan in December 2015. The 
implementation of the CIS is seen as a key means by which the Council can 
generate income to assist it in meeting the £3.6m 2020/21 forecast gap in the 
revenue budget. 

 
5.2 Investments 
 

Up to 31 March 2016, the Council has invested £3.9m in CIS related assets, 
made up of the following investments: 

  
 Revenue Investment 

1. December 2015 
CCLA Local Authority Mutual Investments Trust Property Fund* 
 Amount invested £2.5m 
 Gross dividend yield: 4.86% 
 Earmarked Reserves have been used to finance this investment 
* Churches, Charities and Local Authorities 

 
 Capital (Property) Investment 

2. January 2016 
No 2, Stonehill, Stukely Meadows, Huntingdon 
 Amount invested at time of purchase: £1.4m (including purchase costs 

of £57,746) 
 Modelled Return on Investment: 8% 
 Earmarked Reserves have been used to finance this investment which 

means that there will be no requirement for the Council to provide for 
future costs relating to Minimum Revenue Provision 

Return on Investment = income/(purchase cost + estimate of enhancements) 
 
In addition, the Council is currently completing on a further property outside of 
the Council area; however due to contractual considerations an update on this 
acquisition will be included in the next quarterly update. 

60



 
5.3 Governance 
 

The £2.5m CCLA investment was approved by Cabinet when the CIS 
Business Plan was approved in December. The £1.4m capital investment was 
approved via the Treasury & Capital Management Group, as per the 
requirements of the Disposals & Acquisitions Policy. 

 
The property which is outside the Council boundary exceeded the Cabinet 
threshold. An urgent Cabinet report was presented to Cabinet on the 21st April 
2016 approving the purchase of this investment. To ensure timely decisions 
are made (as required in an active property market), if investments continue to 
be above the Cabinet threshold it is anticipated that further use of the “urgent” 
provisions of the Constitution will be required. 

 
5.4 CIS Investment Investigations 
 

Between January and March 2015, the market was particularly quiet with the 
Council only investigating one other property. Since April, a further five 
properties have been investigated. The reasons for not investing range from 
the property being under offer through to a property being old and requiring 
considerable investment. 

 
In addition, the Council is also investigating wider cash investments including 
other Property Funds and Real Estate Investment Trusts (REIT’s). 
Conclusions of these investigations will be made to the Treasury & Capital 
Management Group.  

 
6. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANELS 
  
6.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Performance and Customers) received the 

Quarter 4 Integrated Performance Report and Provisional Outturn 2015/16 at 
its meeting held on 6th June 2016. Members noted that there had been an 
underspend in the area of Community Grants and have asked the Cabinet for 
further clarification for the underspend. 

 
6.2 In relation to the Budget Surplus Reserve the Panel were concerned that the 

Council had £805k that was not allocated and was therefore not being used 
effectively. The Panel recommends to the Cabinet that an informal working 
group comprising of Councillors Mrs A Dickinson, Mrs L A Duffy, T D 
Sanderson and J White be created to review the Budget Surplus Reserve and 
propose suggestions on how to use the reserve. 

 
6.3 In addition to the recommendations the Panel made the following comments: 

 •  St Neots Town Council and HDC need to communicate with each other 
in order to clarify how to progress the St Neots Market Town Centre 
Improvement Strategy.  

 •  Members were surprised at the level of sickness within the 
organisation and wanted reassurances that reducing sickness remains 
a Council priority.  

 •  The Council needs to ensure that the Council performs optimally when 
working on reducing the number of homeless people in the District.  

 •  The Panel would like reassurances that the major housing projects 
ongoing within the District will provide affordable housing for residents.  

 •  Through the Zero Based Budgeting process the Cabinet and Senior 
Officers should endeavour to remove budgets for ‘phantom’ personnel. 

  

61



7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Cabinet are recommended to consider and comment on progress made 

against Key Activities and Corporate Indicators in the Corporate Plan 2015/16 
and current projects, as summarised in Appendix A and detailed in 
Appendices B and C. 

 
7.2 Cabinet are recommended to consider and comment on the 2015/16 

Provisional Outturn, as detailed on page one of this report. 
 
7.3 Cabinet are also asked to approve the: 

i. deletion of 21 Earmarked Reserves (paragraph 4.11.1), 
ii. formation of 9 Earmarked Reserves (paragraph 4.11.2), 
iii. transfer of £0.244m from the Budget Surplus Reserve to the Collection 

Fund Reserve, and 
iv. transfer of £0.561m from the Budget Surplus Reserve to finance the 

Democratic & Organisational Governance and Efficiency initiatives. 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Corporate Plan Performance Monitoring (Appendices A and B) 
Daniel Buckridge, Policy, Performance & Transformation Manager (Scrutiny) 
 (01480) 388065 
 
Projects (Appendix C) 
Laura Lock, Programme and Project Manager 
 (01480) 388086 
 
Financial Performance (Appendix D) 
Graham Oliver, Interim Finance Manager 
 (01480) 388604 

62



 

Appendix A 
 

Performance Summary Quarter 4, 2015/16 
 

A strong local economy 
Making Huntingdonshire a better place to live, work and invest 

 

   
 
Highlights include the release of £10.5m of funding to deliver the iMET training centre at Alconbury Weald. 

 
Ensuring we are a customer focused and service led council 

Delivering value for money services 
 

   
 
Highlights include One Leisure posting a surplus for the first time ever, ending the year at over £420k surplus. 
 

Enabling sustainable growth 
Delivering new and appropriate housing with minimum impact on our environment 

 

   
 
Highlights include construction starting on the first phase of housing at Alconbury, comprising of 128 houses. 
 

Working with our communities 
Making sure they thrive and get involved with local decision making 

 

   
 
Highlights include the best ever total One Leisure Active Lifestyle attendances at 48,292, up 5% on last year. 
 

6 

Progress on key actions 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

Progress on corporate indicators 

3 

2 

1 2 

4 

Progress on current projects 

Closed

Green

Amber

Red

Pending

11 

Progress on key actions 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

13 
5 

1 1 

Progress on corporate indicators 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

3 

4 
1 

5 

Progress on current projects 

Closed

Green

Amber

Red

Pending

5 
3 

Progress on key actions 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

4 

3 

3 

Progress on corporate indicators 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

1 

3 

Progress on current projects 

Closed

Green

Amber

Red

Pending

11 

2 
1 

Progress on key actions 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

2 

3 

1 

Progress on corporate indicators 

Green

Amber

Red

Not due

1 1 

Progress on current projects 

Closed

Green

Amber

Red

Pending

There are no corporate indicators 
for this theme. 

63



 

CORPORATE PLAN – PERFORMANCE REPORT    Appendix B 
 

STRATEGIC THEME - A STRONG LOCAL ECONOMY 
 
Period January to March 2016 
 
Summary of progress for Key Actions 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
6 0 0 0 0 

 
Target dates do not necessarily reflect the final completion date. The date given may reflect the next milestone to be reached. 
 
Summary of progress for Corporate Indicators 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
0 0 0 0 0 

 
WE WANT TO: Accelerate business growth and investment 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Deliver a programme of themed business 
information clinics and events, and 
measure their impact 

Ongoing Cllr Harrison Andy Moffat Economic Development 
Q4- February Clinic attended by 14 companies. TWI (The 
Welding Institute) and Bedfordshire and Clayland LEADER 
programme presented grant and business support options.  3 
more participants to TWI scheme c. £10k per company benefit.  
Q3-The Welding Institute workshop well received with 3 of the 4 
companies signing up immediately for the support programme:  
value of specialist support offered c.£10k per company. 

G Report on the effectiveness of the fast 
track pre-application advice available to 
potential growing businesses 

Quarterly Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Development Management 
Q4- No more received. 
Q3-No enquiries received in Q3. One enquiry was received in 
Q2 which took longer to deal with than the target.  Procedures 
are being reviewed and the subsequent application is being fast-
tracked. 

64



WE WANT TO: Remove infrastructure barriers to growth 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Develop Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) governance structure 

March 2016 Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4-As Q3. 
Q3-New governance structure approved by Cabinet at its 
December 2015 meeting. 

G Influence the Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) to secure resource to facilitate 
delivery and mitigate the impact of new 
housing and to drive economic growth 

Ongoing Cllr Dew 
and Cllr 
Harrison 

Andy Moffat Economic Development 
Q4- Terms of Reference, structure and governance of this group 
drafted and ready to be taken to CPSB for ratification in June.  
Current uncertainty around devolution deals and how these will 
impact this mechanism. 
Q3-Meeting scheduled for 2016 for on-going dialogue with LEP.  
Lack of transparency over decisions to proceed/not to proceed 
with some projects. 

 
WE WANT TO: Develop a flexible and skilled local workforce 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Commit resources to ‘EDGE smarter skills 
for enterprise’, a public/private sector 
partnership to improve the business/ 
education-training skills match, ensuring 
that the agreed business plan targets are 
met 

Ongoing, 
official 
launch 
November 

Cllr Harrison Andy Moffat Economic Development 
Q4- Construction apprenticeship event held at EDGE shop – 49 
customers accessed EDGE services that day alone seeking 
employment in construction industries. Breheny, Hopkins Homes 
and RG Carter are participating employers. 
Q3-Two major events held: formal launch of EDGE at 
Westminster hosted by MP Jonathan Djanogly and Careers fair 
and business information event at Wood Green. Careers fair - 
120 attendees at breakfast event fully booked, 88 stands/ 
exhibits by providers and employers, 700 year 10+ students in 
attendance from all 7 secondary schools in the District.  
Evaluation data from surveys not yet available. 

G Work in partnership to identify skills and 
competency gaps in high value 
manufacturing and develop gap closure 
strategies 

May 2015 Cllr Harrison Andy Moffat Economic Development 
Q4- Full business case approved £10.5m of funding released for 
the delivery of the iMET training centre at Alconbury Weald.  
Q3-Further work on the full business case for iMET which has 
been approved by the LEP board and is now with the Skills 
Funding Agency for decision on final approval due in February 
2016. 

  

65



STRATEGIC THEME - ENSURING WE ARE A CUSTOMER FOCUSED AND SERVICE LED COUNCIL 
 
Period January to March 2016 
 
Summary of progress for Key Actions 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
11 0 0 0 0 

 
Target dates do not necessarily reflect the final completion date. The date given may reflect the next milestone to be reached. 
 
Summary of progress for Corporate Indicators 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
13 5 1 0 1 

 
WE WANT TO: Become more business-like and efficient in the way we deliver services 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Continue zero base budgeting (ZBB) for 
2016/17 including a ‘service challenge’ 
process 

December 
2015 

Cllr Gray Clive Mason Accountancy 
Q4-Tranche 2 and 3 were fully embedded into the 2016/17 
Budget and MTFS, which were approved by Council in February 
2016. 
Q3-Tranche 3 of the ZBB process was completed in November 
2015 with the Cabinet Star Chambers held on the 23rd and 24th 
November. The results of both Tranche 2 and 3 were reported to 
Cabinet in December 2015 and are now feeding into the 
2016/17 budget and MTFs process. 

G Deliver ‘Facing the Future’ (FtF) 
 

Ongoing Cllr Gray for 
programme / 
Various for 
themes and 
activities 

Adrian 
Dobbyne 

Corporate Team 
Q4- As Q3, no further action required. 
Q3-As Q2. Facing the Future activities have now been all fully 
assessed and broken down into new categorisations as either 
business as usual, projects or pending.  This means that the 
main reporting on activities is through normal service reporting 
and the newly established project reporting through Overview 
and Scrutiny Panels and Cabinet.  

66



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Develop full business cases for previously 
identified energy reduction projects across 
the Council’s estates 

31 March 
2016 

Cllr Gray Head of 
Operations 

Environment Team 
Q4-All investment grade audits have been completed. The 
tender process has begun and full Investment Grade Proposals 
(IGP’s) will be complete by the end of Q1 16/17, to be presented 
to the Finance Governance Board early in Q2. 
Q3-Full business case presented to CMT and approved in 
November 2015. Investment grade audits currently underway, 
due for completion by the end of Q4. 

G Carry out a staff satisfaction survey August 2015 Cllr 
Ablewhite 

Jo Lancaster Corporate Team 
Q4- Implementation of the action plan endorsed by Employment 
Panel is underway. Progress has been reviewed by the Culture 
and Constitution Governance Board and reported to staff. 
Q3-Following further consultation via services and a Council-
wide focus group to explore results at the appropriate level 
(possible due to greater detail provided by respondents), an 
action plan will be considered by Employment Panel in February. 

G Build and launch a new council website 
that focuses on customer need 

October 
2015 

Cllr Tysoe John Taylor IMD 
Q4- Customer feedback on new website continues to be 
positive. Our “report a missed bin” pages and form were ranked 
at the highest standard by 3rd party assessors in Feb 2016. We 
have developed Supertasks on the front page to highlight bin 
collection dates and Fitness/swimming timetables to customers. 
We are working on bringing a Councillor search to the front page 
as a Supertask. 82% of transactions completed online Nov-Jan. 
Q3- Site was launched in October, with a good reaction from 
Customers. “Love the new website, so fast and slick and full of 
useful information” – Example customer comment. 
320k page views to date. 75% speed increase, Cloud hosted, 
1357 fewer pages to maintain, reading age reduced by 6 years. 
Mobile Friendly layout, saves approx. £7k/year over old system. 

G Maximise the income generating potential 
of One Leisure sites to fully cover the cost 
of the operation 

March 2016 Cllr Howe Jayne Wisely One Leisure 
Q4- Income exceeded the previous year by nearly £300k and hit 
a record £6.9m. With expenditure levels also reduced (£200k), 
One Leisure posted a SURPLUS for the first time ever outturning 
at over £420K surplus – an improvement of nearly £0.5M. 
Q3-Income is £128K up on the previous year to date, which 
represents a slightly quieter Q3 than anticipated. However 
expenditure remains well in control and the end of year target of 
a net surplus of around £340K is still anticipated. 

67



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Develop a full business case for a 
Building Control Shared Service 

July 2015 Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Building Control 
Q4- A Business Case was approved at the July 2015 Cabinet 
meetings and the Shared Service went live on the 1st October 
2015.  A forward-looking Business Plan is being prepared. 
Q3-As Q2. The Shared Building Control Service went live on the 
1st October 2015 

G Publish Online Schedule of Proposed 
Procurements to promote future contract 
opportunities 

September 
2015 

Cllr Gray Clive Mason Procurement 
Q4-Schedule maintenance ongoing. 
Q3-Schedule published and will be populated as opportunities 
arise. 

G Provide two training events to local 
businesses in Public Procurement 

January 
2016 

Cllr Gray Clive Mason Procurement 
Q4-Due to the postponement of the event at Alconbury Weald a 
separate session was advertised to local business organisations 
and held at PFH on the 16th March. 
Q3-Second event co-ordinated with economic development as 
part of an event at Alconbury Weald on 12th February 2016. 

 
WE WANT TO: Ensure customer engagement drives service priorities and improvement 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q3 2015/16 

G Implement a consultation exercise with 
residents to inform 2016/2017 budget 
planning 

September 
2015 

Cllr Gray Adrian 
Dobbyne 

Corporate Team 
Q4- As Q3, no further action required this quarter. 
Q3-As Q2. Amber status is due to survey completion in October 
rather than September; however results were available in time to 
inform budgetary preparation. 

G Revisit and relaunch the Customer 
Service Strategy to ensure it continues to 
meet the needs of our customers and 
provide value for money services 

Mar 2016 Cllr Tysoe John Taylor Customer Services 
Q4- Heads of Service have completed their service plans and 
work is underway to collate the actions into a single statement of 
actions across the Council. 
Q3-The Strategy went through O&S and Cabinet and was 
approved in Dec2015.The strategy is now being communicated 
throughout the Council and all HoS are considering what actions 
to record in their Service Plans for 2016/17. All HoS must have a 
Customer Service component in their plans. 

68



Corporate Performance and Contextual Indicators 
 
Key to status 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
 

Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16  
Status 

Number of days to process new 
benefits claims 
 
Aim to minimise 

25 days 26 days 23.5 days G 

Number of days to process 
changes of circumstance 
 
Aim to minimise 

5 days 7 days 3.5 days G 

Number of days to process new 
council tax support claims 
 
Aim to minimise 

25 days 26 days 22.5 days G 

Number of days to process council 
tax support change events 
 
Aim to minimise 

6 days 7 days 4.8 days G 

Comments: (Customer Services) The team continues to encourage customers to claim benefit on-line and over 96% of claims in 2015/16 were made this way. In 
December 2015, we introduced an on-line form for customers to report changes of circumstance.  By March 2016, over 70% of changes were reported this way. 
 
% of Council Tax collected 
 
Aim to maximise 

98.4% 98.5% 98.5% G 

Comments: (Customer Services) Target met, due to the continued commitment of the Local Taxation Team. 
 
% of Business Rates collected 
 
Aim to maximise 

98.8% 99.0% 99.0% G 

Comments: (Customer Services) Target met, despite some significant losses caused by company insolvency during the year, over which we had no control. 
 

69



Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16  
Status 

The percentage of Benefit claims 
with overpayments where recovery 
action is taking place 
 
Aim to maximise 

New indicator for 2015/16 To be set (see comments) 93% n/a 

Comments: (Customer Services) This is a new indicator for 2015/16 and shows the work taking place to recover benefit overpayments from customers no longer in 
receipt of Housing Benefit. Data has been collected during the year to establish targets for 2016/17. Performance will never reach 100% as there is a statutory right of 
appeal against an overpayment decision which the statistics must take into account. All of this recovery work has now been consolidated under the Benefits Team and 
processes are in place to maximise recovery. This will be a service level performance indicator for 2016/17 onwards. 
Telephone satisfaction rates 
 
Aim to maximise 

98% 95% 94.3% A 

Customer service centre 
satisfaction rates 
 
Aim to maximise 

98% 95% 92.2% A 

Comments: (Customer Services) Our Call Centre result 94.3% of responses satisfied or very satisfied was slightly under target but almost there. At the CSC the result 
of 92.2% was affected by 85% of customers surveyed feeling they were seen quickly enough. We had staff shortages whilst going through a team restructure; however 
our new recruitment process will address this. We have set stretching targets on customer satisfaction, and we believe they can be met as the customer service team 
comes together and recruitment is completed. 
Staff sickness - working days lost 
per Full-Time Employee (FTE) 
 
Aim to minimise 

11.5 days 10 days 11.7 days R 

Comments: (LGSS HR service/Corporate Team) The results are really disappointing and show that, despite a significant amount of effort into providing analysis, 
information and management guidance, results have worsened since last year. There is clear evidence that there has been an improvement in how sickness is being 
managed and all long term cases are now reviewed individually each month by the Managing Director, however any change is not significant enough yet to impact on 
the overall figures. Reducing sickness absence has already been identified as a key priority for all in 2016/17. The target for 2016/17 has been set at 9 days per person. 
Subsidy per visit to council owned 
leisure facilities 
 
Aim to minimise 

-£0.03 £0.15 £0.19* G 

Comments: (Leisure and Health) With One Leisure Centres at St Ives, St Neots, Huntingdon and Ramsey all achieving a positive net cost per head, and Sawtry 
improving its position on the previous financial year, a healthy 19p per visit surplus sees the year end target easily surpassed. Income levels hit expected targets and 
expenditure continues to be well managed – although NNDR rebates contributed to the significant increase in saving at the end of the year. Attendances are stable and 
will continue to be monitored with development into key activities being introduced in the coming months. * Final outturn figure to be confirmed. 

70



Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16  
Status 

% of rent achievable on estates 
portfolio 
 
Aim to maximise 

97% 100% 99% A 

Comments: (Resources) Total rental income potential is increasing with recent acquisitions and some continued progress on rent reviews / lease renewals (higher rents 
achieved) – this continues to be reflective of improved economic conditions and strategies implemented. Rent arrears have been reduced and this assists rent 
achievable (as these are deducted from rent total along with void unit rental). 
% of space let on estates portfolio 
 
Aim to maximise 

97% 95% 98% G 

Comments: (Resources) The lettings market for industrial continues to be in high demand (Levellers Lane and Alms Close estates). 
 
The nightclub in Huntingdon continues to be challenging to let and the remaining space is an industrial unit at Caxton Road, St Ives. The marketing of the Caxton Road 
industrial estate is to be outsourced to help achieve a letting. 
% of rent arrears on estates 
portfolio 
 
Aim to minimise 

1.3% <1% <1% G 

Comments: (Resources) Rent arrears in March 2016 were £19,191 (after arrears instructed to legal for recovery and arrears on repayment plans being honoured for at 
least 3 months have been deducted). This is against a total billable income of £1,926,830 equating to 0.99% rent in arrears at end of 4th Quarter. 
Total amount of energy used in 
Council buildings 
 
Aim to minimise 

12,138,166 (kWh) 11,895,403 (kWh) 
(2%↓) 

12,009,111 (kWh)* 
(1%↓) A 

Comments: (Operations) The full year 2014/15 performance has been updated to reflect amended electricity data where estimated bills have been rectified.  
* The figure for 2015/16 is missing electricity data for One Leisure Huntingdon Wet Side (March 2016). Figures will be amended once utility companies have provided 
the information. 
 
We have achieved a 1% reduction in energy use this financial year although the full 2% has not been achieved. This is due to the fact that all efficiency works have 
been placed on hold while the new REFIT programme is established. 
Total fuel used from the Council’s 
fleet of vehicles 
 
Aim to minimise 

552,686 (Litres) 547,159 (Litres) 
(1% ↓) 533,772 (Litres) G 

Comments: (Operations) Fuel usage in line with reduction target. 
 

71



Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16  
Status 

% of residents satisfied with the 
overall waste collection service 
 
Aim to maximise 

n/a – new measure TBC 94% G 

Comments: (Operations) Online survey conducted over a 6 week period in Dec/Jan 15/16. Results include all good, satisfied, no opinion and blank responses received. 
Cost per household of waste 
collection 
 
Aim to minimise 

£44.49 TBC £48.52 A 

Comments: (Operations) The increase in the cost of providing this service is due to increased capital costs (£170k), increased internal charges (£104k) and recycling 
gate fee and recycling credits (£80k). 
% of green bin debt outstanding 
after three months 
 
Aim to minimise 

15.46% <5% 0% G 

Comments: (Operations) At the year end, debt relating to invoices issued but not paid where an additional green bin was not provided to the customer was credited 
back on the system. On that basis, there was “£0” debt greater than 3 months as at 31st March 2016, meaning that 0% of the debt fell into this category. 
% of invoices from suppliers paid 
within thirty days 
 
Aim to maximise 

98.5% 98% 98.8% G 

Comments: (Resources) The outturn percentage has exceeded the previous year’s performance this steady marginal improvement still expected. 
  

72



STRATEGIC THEME - ENABLE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH 
 
Period January to March 2016 
 
Summary of progress for Key Actions 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
5 0 3 0 0 

 
Target dates do not necessarily reflect the final completion date. The date given may reflect the next milestone to be reached. 
 
Summary of progress for Corporate Indicators 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
4 3 3 0 0 

 
WE WANT TO: Improve the supply of new and affordable housing to meet future needs 
 
Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 

Holder 
Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Invest in initiatives that will deliver 
affordable housing 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Housing Strategy 
Q4- 4 loan payments have been made to Luminus for St Ives extra 
care. 
Q3-The first loan payment has been made from HDC to Luminus. 

G Implement action plan to adopt the Local 
Plan 2036 

Revised 
Local 
Development 
Scheme, 
setting out 
timescales 
for the Plan, 
to be 
prepared  
over Summer 
2015 
 
 

Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4- Quarterly report received and new Local Development Scheme 
(the programme to deliver the Local Plan) approved at March 2016 
Cabinet meeting. 
Q3-At its November 2015 meeting, Cabinet endorsed the proposed 
way forward to ensure that the Council is able to meet the 
Government requirement to have written a Local Plan by early 2017 
and, as a priority, scopes the infrastructure requirements for Wyton 
Airfield. 

73



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Facilitate delivery of new housing on the 
large strategic sites at: Alconbury, St 
Neots, Wyton and Bearscroft 
(Godmanchester) 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Development Management, Planning Policy, Economic 
Development and Housing Strategy 
Q4-Alconbury – First phase of housing comprising 128 houses 
under construction.  Discussions underway with two housebuilders 
for a further c.500 dwellings. 
St Neots – Minded to refuse application for 2800 houses at 
Wintringham Park (part of St Neots East) on the basis that 
insufficient affordable housing is being proposed as part of the 
development.  Awaiting submission of viability information for Loves 
Farm East (the other part of St Neots East). 
Wyton – As Q3 update.  Awaiting re-validation of County Council’s 
Sub-Regional Transport model to allow modelling of transport 
impacts and required mitigation of Local Plan allocations including 
Wyton Airfield. 
Bearscroft – Construction of first houses expected to commence in 
April 2016. 
Q3–Alconbury – Reserved matters consent granted for Phase 1. 
St Neots – Further information received from applicants in late 
December on viability being considered. 
Wyton – Discussions continuing on highway matters.  Discussions 
begun on public rights of way, education, and formal open space 
provision. 
Bearscroft – Reserved matters consent for first tranche approved.  
Development on highways and grounds works begun. 

G Monitor 5 year housing land supply 
position on an annual basis and carry 
out light touch reviews on a quarterly 
basis 

Quarterly Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Development Management and Planning Policy 
Q4- Annual position is as Q3. In February 2016, the planning 
inspector for an appeal at Pidley endorsed HDC’s methodology for 
calculating the 5 year supply in the AMR and concluded that ‘the 
Council’s approach to assessing its housing land supply, in 
principle, is robust’. Quarterly reports provided to Corporate 
Management Team. 
Q3-Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) published in December 2015 
demonstrating that the District Council continues to have a 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing land. 

G Review Council assets to identify which 
could be used to facilitate affordable 
housing and dispose to appropriate 
partners 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Housing Strategy 
Q4- Development commenced for 11 affordable dwellings on 
Hermitage Road, Earith site. 
Q3-Planning application approved for development at Hermitage 
Road, Earith at DMP in December.  

74



WE WANT TO: Develop sustainable growth opportunities in and around our market towns 
 
Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 

Holder 
Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

R Develop a market town centre 
improvement strategy and action plan 
for St Neots 

March 2016 Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4- As Q3. Officers will welcome discussions with the Town 
Council but this has not been carried forward as a specific action for 
the District Council in the Corporate Plan 2016-2018. 
Q3-Prioritisation of other Planning Policy work has meant that work 
has not begun. The purpose of a strategy and plan will be reviewed 
in light of the referendum result on the St Neots Neighbourhood 
Plan taking place in February 2016. 

 
WE WANT TO: Enhance our built and green environment 
 
Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 

Holder 
Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

R Update the ‘Buildings at Risk’ register March 2016 Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4- As Q3. Given resources and other work pressures, this has not 
been carried forward as an action in the Corporate Plan 2016-2018. 
Q3-All listed buildings in 3 Parishes surveyed. Other urgent matters, 
particularly enforcement matters, have meant further survey work 
has not been done. 

R Complete the updated Design Guide, 
setting out the Council’s requirements of 
new development 

March 2016 Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4- Prioritisation of other Planning Policy work meant that the work 
to complete all the pictures and diagrams, and up-to-date links, in 
the document has not yet been completed. This will be completed in 
2016-2017. 
Q3-Prioritisation of other Planning Policy work has meant that 
consultation on the document is now anticipated to begin in Q4 to 
be followed by consideration of consultation responses after the 
closing date. 

75



Corporate Performance and Contextual Indicators 
 
Key to status 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
 

Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16 
Status 

Number of affordable homes 
delivered gross 
 
Aim to maximise 

161 61 49 R 

Comment: (Development) Development viability and changes in Government policy have continued to make the delivery of affordable homes challenging. 
Net additional homes delivered 
 
Aim to maximise 

515 840 See Comment below A 

Comment: (Development) The annual 2015/16 target of 840 was the total number of dwellings to be provided over the entire Local Plan period divided by the number of 
years. The trajectory data in the Annual Monitoring Report December 2015 projects that 541 dwellings will be completed in 2015/16 rising to 940 and 1214 in 2016/17 
and 2017/18 respectively. The final figure of 515 for 2014/15 and the projected figure of 541 for 2015/16 are in line with the 507 and 547 respectively projected in the 
Annual Monitoring Report 2014. 
 
The Annual Monitoring Report December 2015 and a recent planning appeal decision continue to indicate that the District Council has the requisite 5 year housing land 
supply. 
Number of unintentional priority 
homeless acceptances 
(Cumulative fig for the year) 
 
Aim to minimise 

210 220 248 R 

Number of unintentional priority 
homeless acceptances per 1,000 
households 
(Cumulative fig for the year) 
 
Aim to minimise 

2.9 3.0 3.4 R 

Comment: (Customer Services) In common with the national trend, there has been an increase in the number of homeless acceptances. Whilst no two cases are the 
same, the most common reason for this increase is the termination of tenancies in the private rented sector with people who are unable to find affordable alternative 
housing. The team take all prevention measures appropriate – however the delivery of new affordable housing is a crucial ingredient to helping resolve homelessness. 

76



Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16 
Status 

Number of households living in 
temporary accommodation 
(including B&B) – snapshot 
 
Aim to minimise 

102 110 108 G 

Comment: (Customer Services) As homelessness increases, the risk is that more households will enter temporary accommodation. 
Number of families in B&B - 
snapshot 
 
Aim to minimise 

9 10 23 A 

Comment: (Customer Services) For the first three quarters of the year, performance was within target. However, the increases in homelessness in Q4 together with 
limited throughput in temporary accommodation has resulted in increased use of B&B in Q4 – giving an annual outturn of Amber status. Officers continue to take all 
measures to avoid using B&B. 
Processing of planning applications 
on target - major (within 13 weeks) 
 
Aim to maximise 

49% 60% 37% (81%) G 

Processing of planning applications 
on target - minor (within 8 weeks) 
 
Aim to maximise 

43% 65% 
for Q2-Q4 37% (68%) G 

Processing of planning applications 
on target – other (within 8 weeks) 
 
Aim to maximise 

65% 80% 
for Q2-Q4 67% (81%) G 

Comment: (Development) Local Planning Authorities now have to report to DCLG based on the percentage of each type of application determined within 13 weeks for 
major applications and 8 weeks for other types of applications or any other statutory period as agreed with the applicant through extensions of times or Planning 
Performance Agreement, rather than the previous indicator of percentage determined within 13 weeks (major) or 8 weeks (minor and other) only.  The performance 
figures in brackets are the ones now reported to DCLG and used to determine the outturn status, with the preceding figures showing the percentage determined within 
13 weeks (majors) or 8 weeks (minor and other). 
Tonnage of residual waste 
collected 
 
Aim to minimise 

29,803.09 (tonnes) 29,303 (tonnes) 
(1%↓) 29,961 (tonnes) A 

Comment: (Operations) 0.5% increase from previous year through household growth in the district. 

77



STRATEGIC THEME - WORKING WITH OUR COMMUNITIES 
 
Period January to March 2016 
 
Summary of progress for Key Actions 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
11 2 1 0 0 

 
Target dates do not necessarily reflect the final completion date. The date given may reflect the next milestone to be reached. 
 
Summary of progress for Corporate Indicators 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
2 3 1 0 0 

 
WE WANT TO: Create safer, stronger and more resilient communities 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Continue to manage and enhance the 
joint CCTV service with Cambridge City 
Council 

March 2016 Cllr Howe Chris 
Stopford 

CCTV 
Q4-The shared service continues to explore the opportunities for 
commercialisation and income generation, with aspirations 
initially to make the service ‘cost neutral’ but then to progress to 
a full commercial service. The provision of monitoring to the 
market continues to be marketed, with two customers engaged 
with the service and two more customers in active discussion 
with the service. The 2014/15 budget out-turn position showed 
that the Shared Service had saved £98k from the original base 
budgets of the two Councils (£49k for each Council) 
Q3-A new temporary customer has been secured for a short 
term contract which it is hoped will expand into a longer 
relationship. Work on commercialisation of the CCTV Service 
continues with a number of meetings scheduled in the next 
quarter to enable key decisions to be made to establish the way 
ahead. 
 

78



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Increase the use of fixed penalty notices 
(FPN) for littering 

March 2016 Cllr Carter Chris 
Stopford 

Street Scene 
Q4- 9 FPNs issued in Q4, therefore annual target has been met 
(28 issued in total for 2015/16). 
Q3-26 FPNs issued to the end of Q3 2015/16 (19 issued in total 
in 2014/15). 

G Manage the Community Chest to 
encourage and promote projects to build 
and support community development 

September 
2015 

Cllr Harrison Chris 
Stopford 

Community 
Q4- 100% of awards paid.  
Q3- 98.4% (£59,060) of 2015-16 awards made paid to date. 

A Deliver diversionary activities for young 
people 

March 2016 Cllr Howe Jayne Wisely Sports and Active Lifestyles Team 
Q4- Street Sports had a good last quarter despite the weather 
and dark nights. Overall performance is down 12% on previous 
year but significantly better than earlier in the year due to actions 
put in place. Environment remains challenging with staffing 
resources stretched due to resignation of postholder in period. 
Despite this, performance improved and continued into 2016/17. 
Q3-Street Sports upturned through the last quarter especially at 
Godmanchester. October half term affected by inclement 
weather but steady attendances. New street sport programme 
launched in January 2016. Whilst overall target remains 
challenging the gap has reduced. 

R Further analysis of our current partnership 
commitments to deliver value for money 
and ensure alignment with the corporate 
priorities 

September 
2015 

Cllr 
Ablewhite 

Adrian 
Dobbyne 

Corporate Team 
Q4- A limited further analysis took place but work to produce a 
final report is not complete and will continue into Q1 2016/17. 
Q3-Further analysis took place during Q3 and an initial report 
has been drafted. Next steps are still to be agreed so this action 
will continue into Q4. 

 
WE WANT TO: Improve health and well-being 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Increase physical activity levels through 
the provision of activities in One Leisure 
sites and in community settings 

March 2016 Cllr Howe Jayne Wisely One Leisure and Sports & Active Lifestyles teams 
Q4- Admissions remained constant throughout Q4 and achieved 
similar levels to the previous financial year. It was clear that 
competition in both St Neots and Huntingdon continued to affect 
fitness studio related attendances, however other key activities 
such as swimming and outdoor activities saw an increase on the 
previous years.  

79



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

Q3-Previous trends in Q2 continue with admissions still ahead of 
the previous year in general. Fitness Studio competition in 
Huntingdon and St Neots is however a concern as membership 
sales start to drop below targets. 
 
Sport & Active Lifestyles 
Q4- Service achieved best ever overall attendances at 48,292, 
up 5% on the previous years. Group exercise classes, exercise 
referral, adult sports activities, disabled sports and PEDALS all 
achieved best ever results independently.  
Q3-Attendances up 4% on the previous year overall and 
heading for another record high. Physical activity programmes 
including Strength and Balance classes and Cardiac 
Rehabilitation, PEDALS adapted bikes and Adult Sports Tasters 
and Courses strongest individual performers. 

G Support healthy lifestyles through the 
provision of open space on new 
developments and maintenance of 
existing open spaces 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Development Management 
Q4- Open space was negotiated where relevant in line with the 
Local Plan policy. 
Q3-As Q2. Open space was negotiated where relevant in line 
with the Local Plan policy. 

G Prevent homelessness where possible by 
helping households either remain in their 
current home or find alternative housing, 
with the assistance of the Council’s Rent 
Deposit Scheme where appropriate 

Ongoing Cllr Tysoe John Taylor Housing Needs 
Q4- 49 successful homelessness preventions in Q4. 
Q3-Prevented 96 households from becoming homeless in Q3. 

G Assist non priority single homeless people 
with housing options through the 
Cambridgeshire Single Homelessness 
Service 

Ongoing Cllr Tysoe John Taylor Housing Needs 
Q4- 17 single homeless referrals resulting in 8 people securing 
accommodation through this service. 
Q3-18 single homeless people referred to this service in Q3 
resulting in 5 placements in accommodation.  

G Provide a responsive Disabled Facility 
Grants programme 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Housing Strategy 
Q4- 60 DFGs completed in Q4 bringing the year end total to 179. 
Q3-51 DFGs completed in Q3, the cumulative total is 119. 

A Enable a new extra care scheme to be 
built to meet needs in St Ives and Ramsey 

Ongoing Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Housing Strategy 
Q4- St Ives construction of the extra care scheme is on target.  
Ramsey is on hold pending outcome of Government decision on 
rent policy for supported housing which is currently rendering the 
scheme undeliverable. 

80



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

Q3-Langley Court, St Ives – construction underway. 
Ramsey – scheme being appraised by another partner and it is 
only viable with considerable grant funding (£2.5-3m).  Further 
bid rounds from HCA / DoH will be investigated. 

G Reduce fuel poverty and improve health 
by maximising the number of residents 
taking up the grant funded Action on 
Energy scheme 

30 

September 
2015 

Cllr Carter Head of 
Operations 

Environment Team 
Q4- Target exceeded by Q2, Action on Energy scheme no 
longer available and Green Deal scheme closed by Central 
Government. Currently no grant schemes available. 
Q3-Target of 200 home energy assessments already exceeded. 
Scheme no longer available to new householders (226 
assessments undertaken as of end of Q2). 

 
WE WANT TO: Empower local communities 
 

Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

G Set out our ‘community planning’ offer and 
support community planning including 
working with parishes to complete 
neighbourhood and parish plans 

December 
2015 (for 
report on 
‘community 
planning’ 
offer) 

Cllr Dew Andy Moffat Planning Policy 
Q4- Approval of process and Guide as stated in Q3 update.  
Neighbourhood Planning Activity in Q4: St Neots Neighbourhood 
Plan was made at the February 2016 Council meeting; and, in 
light of the Examiner concluding that the Houghton and Wyton 
Neighbourhood Plan did not meet the basic conditions, 
discussions continue to seek to agree how the Plan could be 
amended to meet these conditions. 
Q3-The Process Following Receipt of an Examiner’s Report into 
a Neighbourhood Plan was agreed at the November 2015 
Cabinet meeting. The Neighbourhood and Community Planning 
Guide was approved at the December 2015 Cabinet meeting.  
Neighbourhood Planning Activity in Q3: 

 Cabinet resolved that the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 
should progress to referendum.  

 Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan Examiner’s 
Report received. 

G Review control and management of 
Council assets 

TBC Cllr Gray Clive Mason Estates 
Q4- 1) Quality checking in progress with Uniform data 
2) Capital Bids approved for roof replacement projects – for 
completion in 2016/2017 
3) Asset Register being maintained and updated as needed 

81



Status Key Actions for 2015/16 Target date Portfolio 
Holder 

Head of  
Service 

Progress Update – Q4 / end of year 2015/16 

Q3- 1) The Uniform database is Operational. Priority data 
uploaded and focus moved to secondary data quality checking. 
2) 5 year Repair and Maintenance programme implemented. 
Capital bids submitted. Focus on service charge implementation. 

 
 
Corporate Performance and Contextual Indicators 
 
Key to status 
 

G Progress is on track A Progress is within 
acceptable variance R Progress is behind 

schedule ? Awaiting progress 
update n/a Not applicable to state 

progress 
 

Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16 
Status 

Number of missed bins per 
100,000 households 
 
Aim to minimise 

36 35 40 A 

Comments: (Operations) Q1 = 37, Q2 = 33.4, Q3 = 33.58 and Q4 = 56.27. The status shown is amber as the acceptable variance for this indicator is 45. 
Percentage of household waste 
recycled or composted 
 
Aim to maximise 

56.66% 57.66% 56% A 

Comments: (Operations) Our aim is to keep recycling above 55% so although a slight reduction we are above our required minimum. 
% of food establishments in the 
district that are ‘broadly compliant 
with food hygiene law’ 
 
Aim to maximise 

96.11% 95% 96.7% G 

Comments: (Community) As at the 31st March 2016, the Council had 1,333 registered food businesses. Of these,1,289 were considered to be broadly compliant with 
food hygene legislation following a range of inspections and interventions over the year. This is an improvement from the 2014/15 performance indicator out-turn of 
96.1% and represents an overall improvement in the food businesses across Huntingdonshire. This has, in some part, been supported by the business advice, training 
and support being provided by the Community teams. 
 
The Food Standards Agency Annual Report on UK Local Authority Food Law Enforcement 2014/15, states that on the 31st March 2015 the national average for broadly 
compliant was 93%. 

82



Performance Indicator 
 

Full Year 
2014/15 

Performance 

Annual 
2015/16 
Target 

Outturn 
2015/16 

Performance 

Outturn 
2015/16 
Status 

Number of Disabled Facilities 
Grants (DFGs) completed 
 
Aim to maximise 

207 200 179 A 

Comments: (Development) This is a volume indicator rather than an indicator of performance. 
Disabled Facilities Grants – 
Average time (in weeks) between 
date of referral to practical 
completion for minor jobs up to 
£10k 
 
Aim to minimise 

25.75 weeks 26 weeks 33.4 weeks R 

Comments: (Development) This reflects the performance of the shared Home Improvement Agency (HIA) service which is provided by Cambridge City Council on our 
behalf. The increased time taken is a result of additional regulatory requirements (Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015), surveyor capacity and 
because more variations to schemes are being agreed as part of applications rather than closing them and then starting new applications. The HIA Management Board 
is monitoriong performance and additional temporary staff resources will be brought in. 
Percentage of all reported 
dangerous structures inspected 
within 24 hours 
 
Aim to maximise 

100% 100% 100% G 

Comments: (Development) 19 dangerous structures were reported in 2015/16. 
 
 

83



Appendix C – Project Performance 
 

Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM Target End 
Date 

Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments RAG 

Status 
Latest 

Update Date 

Leisure Invest to Save Opportunities 
Explore further opportunities for invest to 
save schemes including the conversion of 
synthetic pitch at St Neots. 

Facing the 
Future 

Clarke, Jon 
(Leisure) 

30/09/15 04/04/16 

There have been delays in the project 
commencement due to last minute 
negotiations with St Neots Learning 
Partnership on the terms of the Lease 
agreement.  As part of the Sport 
England (SE) funding agreement, there 
is a requirement for a 21 year period 
security of tenure.  These negotiations 
are ongoing and without this 21 year 
period (without break clauses) we are 
unable to draw down the SE funding.   

Project has a RED status by the PM for 
the reasons outlined above. 

Red Within last 
month 

Phoenix Industrial Unit Roof 
Replace industrial roofs to address H & S 
and fulfil Council obligations. 

Capital 
2015/16 

Tilah, Bill 
(Facilities) 31/05/16  31/03/16  

Project delayed due to difficulties with 
PM recruitment and powerline issues – 
to roll over into Capital 2016/17 
budget. Project site has been updated 
recently.  
 
Project has a RED status as classified 
by the PM due to outstanding 
difficulties and project being overdue 
compared to the planned completion 
date. 
 
 

Red 
Within last 

month 

84



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

Octagon 
To allow for additional cladding, electrical 
work and security provisions £50,000 is 
considered appropriate. 

Capital 
2015/16 

Tilah, Bill 
(Estates) 31/03/16 23/05/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation. There 
have been delays due to external 
factors (contractors and weather) but 
the contractor has now agreed a 
programme of works which schedules 
completion for w/c 23 May.  This is 
pessimistic programme with allowance 
for some bad weather.  They have 
been chased to provide extra 
resources to reduce this timescale. 

 
Project has an AMBER status as 
classified by the PM due to outstanding 
difficulties and project being overdue 
compared to the planned completion 
date. 

Amber Within last 
month 

Business Intelligence Solutions 
To deliver a corporate solution that 
comprises a set of techniques and tools for 
the transformation of raw data into 
meaningful and useful information for 
business analysis purposes. 

Cross-Cutting 
Roberts, Anthony 

(Corporate 
Team) 

31/03/16  31/05/16  

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

Project has an AMBER status as 
classified by the PM due to project 
being overdue compared to the 
planned completion date. 

Amber Within last 
month 

85



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

One Leisure Alconbury Weald Club 
To create and deliver a management 
agreement that will see One Leisure manage 
the fitness club to be opened in the 
Alconbury Weald Club building. 

Leisure & Health Gray, Brian 
(Leisure) 31/12/15  05/09/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

On track from HDC perspective 
however, project is delayed by Client. 

Amber Within last 
month 

Call Centre & CSC Provision 
Examine the future provision by the Call 
Centre and CSC at PFH. Include an 
assessment of performance standards and 
the business case for moving and merging 
the teams. 

Facing the 
Future 

Greet, Michelle 
(Customer 
Service) 

31/03/16 31/05/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

The move will now be completed by 
end of May.  
 
Project remains GREEN despite 
slippage as delay was known well in 
advance and managed appropriately.  

Green Within last 
month 

Council Tax Automated Forms 
Introduce automated forms into business 
systems. 

Facing the 
Future 

Davies, Ian 
(Recovery) 31/03/16 30/06/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation. Project 
Board meeting held 14th April. 5th May 
editing forms in progress.  
 
Project remains GREEN despite 
slippage as Project Chair agrees target 
deadline was unrealistic.  

Green Within last 
month 

Resource Booking 
To explore options and procure a new room 
booking system for internal and third party 
use 

3C Shared 
Services 

Day, Steph 
(IMD) 30/09/16 30/09/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

Change of PM in March to PM within 
3C therefore this project will no longer 
appear on the Quarterly Report.  
 

Green Within last 
month 

86



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

Salix Projects 
Salix revolving fund to finance energy 
efficiency measures within Council owned 
buildings. 

Capital 
2015/16 

Blackwell, Julia 
(Environment) 31/03/16  31/03/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

Management now under Capital 
2016/17. 

Green Within last 
month 

Re:Fit 
Energy efficiency project regarding major 
works across One Leisure sites. 

Capital 
2015/16 

Blackwell, Julia 
(Environment) 03/04/17 03/04/17 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

Management now under Capital 
2016/17. 

Green 
Within last 

month 

CAB Move to PFH  
Move Citizens Advice (Rural Cambs) 
Huntingdon into front and back office space 
at Pathfinder House. 

Accommodation 
Group 

Lauren Wilby 
(Corporate 

Team) 
30/06/16 30/06/16 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

Agreed move date of 1st July, fully 
operational on 4th July. License terms 
initially discussed. Discussions with 
Risk and Insurance Officer. 
 

Green Within last 
month 

  

87



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

iMET 
Support for HRC's full business case 
development and submission to GCGPEP 
and the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) for 
£10.5m for the construction of a technical 
skills centre on the EZ 
 

Development 
Bedlow, Susan 
(Development) 01/07/17 01/07/17 

Project site has been recently updated 
and has key documentation.  

The full business case has now been 
approved by the SFA and the LEP 
board has approved the release of the 
funding.  Minister visited the site on 1st 
April to formally sign the funding 
agreement.  State Aid issues still to be 
clarified, appointment of sufficiently 
capable business development 
manager critical to delivery of the 
curriculum and operation of the 
building once complete 

Green 
Within last 

month 

CIL/S106 Idox Implementation 
To implement UNIFORM CIL module and 
Obligation Tracker for CIL, this includes 
Outlook Integration and Access Reports 

Cross-Cutting Alterton, Emma 
(IMD) 30/11/13 01/04/16 

Solution is in place. CDR submitted to 
Project Chair for approval. Pending 

Closure 
Within last 

month 

Commercial Investment Strategy Review 
and Implementation 
Deliver a strategic review of Industrial and 
Commercial stocks 

Facing the 
Future 

Tilah, Bill 
(Estates) 30/09/15 31/03/16 

Strategy in place. CDR submitted to 
Project Chair for approval. Pending 

Closure 
Within last 

month 

Cambridgeshire Anti-Fraud Network 
Fraud deterrence and prevention, improved 
investigations processes and a joint 
approach to investigations by shared use of 
intelligence, data and technology 

Customer 
Services 

Roberts, Anthony 
(Corporate 

Team) 
31/03/16 31/03/16 

Lots of documentation, Project 
Libraries have been updated recently.  
Project Board met 25th Jan. Project has 
delivered all objectives but there are 
ongoing processes that will continue as 
BAU. CDR expected shortly. 
 

Pending 
Closure 

Within last 
month 

88



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

Pedals Scheme 
Add new bikes to PEDALS pool of adapted 
bikes 

Capital 
2015/16 

Grey, Martin 
(Lifestyles) 31/03/16 31/03/16 

Bikes received and invoices have been 
processed. Documentation updated 
regularly by PM. Project objective 
delivered.  CDR to be approved.  

Pending 
Closure  

Within last 
month 

One Leisure Replacement Equipment 
Maintain standards and income levels, to 
ensure equipment remains fit for purpose 
and safe to use. 

Capital Gray, Brian  
(Leisure) 

01/03/16 01/03/16 

Objectives have been achieved.  CDR 
expected shortly. Pending 

Closure 
Within last 

month 

Benefits Online Changes 
To provide an intelligent online form with 
back office integration for customers to 
report changes in their Housing Benefit & 
Council Tax Support 

Customer 
Service 

Huggins, Barnes 
(Rev. Serv.) 30/09/15 30/11/15 

The online form has now been live for 
four complete months and over 800 
exchange forms have now been 
submitted.  No major issues have been 
identified but full back office integration 
still remains to be introduced.  The full 
back office integration will now be 
completed under business as 
usual.  Therefore, this project will be 
closed down shortly with project 
closure documents currently being 
drawn up. 

Pending 
Closure 

Within last 
month 

Loves Farm Community Building 
Delivery of new Loves Farm Community 
building in conjunction with CCC for a pre-
school building. 

Community Allen, Chris 
(Projects) 31/07/15 18/09/15 

CDR submitted to Project Chair for 
approval. Pending 

Closure 
Within last 

month 

One Leisure Huntingdon Development 
Improvements to service and facility to meet 
increased demand and future proof OLH 
against increased competition and customer 
expectations. 

Capital 2016/17 France, Paul 
(One Leisure) - - 

Business Case not yet approved by 
Finance Governance Board. 
 
 
 
 

Pending 
Approval  

89



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

CCTV Pathfinder House Resilience Capital 2016/17 Stopford, Chris 
(Community) - - Business Case not yet approved by 

Finance Governance Board. 
Pending 
Approval  

CCTV Wi-Fi Capital 2016/17 Stopford, Chris 
(Community) - - Business Case not yet approved by 

Finance Governance Board. 
Pending 
Approval  

Lone Worker Software 
Capital 2016/17 

Stopford, Chris 
(Community) - - 

Business Case not yet approved by 
Finance Governance Board. 

Pending 
Approval  

Building Foundations for growth grant 
underspend project 
To determine the best VFM use for the c. 
£2m underspend/clawback on this capital 
grant fund 

Development Bedlow, Susan 
(Development) - - 

TWI bid for EU Funding submitted 

Pending 
Approval  

IT Shared Service 
To bring together HDC, SCDC and Cambs 
City IT departments and implement a new 
structure. 

Shared Service Alterton, Emma 
(IMD) 01/10/15 01/04/16 

Shared Services lessons learned 
document shared with PMGB and 
PMGB agreed to close project. Project 
is therefore closed. 

Closed Within last 
month 

Building Control Shared Service 
To bring together HDC, SCDC and Cambs 
City Building Control departments.  

Shared Service Cambridge City 
Council 01/10/15 01/10/15 

Shared Services lessons learned 
document shared with PMGB and 
PMGB agreed to close project. Project 
is therefore closed.  

Closed Within last 
month 

Legal Shared Service 
To bring together HDC, SCDC and Cambs 
City Legal departments 

Shared Service Cambridge City 
Council 01/10/15 01/10/15 

Shared Services lessons learned 
document shared with PMGB and 
PMGB agreed to close project. Project 
is therefore closed. 

Closed Within last 
month 

OL Membership Software Procurement 
To procure a contract to deliver and support 
a membership management system which 
covers EPOS, Bookings, Subscriptions, 
Access Control (this list is not exhaustive 

Leisure & Health Corley, Pete 
(Leisure Ser.) 30/09/15 31/03/16 

CDR approved by Project Board and 
PMGB. Project is therefore closed.  
 
 
 
 

Closed Within last 
month 

90



Red = 
Progress is behind schedule or 
lack of governance information 

Amber = 
Progress is within 

acceptable variance 

Green = 
Progress is 

on track 

Pending Closure = 
In close-down 

stage 

Pending Approval = 
Business Case 
to be approved 

Closed = 
Project is closed. Closedown report 

approved by Project Board and Project 
Management Governance Board. 

 

  
 

Title and purpose of project Programme PM 
Target End 

Date 
Expected 
End Date Programme Office comments 

RAG 
Status 

Latest 
Update Date 

“End of Lane” waste collection policy 
Analyse the implications of introducing an 
“End of Lane” waste collection policy 

Facing the 
Future 

Gordon, Beth 
(Operations) 30/08/15 31/03/16 

CDR approved by Project Board and 
PMGB. Project is therefore closed.  
 

Closed Within last 
month 

Huntingdon West 
Regeneration of Huntington Town Centre Community 

Allen, Chris 
(Projects) 31/08/15 01/07/16 

CDR approved by Project Board and 
PMGB. Project is therefore closed.  Closed 

Within last 
month 

Chequers Court 
Project to enable development of Chequers 
Court. 

Community Allen, Chris 
(Projects) 18/12/2015 - 

CDR approved by Project Board and 
PMGB. Project is therefore closed.  Closed Within last 

month 

 

91



 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Performance Monitoring Suite 
March 2016 – Provisional Outturn 2015/16 

 
Contents 
 
1. Financial Performance Headlines    ......................................................... 1 

 
2. Revenue and Reserve Forecast   …………………................................... 2 

 
3. Service Commentary …………………………………................................ 3 

 
4. Capital programme ……………………………………................................ 6 

 
5. Financial Dashboard................................................................................. 9 
 
Prepared By: 
Sue Martin, Principal Accountant 
Oliver Colbert, Principal Accountant (Technical) 
 
1. Financial Performance Headlines  

 
Revenue Provisional Net service outturn is £17.1m, giving an estimated saving 

against the updated budget of £2.0m.  After adjusting for the planned 
budget surplus, this has increased the service contribution to reserves to 
£2.6m. Following adjustments to maintain the general fund at 15% of net 
expenditure and other planned transfers to & from earmarked reserves 
(shown in Section 2) the net saving against budget is £805,000 
(allocated to the Budget Surplus Reserve). 
 

 There is a shortfall of funding of £1.5m, caused by accounting for the 
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) Collection Fund deficit (£2.8m) off-set by 
additional NDR Section 31 grant (£1.3m). This is being funded from the 
Collection Fund Reserve. 

  
Capital Actual capital expenditure in 2015/16 was £6.1m (net £4.2m), against an 

updated budget of £9.8m (net £5.5m), a reduction of £3.7m (net £1.3m). 
 

Reserves  Total forecast contribution to reserves £2.0m is as follows: 
 Capital Investment Earmarked Reserve: £1.0m – this (as well as 

the £6.8m) brings the reserve up to the agreed level of £12.5m 
 S.31 Reserve: £0.3m. 
 Budget Surplus Reserve £0.8m – this transfer requires Cabinet 

approval and is the excess of the 15% minimum threshold set for 
the General Fund reserve. 

 
 
  

Appendix D 

92



2. Revenue and Reserve – Provisional Outturn  
 

 
 
 

Revenue Forecast Outturn 2014/15
Outturn Provisional

Original Updated Outturn
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 %

Revenue by Service:
Community 2,093 2,130 2,126 1,674 (456) -21.4 (452) -21.3
Customer Services 4,222 4,488 4,719 4,114 (374) -8.3 (605) -12.8
Development 1,338 1,691 1,700 1,192 (499) -29.5 (508) -29.9
Leisure & Health 364 58 70 (141) (199) -343.1 (211) -301.4
Operations 4,802 4,593 4,593 4,175 (418) -9.1 (418) -9.1
Resources 3,072 3,930 3,929 4,155 225 5.7 226 5.8
Directors and Corporate 2,253 2,377 2,392 2,107 (270) -11.4 (285) -11.9
Technical Adjustments (402) (386) (386) (177) 209 -54.1 209 -54.1

Net Revenue Expenditure 17,742 18,881 19,143 17,099 (1,782) -9.4 (2,044) -10.7

Service Contribution to Reserves 2,124 797 535 2,579 1,782 223.6 2,044 382.1
Budget Requirement (Services) 19,866 19,678 19,678 19,678

Financing:-
NDR & Council Tax surplus (6,222) (4,242) (4,242) (2,750) 1,492 -35.2 1,492 -35.2
Government Grant (Non-specific) (8,022) (7,668) (7,668) (7,668) 0 0 0 0
Contribution from Collection Fund Reserve 2,018 0 0 (1,492)

Council Tax for Huntingdonshire DC (7,640) (7,768) (7,768) (7,768)

General Fund Reserve 2014/15
Outturn Provisional

Original Updated Outturn
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 %

Balance as at 1st April 8,684 8,537 8,537 9,287 750 8.8 750 8.8

Service Contribution to Reserves 603 797 535 2,579 1,782 223.6 2,044 382.1
Funding Contribution to Reserves 0 0 0 (1,492) (1,492) (1,492)
Transfer from Collection Fund Reserve 0 0 0 1,492 1,492 1,492
Transfer to TCA Reserve 0 0 0 (433) (433) (433)
Transfer to NDR Reliefs Reserve 0 0 0 (300) (300) (300)
Transfer to Budget Surplus Reserve 0 0 0 (805) (805) (805)
Transfer to Commercial Investment Reserve 0 0 0 (7,763) (7,763) (7,763)

Outturn forecast as at 31 March 9,287 9,334 9,072 2,565 (6,769) -72.5 (6,507) -71.7

Earmarked Reserves 2014/15
Outturn Addition Deduction Provisional

Outturn
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

S106 agreements 1,141 1,141
Commuted S106 payments 1,762 1,762
Repairs and Renewals Funds 1,300 1,300
Delayed Projects 262 262
Collection Fund 2,768 1,332 1,436
TCA Reserve 0 433 370 63
Commercial Investment Reserve 4,737 7,763 12,500

Budget Surplus 0 805 805

NDR Reliefs 0 300 300

Special Reserve 2,500 175 2,325 ICT Shared Service Costs & ZBB Support
Other Reserves 1,227 534 1,761 Local Plan and Fraud External Funding

Total Earmarked Reserves 15,697 9,835 1,877 23,655

Definitions
Original Budget As approved by Council, February 2015
Updated Budget The Original Budget including approved carry forwards from 2014/15
Provisional Outturn Provisional Outturn reported to Cabinet in June 2015.

Contribution from General Fund to meet 
Year 1 CIS funding.
General Fund in excess of 15% minimum 
threshold.
S31 New Burdens grant - Forecast 
repayment to DCLG.

2015/16
Commentary

2015/16 Forecast Variation Compared to :-
Budget

Original Budget Updated Budget

2015/16 Forecast Variation Compared to :-
Budget

Original Budget Updated Budget

93



3. Service Commentary 

 

2015/16 

Updated 

Budget

2015/16 

Provisional 

Outturn

2015/16 

Actual 

Variation

£ £ £

Head of Community

Head of Service 78,452 78,863 411

Community Team 693,536 597,561 (95,975) Combination of a number of small savings e.g 

training. Plus £39,000 saving Community Grants, 

£9,000 Neighbourhood Plans & £5,000 

Community Safety Legal Fees.

Commercial Team 349,557 261,599 (87,958) Grade H vacant post, savings on training and 

better than expected income in the Commercial 

Team.

Environmental Protection Team 476,354 368,536 (107,818) Grade H vacant post for whole year, along with 

part vacant post from Feb 2016.  Income to 

Environmental Protection Team better than 

expected including consultancy work for 

neighbouring Council.

Dec-Mar Legal fees & enforcement saving 

£6,000 & Contaminated land saving £8,000

Environmental Health Admin Team 166,156 134,455 (31,701) Part year vacant post and lower software costs.

Projects & Assets Team 317,063 251,519 (65,544) Grade E vacant post - programmed for deletion 

in 2016/17.

Dec-Mar - lower maintenance expenditure 

£27,000
CCTV (77,973) (82,676) (4,703)

CCTV Shared Service 245,158 242,962 (2,196)

Licencing (148,665) (187,893) (39,228) Income for Licencing has been better than 

expected and savings on 0.5 FTE post.

Corporate Health & Safety 26,000 9,046 (16,954)

2,125,638 1,673,972 (451,666)

Head of Customer Services

Head of Service 88,639 95,366 6,727

Local Tax Collection 225,601 187,419 (38,182) Savings on 2 FTE posts to be deleted as a 

consequence of e-forms project in 2016/17.

Housing Benefits 819,659 548,613 (271,046) £55,000 savings on posts to be deleted from 

16/17 when new e-forms are live. Other staff 

savings £45,000.

Benefit caseload changes complex to forecast, 

HDC subsidy and recovered overpayments 

exceeds benefit payments.

Council Tax Support/Benefits (122,950) (149,571) (26,621) Council Tax Benefit overpayment clawback.

Housing Needs 823,288 751,467 (71,821) Reduction in homelessness incentive payments.  

1.7 FTE posts vacant, in 2016/17 0.7 FTE will be 

deleted from the establishment.

Bad Debt provision lower than expected 

£14,000.

Customer Services 1,105,638 908,223 (197,415) The majority (£245,000) of this underspend is 

posts held vacant in advance of the 16/17 ZBB 

reorganisation. £40,000 of this underspend will 

be used  to finance the cost of the call centre 

moving to PFH.

Information Management 796,432 857,494 61,062 There were some costs relating to maintaining 

the normal activities of this service at the same 

time as moving to 3C IT. This resulted in the use 

of some contractors to deliver essential system 

and network activities – prior to being able to 

realise efficiencies from the new shared service.

ICT Shared Service 515,697 494,326 (21,371) The 3C ICT Shared Service started mid-year. The 

Business Plan approved in July 2015 noted there 

was no forecast saving in 2015/16 - but a saving 

has been achieved with some vacancies within 

the team after a full restructure has been 

completed.

Document Centre 466,883 421,057 (45,826) Additional income generated and staff savings.

4,718,888 4,114,394 (604,494)

Provisional Outturn 2015/16

Service Comments on variances over +/-£20,000

94



 

 

 
 
 
  

2015/16 

Updated 

Budget

2015/16 

Provisional 

Outturn

2015/16 

Actual 

Variation

£ £ £

Service Comments on variances over +/-£20,000

Head of Development

Head of Service 77,928 76,504 (1,424)

Building Control 12,892 (30,537) (43,429) Vacant posts April to September.  Building 

control is now operating as a shared service.

Economic Development 217,417 210,247 (7,170)

Planning Policy 1,144,739 967,594 (177,146) Vacant posts pending service restructure 

£186,000.  £90,000 additional Local Plan 

expenditure being covered by Development 

Management budgets. £80,000 additional CIL 

admin income.

Transportation Strategy 65,020 56,240 (8,780)

Public Transport 19,200 22,330 3,130

Development Management (135,644) (308,524) (172,880) Vacant posts pending service restructure 

£95,000. £90,000 project budgets being 

combined with Local Plan (Planning Policy) work.

Housing Strategy 298,921 198,030 (100,891) Loan arrangement fee of £41,000 received.  

£25,000 overbudgeted on salaries.  One-off 

salary savings £15,000 and lower number of 

removal grants £15,000.

1,700,474 1,191,884 (508,590)

Head of Leisure & Health

Head of Service 78,028 74,428 (3,600)

Sport & Active Lifestyles 335,397 216,041 (119,356) Budget £90,000 higher than it should be, in 

addition small saving expected.

One Leisure (343,392) (431,961) (88,569) One-off NDR refunds, non essential items 

deferred to 2016/17 and Burgess Hall income 

exceeded expectations in final quarter of the 

year.70,032 (141,492) (211,524)

Head of Operations

Head of Service 92,007 171,464 79,457 Senior Management restructure, including 

termination costs

Street Cleaning 882,213 728,632 (153,581) Staff vacancies, fuel savings, litter bins saving and 

savings on chemicals

Green Spaces 1,209,648 997,630 (212,018) In year staff vacancy and lower building and 

equipment/vehicle operating costs.

Facilities Management 969,642 926,270 (43,372) Staff vacancy and reduced maintenance 

expenditure.

Environmental & Energy Management 168,962 145,927 (23,035) Provision of sustainability advice

Operations Management 430,407 409,212 (21,195) Staff vacancy.

Fleet Management 245,862 217,130 (28,732) 0.5 FTE staff vacancy

Markets (89,395) (67,726) 21,669 Lower income

Car Parks (1,298,295) (1,301,899) (3,604)

Public Conveniences 13,400 7,865 (5,535)

Waste Management 1,968,161 1,940,793 (27,368) Recycling processing contract price increases add 

£107,000 to expenditure.  Staff vacancies and 

fuel and other vehicle cost savings and higher 

trade refuse income off-set the contract 

increase.

4,592,612 4,175,298 (417,314)

95



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

2015/16 

Updated 

Budget

2015/16 

Provisional 

Outturn

2015/16 

Actual 

Variation

£ £ £

Service Comments on variances over +/-£20,000

Head of Resources

Head of Service 86,782 88,471 1,689

Corporate Finance 3,980,317 3,988,601 8,284 Redundancy costs higher than expected but 

lower net interest costs and a lower bad debt 

contribution off-set this increase.

Legal 142,153 257,950 115,797 £54,000 overspend due to use of external 

resources required to compensate for lack of 

permanent staff.  Charge for Shared service 

higher than expected.

Audit & Risk Management 617,687 643,951 26,264 IT audit not commissioned due to decision on 

shared service -£21k.  MMI insurance clawback 

additional £60k above provision.

Procurement 81,898 77,763 (4,135)

Finance 639,512 641,447 1,935

Commercial Estates (1,618,488) (1,543,366) 75,122 Vacant Industrial properties and higher insurance 

costs for industrial properties. 

3,929,860 4,154,817 224,957

Corporate Team Manager

Democratic & Elections 774,341 587,164 (187,177) Lower provision required for Land Charges 

litigation -£157k. Other minor savings on 

electoral registration.

Corporate Team 1,154,452 1,057,222 (97,230) In year vacant posts

Directors 463,225 462,546 (679)

2,392,019 2,106,932 (285,087)

Technical Adjustments (386,000) (177,190) 208,810 Doubling effect of Printing & Pool Car recharges

HDC Totals 19,143,523 17,098,615 (2,044,908)

96



4. Capital Programme  
 
The summary below shows the changes to the updated budget and the actual expenditure 
for the year.  
 

Capital Programme 2015/16 
Approved By Council Rephase From 2014/15 Updated Capital Budget 

Gross Income Net Gross Income Net Gross Income Net 
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 

         
10.7 (1.1) 9.6 2.5 (2.8) (0.3) 13.2 (3.9) 9.3 

         
Provisional Outturn 6.1 (1.9) 4.2 

         
Variance 7.1 (2.0) 5.1 

         
Rephasing to 2016/17 (Reported as part of the Budget) (3.2) 0.0 (3.2) 
Further Rephasing to 2016/17 (3.9) 2.3 (1.6) 
Expenditure Variations (0.1) (0.3) (0.4) 
New Schemes 0.1 0.0 0.1 

         
Total Variation 7.1 (2.0) 5.1 

 
Variation Analysis (>£20,000) - Expenditure 
 
Rephasing to 2016/17 
 
 Building Efficiency – Salix Funding (£47,000) 

Saving from the implementation of energy saving equipment produce saving which 
are used to fund future schemes. As schemes have been delayed the funding will be 
realised later and so the scheme funding has been rephased. 

 Huntingdon One Leisure Expansion (£0.795m) 
The start was delayed in order to make sure the scheme fit properly within the One 
Leisure business plan. 

 Loan to Luminus (£2.250m) 
Due to delays in the commencement of the scheme to construct Langley Court, St 
Ives  

 Vehicle Replacements (£0.161m) 
Vehicle replacements have been rephased as the life has been extended to ensure 
that vehicles are not replaced until absolutelty necessary. 
 

Further Rephasing to 2016/17 
 

 Alconbury Weald Remediation (£1.985m) 
 The outcome of an EU funding bid is required before this scheme can go ahead. 

 Housing Association Loan (£0.500m) 
 The phase of the loan advances changed slightly, with the result that one of the 

staged payments will be paid in April instead of March.  
 One Leisure St Neots Synthetic Pitch (£0.389m)  

A change to when the external project managers are available has delayed the start 
date. 

97



 Vehicles and Plant (£0.346m) 
 Delays in the manufacture of mowers has resulted in their delivery being delayed until 

April. The company concerned has supplied loan equipment  until the date of delivery. 
 Phoenix Roof Replacement (£0.197m) 

 Delays have resulted from the covering option not being viable, and overhead power 
line restrict the replacement roof option. A solution has been requested from the 
project manager. 

 Replacement Fitness Equipment (£0.184m) 
 The new bicycles were due to arrive on the 28th March, unfortunately due to problems 

with customs the delivery was delayed until April. 
 VAT Exempt Capital (£0.107m) 

 One Leisure and Let Property schemes can attract extra cost because of the 
implications of exempt income. This extra budget will be required to fund the extra 
cost on the One Leisure and Phoenix Court schemes. 

 One Leisure Improvements (£53,000) 
 Works have been delayed due to the prolonging of asset lives and the need to sort out 

legal issues before work can commence at One Leisure St Neots. 
 Huntingdon West Development (£40,000) 

 Works relating to finalising the legal agreement surround ing the development are still 
in progress. 

 Octagon Improvements (£30,000) 
 Progress has been delayed due to issues which have arisen during the works phase 

these have been resolved and the project is due for completion in May 2016. 
 Housing Private Sector Grants (£24,000) 

 The issue of these grants has now ended, the rephasing is to cover the three grants 
that have been comitted but the works have not yet been done. 

 Capita Upgrade (£17,000) 
 The Exchequer software (Capita) upgrade has been ordered but the supplier has not 

been able to allocate an upgrade slot until the Autumn of 2016. 
 

Expenditure Variations 
 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) £0.348m 
The CIL reserve has been used to fund extra expenditure on CIL which has been 
allocated to the Huntingdon West Link Road scheme.  

 One Leisure Future Improvements (£0.121m) 
Improvements at the Leisure Centres are subject to a review process. Where 
improvements are demned not needed they will not proceed. 

 Desktop Virtualisation – Microsoft Licence (£75,000) 
The project to continue desktop virtualisation was cancelled in anticipation of the ICT 
Shared Service deciding on the approach to licencing microsoft products. 

 Disabled Facilities Grants (£64,000) 
As a result of insufficient applicants that meet the level of need requirement there has 
been an underspend. 

 CCTV Camera Replacements (£87,000) 
No cameras needed replacing. 

 One Leisure St Ives Redevelopment (£60,000) 
The retention to be paid on the One Leisure redevelopment is not now due. 

 

98



New Schemes 
 Octagon Improvements £50,000 

The Octagon building at St Ives was in need of a major refurbishment in order to make 
it secure and waterproof. 

 Cash Receipting Software £17,000 
An update to the cash receipting software in order to keep it up to date and to provide 
the latest functionality. 
 

 
Variation Analysis (>£10,000) – Grants and Contributions 

Further Rephasing to 2016-17 
 

 Alconbury Weald Remediation (£1.985m) 
 The outcome of an EU funding bid is required before this scheme can go ahead and 

this funding is used. 
 One Leisure St Neots Synthetic Pitch (£0.274m)  

A change to when the external project managers are available has delayed the start 
date and the date at which this funding is applied. 

 Land Sales (Small) (£84,000) 
 The sales of two pieces of land have been instructed and are going ahead but due to 

some late negotiation it was not possible to complete before the end of March. 
 
Grants and Contributions Received 
 

 One Leisure St Ives Football Development £53,000 
 A Section 106 contribution was expected from from a developer towards the upgrade 

of the football facilties, as the development did not take place the contribution will no 
longer be received. 

 Sale of GreenHouse St Ives (£60,000) 
The sale of the house at St Ives achieved a higher market price than was estimated. 

 Disabled Facilities Grants (£0.206m) 
An increased amount of grant was received from government. 

 Pathfinder House Site, Land at St Marys Street Huntingdon (£0.132m) 
The sale of land achieved a higher market price than estimated. 

 
  

99



5. Financial Dashboard  
 

Revenue Expenditure 
 

 
 
The 2015/16 original gross revenue expenditure budget of £73.7m is combined with the 
approved carry forwards from 2014/15 to give an updated budget of £73.9m. As shown 
below the main area of expenditure is Housing Benefits and employees. 
 

 
 
Revenue Income 
 

 
 

100



The gross revenue income budget as approved in February 2015 has not been affected by 
the approved carry forward budgets from 2014/15.  
 
In the course of the year, services have, where necessary updated their fees and charges, 
after consultation and approval by their Executive Councillor.  This has impacted on the 
income recevied against budget and changed the fees and charges approved by Council in 
February 2015. 
 
 

 
 
Revenue Net Position 
 

 
 
At the end of March 2016 the net revenue expenditure is forecast to be £17.1m, £2.0m 
below the updated net budget of £19.1m.  Taking into account the budgeted contribution to 
reserves as well as the 2014/15 brought forward adjustment, the overall service related 
surplus is expected to be £2.6m by the year end.  There is a shortfall of funding of £1.5m, 
caused by accounting for the NDR Collection Fund deficit (£2.8m) off-set by additional NDR 
Section 31 grant (£1.3m).  After other planned transfers to/from reserves there is a savings 
against budget of £805,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101



Capital Programme 
 

 
 
 
Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
Reflecting improvements in local employment, take-up of the Support Scheme is lower than 
originally planned. Any 2015/16 saving due to the Support Scheme will impact in 2016/17.  
 

 
 
The benefit to HDC will be proportionate to all Council Tax precepts (13.8% for HDC 
including parishes). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102



Collection of NDR  

 
 
The current forecast shows that NDR is expected to be lower than the original budget of 
£4.2m.  The graph shows how the impact of appeals has reduced the NDR total collectable 
figure and it is expected that only 99% of the total collectable will be received by the 31st 
March 2016.  NDR collected is also being affected by large insolvency cases that have 
become “irrecoverable”. 

It should be noted that: 
 the localisation of NDR has made the modelling of collectable NDR problematic; this is 

due to the fact that the position in respect of appeals is extremely volatile and further 
appeals could result in a reduced forecast. In May 2015 an appeal of £1.3m was upheld 
and the Councils share will be £0.520m (40%) and a number of appeals were upheld 
during July in respect of Doctors Surgeries.  A provision for outstanding NDR appeals is 
included in the NDR calculations. However, if the cost of the appeals is more than this 
provision which reduces HDC’s NDR income, DCLG will compensate HDC through a 
safety net payment in 2016/17. 

 the uncertainty as to when new premises will come into valuation further increases this 
volatility. 

 
Collection of Council Tax 

 
 

103



The forecast reflects the actual liability for tax at the time of annual billing compared to the 
assumptions made at the time the tax base was set.  The projection assumes 1% of tax due 
for 2015/16 will be collected during 2016/17. 
 
New Homes Bonus 
 
The New Homes Bonus reporting cycle is October to September; consequently any variation 
in income will be attributable to 2017/18. The following forecasts exclude adjustments for 
long-term empty properties and affordable homes. 

In the 12 months to September 2015, 583 new homes were completed.  In the first four 
months of this new reporting cycle, 243 new homes have been completed. The Planning 
Annual Monitoring Report (2014) estimated that completions of new homes would be 
approximately 547 for the New Homes Bonus calculation period (October 2015 to 
September 2016).  The latest Planning Annual Monitoring Report (December 2015) has 
revised this estimate to 541 and this figure has been used to assess the impact actual 
completions will have on NHB receipts. 

 
 

 
 

104



 
 
  

105



6. Review of Earmarked Reserves 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Comment

31 March 2015

£000 £000 £000
S106 
Agreements

Development (1,141) (92) (1,233) Subject to S.106 contractual restrictions

Commuted S106 
Payments

Development (1,763) 38 (1,726) Subject to S.106 contractual restrictions

Chequers Court Resources (500) 0 (500) Reserve to meet potential shortfall in S.106 funding 
at Chequers Court.

One Leisure St 
Ives 3G Pitch

Leisure & Health (100) (25) (125) Funding Agreement with Football Foundation 
requires £100,000 security (sinking fund).

Env Health Equpt 
Renewals Fund

Community (54) (7) (61) Phased reduction from 2016/17 to 2019/20.

Oak Tree Centre 
Renewals Fnd

Resources (277) 0 (277) Fund to meet substantial repairs from "contracted" 
tenant service charges. Full property assessment 
to be undertaken during 2016/17 to determine 
extent of repairs required.

Commercial 
Investment 
Strategy

Resources (4,737) (7,653) (12,390) Fund to meet future Commercial Investment 
Strategy acquisitions.

Budget Surplus Resources 0 (805) (805) This will have a balance at the year-end and will 
represent the amount of the General Fund that 
exceeds the 15% minimum threshold.

Special Reserve Resources (2,500) 175 (2,325) Fund to meet future costs of service 
transformation.

Silc Clubs 
Funding (2009 
On)

Leisure & Health (1) 0 (1) Reserves of a community group, now closed. HDC 
voluntarily agreed to use funds to assist other 
groups in hard-ship. However, a review will be 
undertaken during 2016/17 to determine how this 
should be distributed.

Housing 
Homeless 
Reserve

Customer (92) 0 (92) To meet "peaks-and-trough" in homelessness 
provision. However, with potential future changes 
in service provider, reserve to remain at this time.

Building Control 
Reserve

Development (122) (4) (127) Rolling Fund for Building Control surpluses, to be 
transferred to Cambridge City Council as part of 
the 3C's shared service arrangement.

Housing 
Association 
Footpaths

Development (39) 0 (39) In the spirit of the original external contribution, the 
entire reserve is expected to be used during 
2016/17 to support a residential development in 
Godmanchester.

LPSA Development (51) 0 (51) Former LPSA monies, to be used in the EDGE 
partnership activity in respect of Apprenticeships.

(11,377) (8,373) (19,752)
Local Plan Development 0 (500) (500) New reserve to fund the development of the Local 

Plan.

- £141,450 is a contribution from the reduction in 
other reserves.0 - £358,550 is a contribution from the 2015/16 
Planning budget

TCA Resources 0 (63) (63) Balance of TCA Funding to be used by three 
partner councils. HDC accountable body.

NDR Relief Resources 0 (300) (300) Additional S31 Grant relating to NDR Reliefs

Fraud Hub Customer 0 (35) (35) External funding relating to HDC Anti-Fraud 
Activity. To be used with a range of partners. HDC 
is the accountable body.

Cambridge Anti-
Fraud Network

Customer 0 (99) (99) External funding relating to HDC Anti-Fraud 
Activity. To be used with a range of 
Cambridgeshire partners. HDC is the accountable 
body.Call Centre Move Customer 0 (40) (40) Identified in-service savings to fund Call Centre 
Relocation from St Ives to Pathfinder House

0 (1,037) (1,037)

Name of ER

R
ES

ER
VE

 T
O

 R
EM

A
IN

N
EW

 R
ES

ER
VE

REVIEW OF EARMARKED RESERVES

Movement 
during 2015/16

31 March 2016

106



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Parks Renewals 
Fund

Operations (152) 152 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Countryside Mgt 
R&R Fund

Operations (78) 78 0

Operations 
Efficiency 
Reserve

Operations 0 (229) (229)

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

St Ivo Renewals 
Fund

Operations 0 0 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

St Neots L C 
Renewals Fund

Operations (8) 8 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Huntingdon R C 
Renewals Fund

Operations 0 0 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Ramsey L C 
Renewals Fund

Operations 0 0 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Sawtry S C 
Renewals Fund

Operations (3) 3 0

One Leisure 
Huntingdon 
Changing Room 
Project

Operations 0 (11) (11)

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Ind Estates 
Renewals Fund

Resources (164) 164 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Misc Properties 
Renewals Fund

Resources (28) 28 0

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Commercial 
Props Renewals 
Fund

Resources (44) 44 0

Commercial 
Property 
Maintenance 
Reserve

Resources 0 (236) (236)

(477) 1 (476)
Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Mobile Home 
Park Renewals 
Fund

Resources (20) 8 (12) Rolling-Fund to meet "larger" maintenance costs 
that enhance the overall asset. The action 
proposed to reduce the balance will bring it to a 
minimum amount.

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Env Imps 
Renewals Fund

Operations (61) 31 (31) 50% of original Reserve to be held to fund some 
Parish off-road parking schemes, balance to be 
surrendered.

Collection Fund Resources (2,768) 2,111 (656) Technical reserve to meet costs relating to the 
Collection Fund; especially costs relating to 
previous years Collection Fund surplus/deficits.

(2,849) 2,150 (699)
Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Car Parks 
Renewals Fund

Operation (58) 58 0 Resource not required. Cost of repairs will be met 
from future capital programming.

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Offices R&R 
Fund Balance

Operation (80) 80 0 Resource not required. Cost of repairs will be met 
from future capital programming.

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Pavilions R&R 
Fund Balance

Operation (64) 64 0 Resource not required. Cost of repairs will be met 
from future capital programming.

Repairs & 
Renewals Funds

Bus Station 
Shelter 
Renewals

Operation (111) 111 0 Resource not required. Cost of repairs will be met 
from future capital programming.

Delayed Projects Operation (261) 261 0 Will be zero at 31 March 2016.

Home Imp 
Agency Reserve

Operation (101) 101 0 This is accumulated savings. It is proposed that 
future years savings or losses are accounted for in-
year.

Pwlb Discount 
Reserve

Resources 0 0 0 Will be zero at 31 March 2016.

Clean Food 
Centre Reserve

Community (10) 10 0 This is accumulated savings. It is proposed that 
future years savings or losses are accounted for in-
year.

Listed Building 
Grants Reserve

Development (9) 9 0 Purpose not known.

A14 Inquiry 
Reserve

Development (200) 200 0 Reserve to meet potential costs associated with 
A14 Inquiry, no longer required.

Alconbury & 
Molesworth

Development (100) 100 0 Reserve no longer required as USAF relocation 
not taking place until mid-2020's.

(994) 994 0
(15,697) (6,265) (21,964)TOTAL Earmarked Reserves

R
EM

O
VE

 R
ES

ER
VE

R
ED

U
C

E 
£

C
O

N
SO

LI
D

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

R
ES

ER
VE

S

Removal of Parks and Countryside Management 
Reserves and reallocated to an Operations 
Efficiency Reserve. This new Reserve will provide 
funding for a new Operations "back-office" system 
which will improve service efficiency and generate 
savings over the medium term.

Removal of Ind Estates, Misc Properties  and 
Commercial Property Renewals Fund and 
amalgamated into a Commercial Property 
Maintenance Fund to part finance the planned 
capital costs associated with the Phoenix Court, 
Levellers Lane and Clifton Road Reroofing works 
included in the 2016/17 Capital Programme.

Removal of individual One Leisure Reserves and 
consolidate into a single reserve to provide a 
contribution to the capital cost of the One Leisure 
Huntingdon Changing Room Project.

This will also support the Councils current Sport 
England funding package as it is anticipated that 
the Councils contribution will need to be larger than 
previous applications.

107



7. Use of Budget Surplus Reserve 

  

108



Public 
Key Decision - No 

 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Safety Advisory Group 
 
Meeting/Date: Cabinet – 16th June 2016 
  
Executive Portfolio: Cllr Steven Cawley 
 
Report by: Chris Stopford – Head of Community 
 
Ward(s) affected: Internal 
 

 
Executive Summary:  

 
 
Following the update of the Constitution, the Council has reviewed its existing 
arrangements for the management of its health and safety obligations under the 
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, and considers that the existing processes 
can be improved.  
 
The existing Safety Advisory Panel and service area specific activities can be 
combined to a single Corporate Health and Safety Board, made up of 
representatives of employees, senior management, and Staff Council.  In addition to 
the Corporate Health and Safety Board, it is recommended that oversight of the 
Council’s activities be provided by the Council’s Employment Committee alongside 
its existing oversight of workforce information. 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Cabinet is  
 
RECOMMENDED 
 

1. To agree the establishment of a Corporate Health and Safety Board to take 
responsibility for ensuring the arrangements for corporate health and safety 
are appropriate, and effective; and that the Corporate Health and Safety 
Board is provided with overview by the Employment Committee, and 
 

2. That the existing Safety Advisory Group be discontinued. 
 

 

109

Agenda Item 7



 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report sets out the Council’s new approach to the management of health 

and safety at work insofar as it relates to the health, safety, and welfare of its 
employees, visitors, and those who may be affected by the Council’s activities 
(hereafter referred to as Corporate Health and Safety). The report does not 
consider the Council’s function as a ‘regulator’ under the Health and safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974 for work activities occurring in businesses across 
Huntingdonshire.  

 
2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council has a legal obligation under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 

1974 to take all reasonable steps, to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its 
employees, visitors, and those who come into contact with its activities. Further, 
under the Health and Safety (Consultation with Employees) Regulations 1996, 
the Council has a duty to consult with its employees on matters relating to their 
health and safety. 
 
The existing processes for Corporate Health and Safety has been reviewed, the 
processes have been recognised as being disjointed across Council service 
areas and locations. Further, the Council’s has reviewed and adopted its 
Constitution, and in part of this review, and included the overview of Corporate 
Health and Safety within the scope of the Employment Panel.  
 

3. OPTIONS ANALYSIS 
 
3.1 In ensuring that the Council can demonstrate its compliance, and that the 

Employment Panel can provide overview, it is considered that a new Corporate 
Health and Safety Board should be established, with representatives from each 
Service area, senior management, and the Staff Council. This Board would then 
report to Employment Committee. In establishing this Board, the existing Safety 
Advisory Group would be discontinued. The alternative is to leave the structures 
as they are but this does not now meet the needs of the organisation. 

 
4. KEY RISKS 

 
4.1 Failure of the Council to address these issues increases the risk of workplace 

accidents and ill health. Failure to be able to demonstrate that the Council has 
taken all steps, so far as reasonably practicable, increases the risk of 
successful claim or litigation against the Council as an employer. This risk is 
mitigated by the establishment of a robust and demonstrable process for the 
management of Corporate Health and Safety. 
 

4.2 Failure of the Council to protect the health and safety of those who come into 
contact with its activities, either as visitors of users of Council services and 
premises, also increases the risk of accident or injury, and subsequent claim or 
litigation against the Council. 

 
5. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN 
 
5.1 The Corporate Health and Safety Board will be established and an update on 

progress provided to the Employment Committee at its next meeting. 
 
 

 

110



6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 The Council has a legal obligation under the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 

1974 to take all steps, so far as reasonably practicable, to protect the health, 
safety and welfare or its employees; and the health and safety of those who 
come into contact with its activities. This report provides a solution for ensuring 
that the Council satisfies this legal obligation. 

 
7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no additional resource implications from this report. 
 
8. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
 
8.1 The Council has an obligation to protect its staff, as already discussed within 

this report. The existing processes have been reviewed, and it has been 
recognised that improvements could be made to the processes and oversight 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Chris Stopford, Head of Community 
Tel No: 01480 388280 
Email: chris.stopford@huntingdonshire.gov.uk  
 
 

111

mailto:chris.stopford@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Public 
Key Decision – No 

 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Treasury Management Annual Report 2015/16 
 
Meeting/Date: Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Performance and Customers) – 

6th June 2016  
 Cabinet – 16th June 2016 
  
Executive Portfolio: Strategic Resources: Councillor J A Gray (Deputy Executive 

Leader) 
 
Report by: Head of Resources 
 
Ward(s) affected: All Wards 
 

 
Executive Summary:  

 
 
The Council’s 2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy, was approved by Council on 
the 25th February 2015.  
 
CIPFA’s Treasury Management code requires Councils to report on performance of 
the treasury management function twice a year; the first report being the mid-year 
review (reported to the Cabinet on the 19th November 2015) and the annual report 
after the financial year end. 
 
The main purpose of the Treasury Management Strategy is to; 
 

 Ensure the Council has sufficient cash to meet its day to day obligations. 
 

 Borrow when necessary to fund capital expenditure, including borrowing in 
anticipation of need when rates are considered to be low. 

 

 Invest surplus funds in a manner that balances low risk of default by the 
borrower with a fair rate of interest. 

The key market Treasury Management issues though 2015/16 influencing the 
Council’s decision-making were; 

 A moderate improvement in the credit rating of financial institutions.   
 

 The introduction of legislation (bail-in replaces bail-out) placing the burden of 
rescuing failing EU banks disproportionately onto unsecured institutional 
investors including local authorities.  

 

 A continuation of the Bank of England’s policy of very low interest rates, with 
the result that market rates also remain very low. The Council average 
investing rate was 0.41%. 

113

Agenda Item 8



The Council’s response to the key issues was; 

 Where the Council has surplus funds to primarily make short term 
investments (the majority on call on a daily basis) in liquidity accounts and 
money market funds. 

 Where possible to take a higher return without sacrificing liquidity. 

 When borrowing the Council has used the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), 
which offers low fixed rate borrowing over a long period. The average interest 
rate paid was 3.70% 

The Council’s Commercial Investment Strategy (CIS) 
 
Towards the end of 2015/16 the Commercial Investment Strategy commenced. 
Performance of the CIS up to the 31st March 2016 is reported in the “Integrated 
Performance Report, 2015/16 Quarter 4” that is elsewhere on the agenda.  However 
a summary of the transactions so far is shown in Appendix E. 
 
 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
The Cabinet is recommended to 
 

 Comment on the 2015/16 Treasury Management performance. 
 
 
 
 

 

114



 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To report to Members on the performance of the Treasury Management activity 

over the past financial year. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 This report covers treasury activity and the associated monitoring and control of 

risk.  The key areas to be addressed includes: 
 

 Economic Review 

 Performance of Funds 

 Risk Environment 

 Risk Management 

 Compliance with Regulations and Codes 
 

2.2 The key points in the 2015/16 Strategy were: 
 

 Ensuring the Council has sufficient cash to meet its day to day obligations. 

 Borrowing when necessary to fund capital expenditure. 

 Investing surplus funds in a manner that balances low risk of default by the 
borrower with a fair rate of interest. 

 
3. ANALYSIS 

 
 Economic Review 
3.1 An economic review of the year has been provided by our Treasury 

Management advisors, Arlingclose and is attached with an analysis of the local 
context implications in Appendix A. The main reliance to the Council is: 

 

 Interest rates are likely to remain low in the short-term, allowing the 
Council to borrow at low interest rates both for short-term cash flow 
purposes and for longer term borrowing,  such as the borrowing used to 
fund the loans to Luminus 

 However low rates mean few opportunities to make significant returns 
from investments. This requires the Council to use other investing 
opportunities which the Commercial Investment Strategy provides. 

 Low inflationary increases are likely in the short-term, reducing pressure 
on Council budgets of price increases. 

 Whilst wages growth has been low or negative in recent years, there is 
now evidence of increasing wage inflation, as a result of low 
unemployment rates and high employment rates. 

  
 Performance of Council Funds 
3.2 The following table summarises the treasury management transactions 

undertaken during the 2015/16 financial year and the details of the investments 
and loans held as at 31st March 2016 are shown in detail in Appendix B. 

115



  

 

 

 

 

 
Principal 
Amount 

£m 

Interest 
Rate 

% 
Investments   
      at 31st March 2015        3.9 1.20 
     less matured in year   -212.2    
     plus arranged in year  +213.6  
     at 31st March 2016       5.3 

 
0.78 

Average Investments (Annual) 15.4 
 

0.65 

   
Borrowing   
     at 31st March 2015   11.3 3.73 
     less repaid in year  -0.1  
     plus arranged in year +2.2  
     at 31st March 2016   13.4 

 
3.63 

Average Borrowing (Annual) 11.7 3.70 

Note; 
Interest rates above are as at dated apart from averages, 
where these are the average for the whole year. 

  

Investments 
3.3 The Council’s strategy for 2015/16 was based on all investments being 

managed in-house. The investments were of three types: 

 Time deposits, these are deposits with financial institutions that are of 
fixed term and mature on an agreed date. In the Council’s case usually in 
1 to 2 weeks. 
 

 Liquidity (call) accounts, these are accounts held with banks where there 
is no fixed term and the money can be deposited or withdrawn on the day. 
  

 Money Market Funds, these are funds where investor’s deposits are 
aggregated together and invested across a large range of financial 
products, giving a high degree of diversification. 

 
 3.4  The average rate of interest on all investments was 0.67%, 0.31% above the 7 

day LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate) benchmark rate of 0.36%, this 
represents a return of over three times the bench-mark rate. This good 
performance was due to £1.375m of the investments being locked into higher 
rates before the year started together with the use of liquidity accounts with 
major banks and Money Market Funds which gave the added safety of instant 
access together with interest rates in excess of the benchmark. 

 
3.5 When only short-term cash flow investment activity is considered, the rate of 

interest on investments was 0.41%, which is around 14% higher than the 7-day 

116



benchmark rate of 0.36%. 
 
 Borrowing 
3.6 The Council’s exposure to interest rate risk at the end of the year was: 

 

 £13.4m long term borrowing from the PWLB, at a weighted average rate 
of 3.62%. 

 Short term borrowing at 31 March 2016 was nil. 
 
3.7 The actual net investment interest payable (after deduction of interest 

receivable on loans) was £304,000 against a budget of £346,000.  This is a 
saving of £42,000 against the original budget.  This is due to delays in capital 
and revenue expenditure resulting in higher than estimated average cash 
balances which have been invested. 

3.8   In September 2015 Cabinet agreed to make a loan of £5m to Luminus in order 
to finance part of the cost of constructing care facility at Langley Court St Ives.  
During the year the Council has advanced £2.25m of funding to Luminus and 
the Council has in turn borrowed the same amount from the PWLB over a 
period of 31 years. The remainder of the loan will be advanced in 2016/17 and 
as a consequence the Council will be borrowing from the PWLB to finance 
this. 

3.9  There was no short-term borrowing during 2015-16 as the Council held 
sufficient cash balances to meet its obligations. 

  Risk Environment 
3.10 The changes to the environment in which investing takes place are detailed in 

Appendix C the main points to note are; 

 Bail in legislation requiring investors to contribute to bank losses has 
replaced government bail outs. 
 

 Slight improvements in the credit ratings of financial institutions. 
 

 Improvements in the financial strength of financial institutions as 
evidenced by the Bank of England stress tests. 

 
  Risk Management 
3.11 The Council’s primary objectives for the management of its investments are to 

give priority to the security and liquidity (how quickly cash can be accessed) 
of its funds before seeking the best rate of return. 

3.12  The Council manages security by investing short-term with highly-rated banks 
and building societies, as well as investing with local authorities in the UK 
which are deemed to be intrinsically safe.  

3.13  In addition to this the Council makes significant use of a number of Money 
Market Funds, where a large numbers of investors’ funds, including the 
Council’s, are aggregated and spread across a wide range of investments. 
The Council is therefore able to access a spread of investments across a 
number of funds not available if it were to invest on its own.  

3.14  In order to manage liquidity the Council invests funds in call accounts or 
Money Market Funds, which provide instant access to funds. 

117



3.15  The Council’s priority has been security and liquidity, over the return on 
investments, which resulted in investments during 2015/16 generally being of 
short duration (the majority on call). The result of low interest rates across the 
market is that the margin gained from the benefit of investing for longer period 
does not out-weigh the potential costs of failure of the investment. 

 Compliance with Regulations and Codes 
3.16  All the treasury management activity undertaken during the financial year 

complied with the approved strategy, the CIPFA Code of Practice, and 
relevant legislation. 

3.17  The Code requires the Council to approve both Treasury Management and 
Prudential Indicators. Those for 2015/16 were approved at the Council 
meeting on 25th February 2015.  Appendix D shows the relevant prudential 
indicators and the actual results, the table below is a summary of key 
indicators.  

 

Prudential Management Indicators  

 2015/16 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Actual 

Impact on the Council 

Net capital expenditure £9.6m £4.2m Expenditure less than 
estimated as a result of 
rephasing schemes 
(£1.5m) and underspends 
(£1.3m).  
 

Expenditure on interest and 
MRP (Minimum Revenue 
Provision) 

10.4% 9.6% As a result of underspends 
in 2014/15 the MRP is 
lower for 2015/16. 
 

Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR) 

£44.9m £35.4m The CFR is lower due to 
reduced expenditure 
detailed above and 
increased capital receipts. 

 31/03/15 31/03/16  

Long-term borrowing total £11.3m £13.4m Borrowing has increased to 
fund the series of loans to 
Luminus 

    

Treasury Management Indicators  

 2015/16 
Limit 

2015/16 
Actual 

 

Authorised Limit for debt £84.0m £17.3m The Council’s debt has 
increased as a result of 
loans to finance the 
Luminus loan, but is still 
within the approved limits 

Operational boundary for debt £79.0m £17.3m 

Borrowing fixed and variable 
interest 

75%-
100% 

100% All borrowing has been 
undertaken at a fixed rate 
to avoid the risk of interest 
rate increases in the future. 

Borrowing repayment profile (10 
years) 

9%-
100% 

88% The loan repayment profile 
has shortened from last 
year as the Luminus loans 
are repaid annually. 

Investments longer than 364 
days 

£33.8m £0m Only short-term or instant 
access investments. 

118



4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
 

4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Performance and Customers) considered the 
Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 Outturn Report at its meeting held on 
6th June 2016. The Panel questioned the purpose of the report however they 
were informed that the Council has a statutory obligation to report on the 
Treasury Management of the authority. 
 

4.2 The Panel noted that in regards to the ‘Inflation in the Economic Review’ 
section, the report states that ‘there is no indication that oil prices will pick up’ 
which conflicts with what Members and residents are experiencing. In addition 
Members would like the local inflation figure added to the report the next time 
this report is produced. 

 
5. RISKS 
 
5.1 The risks arising from treasury management activities are highlighted in the 

report and are measured by reference to the prudential indicators in Appendix 
D. 

 
6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN 
 
6.1 Treasury management activities will continue to be monitored, in order to 

mitigate security and liquidity risks. 
 
7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND / OR 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 Treasury management activity is a corporate function of the Council and 

supports the achievement of the Councils three corporate priorities; 
consequently it is a key element in the budget setting and management 
process. 
 

7.2 In addition, over the last year the Councils Treasury function directly contributed 
to the “Working with our communities” strategic theme (Corporate Plan 2014-
2016) in that it provided loan finance to support an external partner (Luminus) to 
fund the construction of the Langley Court Extra Care Facility in St. Ives. 

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1 No direct, legal implications arise out of this report. 
 
9. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The resource implications relating to the net interest due to the Council is 

explained in paragraph 3.7. 
    
10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS  
 
10.1 The treasury management activity continues to be monitored, to ensure that risk 

arising are mitigated. 
 
11. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 
 

Appendix A – Economic review (Source: Arlingclose)  
Appendix B – Borrowing and Investments as at 31st March 2016 
Appendix C – Risk Environment 2015-16 

119



Appendix D – CIPFA Prudential Indicators 
Appendix E – Commercial Investment Strategy Indicators (Preliminary) 

  
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Working papers in Resources 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Clive Mason, Head of Resources 
     01480 388157 
 
Oliver Colbert, Principal Accountant 
     01480 388067 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

120



 
APPENDIX A 
 

Economic Review of 2015/16 
 

 

  

Economic Growth Local Context 

The UK economy slowed in 2015 with 
GDP growth falling to 2.3% from a robust 
3.0% the year before.  

 

The slowdown is likely to delay an 
increase in interest rates, meaning that 
returns on investments that the council 
makes will remain low into the near 
future. 

Inflation Local Context 

The prolonged spell of low inflation was 
attributed to the continued collapse in the 
price of oil, the increase in the strength of 
the Pound since 2013 pushing down 
import prices and weaker than anticipated 
wage growth resulting in subdued labour 
costs. CPI picked up to 0.3% year on year 
in February, but this was still well below 
the Bank of England’s 2% inflation target. 
 

The low rate of inflation will reduce the 
pressure for inflationary increases. Again 
this is likely to remain the case for the 
short-term, as there is still no clear 
indication that oil prices will pick up. 

Labour Market Local Context 

The Labour market continued to improve 
through 2015 and in quarter 1 of 2016, the 
latest figures (Jan 2016) show the 
employment rate at 74.1% (the highest 
rate since comparable records began in 
1971) and the unemployment rate at a 12 
year low of 5.1%. Wage growth has 
however remained modest at around 2.2% 
excluding bonuses, but after a long period 
of negative real wage growth (after 
inflation) real earnings were positive and 
growing at their fastest rate in eight years. 

 

With employment at a record high then 
recruiting is likely to become more difficult 
for the Council, as the number of 
candidates are likely to reduce. 
 
In addition wage growth is starting to pick 
up, and so whilst general inflation remains 
low, there is potentially increased 
pressure to increase the Council’s pay by 
greater percentage than in recent years. 

Global Influences Local Context 

The slowdown in the Chinese economy 
became the largest threat to prospects for 
global growth as a whole. The effect of the 
Chinese authorities’ intervention in their 
currency and equity markets was 
temporary and led to high market volatility 
as a consequence.  As the global 
economy entered 2016 there was high 
uncertainty about growth, the outcome of 
the US presidential election and the 
consequences of June’s referendum on 
whether the UK is to remain in the EU. 
Between February and March 2016 the 
Pound had depreciated by around 3%, a 
significant proportion of the decline 
reflecting the uncertainty surrounding the 

Whilst the Council is insulated to some 
extent from global fluctuations, the 
depreciating pound will make imported 
goods more expensive, so could have an 
impact on items such as IT equipment. 

121



referendum result.  

 

UK Monetary Policy Local Context 

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy 
Committee made no change to policy, 
maintaining the Bank Rate at 0.5% (in 
March it entered its eighth year at 0.5%) 
and asset purchases (Quantitative Easing) 
at £375bn. In its Inflation Reports and 
monthly monetary policy meeting minutes, 
the Bank was at pains to stress that when 
interest rates do begin to rise they were 
expected to do so more gradually and to a 
lower level than in recent cycles. 

This is despite in the US, the Federal 
Reserve to raising rates in December 2015 
for the first time in nine years to take the 
new Federal funds range to 0.25%-0.50%. 
Though there was some suggestion of 
further increases this has not happened. 

The stronger influence on UK interest 
rates has been the Eurozone, where 
Switzerland, Sweden central bankers were 
forced to take interest rates into negative 
territory.   

 

The economy’s low growth rates and low 
inflation have resulted in the Bank of 
England’s reluctance to increase interest 
rates. The main ramification of this for the 
Council is that the investments that it 
makes in financial instruments, for 
example money market funds and call 
accounts will continue to offer very low 
rates of return. 
 
The Commercial Investment Strategy 
offers an opportunity to achieve higher 
returns (yields) but still with a high degree 
of security. The security is as a result of 
the ownership of an asset (property) or 
and investment in assets (Property 
Funds).  An attempt to achieve higher 
returns using financial investments would 
result in the taking on of more risky 
investments.  

Market Reaction Local Context 

From June 2015 gilt yields were driven 
lower by the a weakening in Chinese 
growth, the knock-on effects of the fall in 
its stock market, the continuing fall in the 
price of oil and commodities.  Added to 
this was the heightened uncertainty 
surrounding the outcome of the UK 
referendum on its continued membership 
of the EU as well as the US presidential 
elections which culminated in a significant 
volatility and in equities and corporate 
bond yields.   

 

PWLB borrowing rates are based on gilt 
yields. As a result when the Council 
needs to borrow the rates are offered is 
low compared to historic rates. The 
amount of uncertainty surrounding 
markets outside the UK increases the 
downward pressure on yields into the 
short-term. 

Source of Data: Arlingclose Ltd  

 

.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

122



 
 

APPENDIX B 

 
BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016 

 
 Short-term Rating Date 

Invested/ 
Borrowed 

Amount Interest 
Rate 

Year of 
Maturity 

 Fitch Moody’s  £m £m   

Borrowing        

Short-term        

NIL        

        

Long-term        

        

PWLB   19/12/08 5.000  3.91% 2057/58 

PWLB   19/12/08 5.000  3.90% 2058/59 

PWLB   07/08/13 1.156  2.24% 2023/24 

PWLB   25/11/15 0.750  3.28% 2046/47 

PWLB   19/01/16 1.000  3.10% 2046/47 

PWLB   21/03/16 0.500  2.91% 2046/47 

     13.406   

        

Total Borrowing     13.406   

        

Investments In-House        

Investments        

        

NatWest Current F1 P2  0.010m  0.00% On-call 

NatWest Liquidity F1 P2  0.279m  0.25% On-call 

Cambridge Building Society Not rated  0.100m  0.50% On-call 

Bank of Scotland F1 P1  0.500m  0.40% Fixed 

Santander F1 P1  0.450m  0.30% On-call 

Handelsbanken F1+ P1  0.400m  0.30% On-call 

Barclays F1 P1  0.400m  0.45% On-call 

Blackrock AAAmmf   0.350m  0.48% On-call 

Federated AAAmmf   0.300m  0.48% On-call 

Insight AAAmmf   0.400m  0.51% On-call 

Legal and General AAAmmf   0.400m  0.48% On-call 

Standard Life AAAmmf   0.400m  0.45% On-call 

        

        

Total Investments     3.989   

        

Loans        

Alconbury Parish Council Not rated  0.002m  0.50% 2016/17 

Huntingdon Regional 
College 

Not rated  1.174m  3.34% 2023/24 

Huntingdon Gym Not rated  0.057m  5.13% 2023/24 

Luminus Not rated  0.750m  4.78% 2047/48 

Luminus Not rated  1.000m  4.60% 2047/48 

Luminus Not rated  0.500m  4.41% 2047/48 
 

Total Loans     3.483   

        

Total Investments     7.472   

Net Borrowing     5.934   

        

123



 
 
Definition of Credit Ratings 

 

Fitch Rating Definition 

Short term 
  

F1 Indicates the strongest intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments; may have an added “+” to 
denote any exceptionally strong credit feature. 

 F2 Good rated intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. 

 F3 Fair rated intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial commitments. 
 

Long-term  
 

 
AAA 

Highest credit quality organisations, reliable and stable. 'AAA' ratings denote 
the lowest expectation of default risk. They are assigned only in cases of 
exceptionally strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. 
 

  
AA 

Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote expectations of very low 
default risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial 
commitments. This capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable 
events. 
 

 AA-  

  
A 

High credit quality.  ‘A’ ratings denote expectations of low default risk. The 
capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This 
capacity may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to adverse business or 
economic conditions than is the case for higher ratings. 
 

 A-  

 BBB Good credit quality.  BBB ratings indicate expectations of low default risk. 
The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered adequate, 
but adverse business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this 
capacity. 
 

Notes 
The modifiers “+” or “-“ may be appended to a rating to denote relative status within major rating 
categories. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

124



 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Risk Environment 2015/16 
 

 

  

Bail In Local Context 

During the banking crisis the government, 
invested large sums of public money into 
banks in order that they remained solvent, 
and these are still being paid back by the 
banks. Legislation over the last year has 
moved the risk to investors in banks, and 
due to various exemptions for, for instance 
retail deposits, risks for public bodies have 
increased. 
 

Whilst some public bodies will carry 
higher levels of long-term cash and as a 
result have a need to invest long term, the 
Council generally has cash that will be 
needed in the short-term and as a result 
places funds where they are accessible in 
the short-term.  

Credit Ratings Local Context 

Following the banking crisis the credit 
ratings of many financial institutions were 
downgraded. Over the last year there has 
been a gradual improvement in these 
ratings as banks have built up capital. 

The Council receives monthly updates 
from its advisors on changes to credit 
ratings. Whilst the Council maintains 
deposits on a short-term or available 
instant basis the risk is reduced from 
failures, as the Council will be able to 
withdraw funds as soon as there is an 
indication of a credit problem. Whereas 
other investors with longer term fixed 
investments will not be able to. 
 

Stress Tests Local Context 

In December the Bank of England 
released the result of its latest set of 
stress tests on the seven largest banks. 
Whilst RBS and Standard Chartered Bank 
were the weakest performers the regulator 
did not require them to take any action as 
both banks had improved their ratios over 
the year. 
 
 

The RBS group includes Natwest the 
Council’s transactional banker. Advice 
from Arlingclose on the way in which the 
Council uses Natwest for holding funds is 
being followed. The Council only 
maintains balances with of less than £1m, 
which is instantly accessible.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



 
 
APPENDIX D 

 
CIPFA Prudential Indicators for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
Prudential Indications and Treasury Management Indications for 2015/16 
Comparison of actual results with limits 

 
PRUDENTIAL MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 
 
1. Actual and Estimated Capital Expenditure.  
 

 2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2015/16 
Actual 

£m 

Gross 10.7 6.1 

Net 9.6 4.2 

 
2. The proportion of the budget financed from government grants and council 

tax that is spent on interest and the provision for debt repayment. 
 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Actual 

10.4% 9.6% 

 
3. The impact of schemes with capital expenditure on the level of council tax.  

This item is only provided to demonstrate affordability at budget setting and has 
already been superseded by the equivalent figure in the 2016/17 Treasury 
Management Strategy indicators. 
 

4. The capital financing requirement.  
This represents the estimated need for the Authority to borrow to finance capital 
expenditure less the estimated provision for redemption of debt (the MRP).  

 

2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2015/16 
Actual 

£m 

44.9 35.2 

 
5. Net borrowing and the capital financing requirement. 

Net external borrowing as at the 31st March 2016, was £13.4m, this is £21.8m 
less than the capital financing requirement. Thereby confirming that the council 
has not borrowed for revenue purposes other than in the short-term for cash flow 
purposes. 

 
6. The actual external long-term borrowing at 31 March 2016 
 
 £13.4m 
 
7. Adoption of the CIPFA Code 

 
The Council has adopted the 2011 edition of the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice.  

 
 
 
 

126



 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 
 
8. The authorised limit for external debt.   
 

This is the maximum limit for borrowing and is based on a worst-case scenario.  
 

 2015/16 
Limit 
£m 

2015/16 
Actual  

£m 

Short-Term 18.0 0.0 

Long Term  47.0 13.4 

Other long-term liabilities (leases) 5.0 0.5 

Total 69.0 13.9 

   

Long-term for loans to organisations 15.0 3.4 

Total 84.0 17.3 

 
9. The operational boundary for external debt. 
 

This reflects a less extreme position. Although the figure can be exceeded 
without further approval, it represents an early warning monitoring device to 
ensure that the authorised limit (above) is not exceeded.  

 

 2015/16 
Limit 
£m 

2015/16 
Actual 

£m 

Short-Term 13.0 0.0 

Long Term  47.0 13.4 

Other long-term liabilities (leases) 5.0 0.5 

Total 64.0 13.9 

   

Long-term for loans to organisations 15.0 3.4 

Total  79.0 17.3 

 
Both of these actual results reflect the fact that long term rates were not 
considered low enough to borrow in anticipation of need 

 
10. Exposure to investments with fixed interest and variable interest.  
 

These limits are given as a percentage of total investments. Investments of less 
than 12 months count as variable rate.  

 

  Limits Actual  

  Max. Min. As at 
31.3.16 

Borrowing:     
longer than 1 year Fixed 100%  75% 100% 
 Variable 25% 0% 0% 

Investments:     
longer than 1 year Fixed 100% 100% 0% 
 Variable 0% 0% 0% 

 
 
 

127



 
 
11. Borrowing Repayment Profile 
 

The proportion of 2015/16 borrowing that matured in successive periods.  
 

Borrowing Upper 
limit 

Lower 
limit 

Actual 
As at 

31.3.16 

Under 12 months 90% 0% 1% 

12 months and within  
24 months 

90% 0% 1% 

24 months and within  
5 years 

90% 0% 5% 

5 years and within 10 years 91% 1% 5% 

10 years and above 100% 9% 88% 

 
12. Investment Repayment Profile 
 

Limit on the value of investments that cannot be redeemed within 364 days. 
   

 Limit 

£m 

Actual 

£m 

Limit on principal invested beyond 
year end (31 March 2016) 

33.8 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



 
 
APPENDIX E 
 
Commercial Investment Strategy Indicators 
 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 includes three indicators specific to 
the Commercial Investment Strategy (CIS); 
 

 Investment cover ratio 

 Loan to value ratio 

 Target income returns 
 
 It is at this stage too early to in the lifecycle of the CIS to report on these indicators; 
however the basis metrics are; 
 
 

 Purchase 
Cost 
£000 

Income 
(Part-Year) 

£000 

CCLA Property Shares 2,500 19,700 

Unit 3 Stonehill, Huntingdon 1,358 13,700 

   
 

129



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

Public 
Key Decision - Yes 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Title/Subject Matter: 3C Executive Summary Business Plans 

  
Meeting/Date: Cabinet – 16th June 2016 

 
Executive Portfolio: Executive Leader 

 
Report by: Corporate Director – Services 

 
Ward(s) affected: All Wards 

 

 
Executive Summary: 

 
This report is intended to present the Executive Summaries of the business plans for 
the ICT, Legal and Building Control Shared Services for the period 2016/17, as 
requested by Cabinet at its meeting on 21st April 2016. 

 
Recommendations: 

 
The Cabinet is recommended: 

 
1)          To approve the Executive Summary business plans, subject to any minor 

editorial changes which shall be delegated to the Corporate Director 
(Services) in consultation with the Executive Councillor for Strategic 
Partnerships.  

131

Agenda Item 9



 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 At the Cabinet meeting on 21st April Cabinet considered the Business plans 

for 3C shared services which had been reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny, 
endorsed by the Shared Services Joint Advisory Group, and approved by 
both Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire District Councils.  Cabinet 
requested that the report be represented to the Cabinet meeting in June and 
required a more focused form of document, without deviating from the 
overarching business principles. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 

 
2.1  A key part of the service reviews has been the development of a set of 

forward- looking business plans that set out the key priorities, objectives, 
activities and measures of success for each service.  These were presented 
to Cabinet on 21st April and have now been revised to address Cabinet’s 
comments ( Appendix 1).  The Executive Summary business plans enable the 
shared services to work to an agreed direction and deliver against an agreed 
set of objectives. 

 
2.2  Changes have been made to the documents to reflect the following comments 

from Cabinet as set out in the minutes of the 21st April meeting; in brief it was 
considered that the Business Plans were complicated to comprehend and 
inconclusive.  The documents did not appear to be typical Business Plans, but 
more a technical manual that included a project plan. It was suggested that an 
executive summary was required.  At the time, Cabinet were reminded that 
there were two other authorities within the shared service and therefore a 
compromise was required to agree a document that satisfied all three 
Councils. 

 
2.3 The main business objectives of the Shared Services have been retained in 

more streamlined and focused documents.  This report and the Executive 
Summaries at Appendix 1 are therefore now presented for approval. 

 

3. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 

 
3.1 Scrutiny considered this report at their meeting in April and endorsed the 

business plans to Cabinet at that time. Their comments were reported to the 
April Cabinet meeting. 

 
4. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN/TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 Following approval of the business plans, they will be implemented within 

each shared service and guide the direction of the service and its teams. 
 
4.2 The Head of each shared service will be responsible for the overall operation 

of that service, the delivery of the business plan and achievement of 
performance and financial targets. 

 
4.3 The business plans are evolving, live documents that will change over time 

as stronger platforms for shared management information are built and shared 
service working practices and structures are reviewed. 

 
4.4 The recommendations set out above allow any final changes to the 

Shared Service business plans to be made via delegation to the Corporate 
Directors in conjunction with the relevant Portfolio holders. 

 
 132



 

 

5. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN 

 
5.1 The recommendations relate to the Corporate objective of ‘to become 

more business-like and efficient in the way we deliver services’. 
 
6. CONSULTATION 

 
6.1 Significant consultation with staff, Unions and Staff Council took place 

during the establishment of the Shared Services. 
 
7. IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 There are no significant implications 

 
8. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED 

 
Appendix 1 – Executive Summary 3c 
Business Plans 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No background papers were relied upon in writing of this report. 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 

 
Julie Slatter, Corporate Director – Services 
Tel No: (01480) 388103 
Email:  Julie.Slatter@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133

mailto:Julie.Slatter@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BUSINESS PLAN FOR BUILDING CONTROL SHARED SERVICE 
2016/17 

 

Service Leads 

Head of Shared Service  Doug Basen (Interim) 

 
Cambridge City 

Council 
Huntingdonshire 
District Council 

South 
Cambridgeshire 
District Council 

Director Simon Payne Nigel McCurdy Jo Mills 

Lead Councillor Cllr Kevin Blencowe  
Cllr Robin Howe / 

Daryl Brown 
Cllr Robert Turner  

 

APPROVED BY Status Date 

Management Board Draft  

Shared Services Partnership Board Draft  

Joint Advisory Committee Final draft  

Cambridge City Council [Executive Councillor and Scrutiny Committee] Final  

Huntingdonshire District Council Cabinet Final  

South Cambridgeshire District Council Cabinet Final  

 
 
Version (Clearly indicate final version) Date 

V0.1 prepared by Brian O’Sullivan 26 May 2016 

V0.2 prepared by Brian O’Sullivan 07 June 2106 

 
  

135



 
 

2 
 

 
 
SECTION 1 – CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW 
 
 

 
This is the Executive Summary Business Plan for the Building Control Service, part of 3C Shared Services, for 
2016/17.  
 
A number of key objectives were agreed by the Leaders of the three Councils for the shared service 
partnership centred on increased resilience, savings, improved value for money, recruitment and retention 
benefits and staff development opportunities. 
 
In essence, the drivers for the creation of the service are: 

 savings to the three councils:  creation of a single shared service increases efficiency, provides 
better value for money and reduces the unit cost of service delivery 

 safeguarding our clients, and income generation 

 maintaining and improving service quality and transparency  

 contribute to the strategic outcomes of supporting growth and the local economy 
 
The services provided by the Shared Building Control Service are: 

 Statutory duty, to enforce the building regulations, imposed on the council under the Building Act 
1984.  

 Carry out inspection and removal of dangerous structures. 

 street naming and numbering (CCC and SCDC)  

 considerate contractor scheme (CCC)  

 construction monitoring for Planning (SCDC and SCDC)  
 
Principles guiding the service 

 improved value for customers 

 an attractive place to work 

 delivering a statutory service to ensure the safety and quality of the built environment, and to 
contribute to the creation of excellent building 

 achieving a balanced budget through increased partnership income, appropriate fee charges, and 
effective management of costs 
 

 
The diagram on the following page shows the vision and objectives and outcomes for the 3C ICT Practice. 
Key outcomes that the service aims to achieve include: 

 Value for money 

 Cost savings 

 Staff development  

 Improved more flexible service delivery,  

 Trusted provider and commissioner of the law 
 

 
 

 

136



 
 

3 
 

 
 
Vision for the Practice 
 

 
 
 
 
 

137



 
 

4 
 

 
 
Financial Overview 
 
 
Budget and Savings 

(non fee-earning a/c only) 2015/16  
Budget 

 2016/17 
Budget 

 2016/17 
Savings 

 TOTAL £338,520 £287,740 £50,780 

Proportional savings per partner council CCC  -  £22,120  (43.57%) 

HDC  - £16,170 (31.83%) 

SCDC – £12,490 (24.6%) 

 

 
 
 
Savings Identified and Confidence Rating 
 

Identified 
Savings 

Amount (£) Stage Confidence Rating of Achieving 
2016/17 savings 

Staff restructure 50,000 In Progress GREEN 

On target to achieve savings of 
£50k removed from 2016/17 
budget 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Staffing Overview 
 
Following TUPE and the creation of the new Shared Services Manager post outlined in the business case 
(July 2015), the establishment now comprises: 

- 1 Shared Service Building Control Manager 
- 4 Principal Building Control Surveyors 
- 15 Surveyors/ Senior Surveyors  
- 1 Apprentice  
- 1 construction monitoring officer (SCDC/ CCC only at present) 
- 1 Building Control Support Manager  
- 4 technical support  

 
 

138



 
 

5 
 

With issues retaining and attracting staff to the service a new recruitment and retention package for 
surveying staff has been put in place. The retention package was amended on feedback from staff (to 2 
years retention), this has been offered to all existing surveyors and is included on the current adverts for 
surveyors and for a new BC Manager. Adverts close 25/5 with interviews scheduled early June. This new 
package is the one of the key ingredients to improve retention, recruitment and hence moral. 
 
A new Interim Building Control Manager Doug Basen has been recruited with the support and 
recommendation of Local Authority Building Control. Doug will be focusing on supporting the team/ staff 
retention/ improving day to day performance.  The new Business Manager Judith Appleby has also started 
and is tasked with implementing new leaner business processes and bringing in shared ICT system and 
preparing for ISO 2015 accreditation.  
 
 
 
 

 
Achievements 
 
 

 An accommodation review has been carried out with the service now operating from 2 sites 
(Cambridge and Huntingdon) as opposed to 3 sites. 
 

 A review of client demand has also led to a negotiated increase in budgetary contributions to the 
Practice form partner councils. 

 

 Senior management review completed  

 The service has continued to deliver under difficult circumstances (due to recruitment issues) and 
ensure delivery of service. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

139



 
 

6 
 

SECTION TWO – OPERATIONAL PLAN 2016/17 
This Section sets out the “Business as Usual” priorities and the activities that 3C Shared Building Control service will undertake to deliver value-
adding services to customers.  

 Priorities for the 
service 

State where these 
priorities are 

outlined  
(i.e. Corporate 

plans, ICT 
strategy) 

Actions that will deliver the 
priority 

Outputs from the activity Outcomes from the activity Lead 
Officer 

1 Deliver core BC services 
to customers – 
achieving KPIs for time 
and quality  
 

 -recruit manager and to existing 
surveyor vacancies  
- provide clear leadership, 
building focus on operational 
priorities 
- business review to ensure 
capacity focussed on priority 
areas  

- manager in post 
- principals supported to lead key 
service areas 
- full complement of staff 
- operating procedure in place to 
ensure work distribution/ 
emergency cover/ etc  

Functioning service able to 
deliver core service and with 
capacity to build business 
partnerships that require 
enhanced levels of service 
delivery   

 

2 Make services more 
transparent for 
customers  
 

 -review and harmonise fees 
-develop and implement new, 
common templates  
- review web-based access 
- implement single point of billing 

- single fee schedule  
- common letters/ templates/ 
comms 
- improved on line access 
- single billing across the area 
with all payments direct to one LA 

- more coherent service, 
easier for customers to access  
- increased efficiency – 
reduced staff time wasted so 
allowing more focus on real 
business development  

 

3 Make services more 
efficient  
 

SS business case  - full BPR and implement 
streamlined processes and 
common templates  
- OD work to build single team 
culture 

   

4 Full review of staffing  
 

SS Business case  - review staffing structure once 
new manager is in place  

- modern, staffing structure that 
provides leadership and supports 
career development 

- existing staff concerns about 
TUPE/ T&Cs addressed 
- enhanced ability to recruit in 
future 
- trainees in post – succession 
planning  

 

140



 
 

7 
 

 
SECTION 3: 2016/17 SERVICE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 
 

 
Service Objective and Outcome  
 

 
Lead Officer 

 
Achieve ISO recognition for the whole 3C BC service 
 
- Supports service ability to win work through external tendering – a requirement in some tenders 
- Efficient processes will support “business as usual” activities and will also support access to the business information/ 

analysis needed for further business development 
 

Interim Head of Service 

 
Single, integrated planning system in use by planning, growth and BC (and potentially other services) across the three 
Councils. 

 
- Improved customer experience through better customer interface into IT 
- More efficient service – reduced surveyor time spent on administrative tasks 
- Improved business data to allow market analysis and business development 

 

 
 
 

Interim Head of Service 

 
Move to a commercial approach to support business growth  
 
- Carry out detailed business analysis to understand current market share  
- Identify realistic growth (or stabilisation) targets in key market sectors  
- Business is able to stabilise and potentially to grow  
- Staff understand business priorities and are able to contribute more to business development   

 
 

 
 
 

Interim Head of Service 

141



 
 

8 
 

 
SECTION 4 – KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)  

 

Priority Performance Measures  
 

 Next Steps 

 
1 
 

Cycle time 

 – to provide insights into the 
timeliness of delivering legal services 

Measure the cycle time for legal handling of: 
- New applications 
- Registering applications 
- Building advice 

 Assess current position 

 Agree new SLA with the 3C Management 
Board 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 

2 Increase Market Share 

  

 

Measure the services market share position in terms 

of: 

- Residential share 
- Commercial share 

 Assess current market position 

 Identify target markets going forward 

 Agree with 3C Management Board 

 Report to Shared Service Joint Group an 
position six monthly 

3 Customer Satisfaction 
 
 
 

Measure customer satisfaction in terms of: 
- Service (quality, design, consistency & 

processability) 
- Delivery (on time and speed) 
- Staff and service (availability, knowledge and 

responsiveness)  

 Design survey to reflect measurable items 

 Agree with 3C Management Board 

 Use ‘Monkey Survey’ to carryout survey 
with client departments yearly 

 Analyse data to track performance   
 

4 Cost effectiveness 
 
 – to reflect the quality of financial 
management 

Measure the financial performance against current 
budget and delivery of any additional savings 
 

 Track current budget performance 
monthly 

 Monitor income generation performance 
against budget. 

 Identify and develop further savings and 
efficiencies 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 
 

142



 
 

1 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BUSINESS PLAN FOR ICT SHARED SERVICE 
2016/17 

 

Service Leads 

Head of Shared Service  Mark Davies (Interim) 

 
Cambridge City 

Council 
Huntingdonshire 
District Council 

South 
Cambridgeshire 
District Council 

Director Ray Ward Julie Slatter Alex Colyer 

Lead Councillor Cllr Lewis Herbert 
Cllr Robin Howe / 

Darryl Brown 
Cllr Mick Martin 

 

APPROVED BY Status Date 

Management Board Draft  

Shared Services Partnership Board Draft  

Joint Advisory Committee Final draft  

Cambridge City Council [Executive Councillor and Scrutiny Committee] Final  

Huntingdonshire District Council Cabinet Final  

South Cambridgeshire District Council Cabinet Final  

 
 
Version (Clearly indicate final version) Date 

V0.1 prepared by Julie Slatter 19 May 2016 

V0.2 prepared by Brian O’Sullivan 26 May 2016 

V0.3 prepared by Brian o’Sullivan 7 June 2016 

 
  

143



 
 

2 
 

 
SECTION 1 – CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW 
 

 
This is the Executive Summary Business Plan for the ICT Service, part of 3C Shared Services, for 2016/17.  
 
A number of key objectives were agreed by the Leaders of the three Councils for the shared service 
partnership centred on increased resilience, savings, improved value for money, recruitment and retention 
benefits and staff development opportunities. 
 
In essence, the drivers for the creation of the ICT Shared Service are: 

 Savings to the three councils:  creation of a single shared service increases efficiency, provides 
better value for money and reduces the unit cost of service delivery 

 Service resilience:  fewer single points of failure and increased scale enables increased investment 
in robust, flexible and resilient infrastructure, thus reducing probability and impact of service 
outages 

 Collaborative innovation:  increased scale enables investment in specialist roles and in new 
infrastructure and software to support service transformation and an increased focus on digital 
service delivery. 

 
The services provided by 3C are defined in a Service Catalogue. This is the primary source of information 
about the services provided by the ICT Shared Service and includes a description of the service and 
performance measures for each.   
 
The Technology Roadmap is the other important document describing service capability.  It describes the 
planned changes / additions / modifications to service delivery which are scheduled over the coming weeks 
and months.  It includes the relative priorities of these changes, together with a mapping of which of 
partner(s) wish these change(s).  Together, the Service Catalogue and Technology Roadmap provide a 
complete and comprehensive description of the services that will be provided by the 3C ICT Shared Service. 
 
Principles guiding the service 

 Get the basics right first 

 Service delivery 

 Cost optimisation 

 Rationalisation of capabilities from ICT in CCC, HDC, SCD 

 Evolution to common service delivery model for the three partners 

 Ensure savings delivered whilst enabling service evolution 

 Digital first 

 Enable the Councils to use ICT effectively to transform their services 
 
The diagram on the following page shows the vision and objectives and outcomes for the 3C ICT Shared 
Service. Key outcomes that the service aims to achieve include: 

 Value for money,  

 Cost savings,  

 Improved more flexible service delivery,  

 Better data and a trusted and valued service. 

 
 
 

144



 
 

3 
 

 

Vision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
   

O
ut

co
m

es

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
ts

   
   

Pr
in

ci
pl

es

   
   

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
sV

is
io

n 
– 

W
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

nd
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 IT
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

o 
ou

r 
cu

st
om

er
s,

 e
na

bl
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 o
ur

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 t
he

ir
 b

us
in

es
s 

de
liv

er
y

Fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

H
om

e 
W

or
ki

ng

Re
m

ot
e 

W
or

ki
ng

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
fit

 fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

ag
ile

 
w

eb
si

te

Se
lf 

se
rv

ic
e

In
te

gr
at

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s

W
or

ks
 o

n 
PC

, T
ab

le
t 

&
 M

ob
ile

s

24
*7

 s
el

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

cu
st

om
er

s

A
llo

w
 fo

cu
s 

on
 h

ar
d 

to
 r

ea
ch

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

fo
r  
‘t

ra
di

tio
na

l’ 
 

cu
st

om
er

 s
er

vi
ce

Vi
rt

ua
lis

ed
 D

es
kt

op
s

M
ob

ile
 d

ev
ic

es

O
36

5

Ly
nc

Jo
in

ed
 u

p 
ne

tw
or

ks

Be
tt

er
 u

se
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n

G
re

at
er

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

st
af

f

D
el

iv
er

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 
of

 s
ys

te
m

 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y

Pu
t o

ur
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
fir

st

Cu
st

om
er

 c
ul

tu
re

 +
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

=

G
et

 it
 r

ig
ht

 1
st

 t
im

e

O
pe

n 
th

e 
do

or
 fo

r 
ot

he
rs

 to
 fo

llo
w

Sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n
A

llo
w

 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 

w
or

k 
fle

xi
bl

y

Kn
ow

 w
he

re
 w

e 
ar

e 
go

in
g 

- h
av

e 
a 

ro
ad

m
ap

A
ut

om
at

e 
w

he
n 

it 
st

ac
ks

 u
p

M
an

ag
e 

ou
r 

su
pp

lie
rs

Su
pp

or
t a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
p 

ou
r 

IT
 

sy
st

em
s

En
ab

le
 o

th
er

s 
to

 
ch

an
ge

St
an

da
rd

is
e 

sy
st

em
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ba

rr
ie

rs

SM
A

RT
 B

en
ef

its
 –

Th
e 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

w
e 

ca
n 

ac
hi

ev
e

Cl
ou

d 
fir

st

Li
m

it 
si

ng
le

 p
oi

nt
s 

of
 fa

ilu
re

 –
 b

ot
h 

pe
op

le
 &

 s
ys

te
m

s

Co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 P
SN

Le
ad

 o
n 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t,

 F
oI

 
an

d 
da

ta
 s

ec
ur

ity

W
eb

si
te

 r
el

au
nc

h

Co
nt

en
t c

le
an

si
ng

Se
rv

ic
es

 tr
us

t t
he

 IT
 

– 
an

d 
kn

ow
 t

he
y 

ca
n 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
cu

st
om

er
s

Cu
st

om
er

 d
at

a 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 s
af

e 
– 

an
d 

w
e 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 
la

w

W
e 

kn
ow

 w
e 

ge
t 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 

fr
om

 o
ur

 s
ys

te
m

s

St
af

f i
n 

th
e 

te
am

 
en

jo
y 

th
ei

r w
or

k 
an

d 
ar

e 
va

lu
ed

Cu
st

om
er

s 
re

sp
ec

t 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

w
ha

t t
he

 
te

am
 s

up
pl

ie
s

Be
tt

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

co
st

 s
av

in
gs

 c
an

 b
e 

en
ab

le
d 

by
 IT

Li
st

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

 
st

an
da

rd
s

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ro
ad

m
ap

A
nn

ua
l P

SN
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 
– 

a 
si

ng
le

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

Jo
in

 u
p 

In
f M

gt
 

Te
am

s

Bu
ild

 a
 s

ys
te

m
 

ro
ad

m
ap

Ex
am

in
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
pr

oc
es

s 
au

to
m

at
io

n

Su
pp

lie
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ki
lls

Sh
ar

ed
 H

el
pD

es
k

Co
m

m
on

 c
us

to
m

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s

Bu
ild

in
g 

Co
nt

ro
l

Le
ga

l

Fr
au

d

145



 
 

4 
 

 
Financial Overview 

 
Budget and Savings 

(net capital and CCC Northgate contract) 2015/16  
Budget 

 2016/17 
Budget 

 2016/17 
Savings 

 TOTAL £5,914,893 £5,027,659 £887,234 

Proportional savings per partner council CCC  - £363,763 (41%) 

HDC  - £317,000 (35.7%) 

SCDC – £206,470 (23.3%) 

Savings deducted from the budget for 17/18 

 
 
Savings Identified and Confidence Rating 
 

Service Identified Savings Amount 
(£) 

Stage 
(Delivered/In 
Progress/Work 
Required) 

Confidence 
Rating of 
Achieving 
2016/17 savings 

ICT Staff restructure £300k In progress GREEN 
The majority of the 
restructure has been 
successfully 
delivered. Currently 
working on filling 
vacancies. 

 Rationalisation of 
contracts, sharing of 
licencing costs 

£200k In progress £50k already 
achieved as savings, 
further savings will 
appear as contracts 
are renewed and 
revised throughout 
the year. 

 Server room 
consolidation 

£100k 
approx 

In progress RFQ is imminently 
being released. Once 
exact costs of the 
consolidation are 
known the savings 
can be verified. 

 Manager 15% savings 
target 

15% In progress PDR targets are 
being set during June 
and all will have a 
savings target to 
achieve for their 
team. 

 

 

146



 
 

5 
 

ICT Organisational Structure 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Achievements in 2015/16 
 
The ICT Shared Service came into being on 1 October 2015 since then the 3C shared service has delivered:   
 

 Implementation of the new structure enabling savings of £. 

 Specific projects are underway to tackle key elements of the technology roadmap.  These include: 
o Server room rationalisation 
o Rationalisation of software license / non-staff costs 
o Improved enablement of remote / flexible working 
o Service desk rationalisation 

 Over 30 staff have received training in Agile Methodology, with HDC looking to amend their existing 
delivery model to embrace Agile as a viable alternate delivery methodology 

 
 

 

147



 
 

6 
 

Implementation plan 
 
The diagram below sets out the initial implementation plan for the shared service in 2016/17 and reflects 
the Agile methodology that has been implemented in the service. 
 

 
 
 
  

 

Sprint 1 Sprint 2 Sprint 3
11th April 

2016
6th May 

2016
9th May 

2016
3rd June 

2016
6th June 

2016
1st July 
2016

Consultation and dynamic development

PublishedTechnical Roadmap
Shared

Nigel Brown

Service Catalogue All managers

Defined and agreed
3C Prospect Emma Alterton

Communication Plan Dave Lawrence

Server Room Consolidation Alex YoungAward Contract
RFQ Issued

Single Service Desk
Alex Young 

deployment, Lucy 
Brown ongoing

Go live planning
Pilot

Service Desk Standardisation Lucy BrownStandardisation of procedures, policies and ways of working

Asset Management Lucy BrownInvestigation
Planning

People in vacant posts/finalisation of 
organisation3C Organisation Dave LawrenceImplementation

Flexible Working Strategy Nigel BrownPublished
Defined and agreed

Application Rationalisation Nigel BrownPlanning
List of candidate applications

Budget Management Matt HudsonAlign budget across 3C Man.
Team, monitoring & reporting

Planning and implementation

Compliance and Standards Matt Hudson
Implementation

Course identified and draft plan
Training Plan Nick Burton

Implementation

Reviewed
Published and implemented

Maturity Model Dave Lawrence

Version 1.6
11/05/16

Major Incident Management 
Process

Lucy Brown

Implementation Plan

S3S2S1

Investigation and baselining

Published

Investigation and baseling

Investigation and baselining
Process documented and circulated

Published

Workflow in SharePoint

Reviewed

Reviewed

Launch

Reviewed

Commence rationalisation

Maturity model developed

Implemented

S0

ü 

ü 

D

NANANAü 

NAü 

ü 

NAN/A

NAN/A

NAü 

NAü 

NAN/A

ü 

NAD

N/A

NAü 

N/A

Planning for deployment

D = De-scoped from 
Sprint. Moved to next 

Sprint

ü 

ü 

ü 

ü 

ü 

ü 

ü 

148



 
 

7 
 

SECTION TWO – OPERATIONAL PLAN 2016/17 
 
Summary “Business as Usual” priorities and the activities that 3C Shared ICT Services will undertake to deliver value-adding services to customers.  
 

 Priorities for the service Outputs from the 
activity 

Outcomes from the activity 

1 Deliver high standard of 
system availability 

Service Catalogue 
 
 
Technology and 
Service roadmaps 

Services across the Partner Authorities understand and have confidence in the functions being 
delivered 
 
Builds trust in the ICT Shared Service to deliver their services and maintain high performing ICT, 
thus allowing the Partner Authorities to focus on their own customers  

2 Support and develop our IT 
systems  and have a clear 
understand of the 
technological direction for 
the future 
 

Clearer simpler 
processes  
A single set of 
invoices and 
contracts to 
administer. 

The Partner Authorities are confident that we are getting value for money from the ICT 
investment 

3 Rationalisation and 
standardisation of 
processes and systems 

Standard 
applications 
 
Central access, use 
and 
administration 

These shared services deliver a more efficient function and better value for money.  

4 Allow people to work 
flexibly 

Flexible Working 
 
Home working 
 
Remote Working 

Allow flexible working, staff are able to have a better work life balance with home or remote 
working.  
 
Better use of accommodation as staff are able to utilise different buildings or venues in a more 
flexible manner 

 

 

149



 
 

8 
 

 
 
SECTION 3: 2016/17 SUMMARY OF SERVICE DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES 
 
 

Service Ref No: Service Objective and Outcome  Lead Officer 

SD1 Allow staff to work flexibility from home and across the 3 partner Authorities 
Development Manager/ 
Technical Architect 

SD2 Implementation of a single Financial Management System Development Manager 

SD3 Consolidation of the existing data centres and replacement of the SAN storage system. 
Technical Architect/ 
Network/Infrastructure 
Manager 

 

150



 
 

9 
 

SECTION 4 – KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs) 
 

 
 

Priority Performance Measures  
 

 Next Steps 

 
1 
 

Cycle time 

 – to provide insights into the 
timeliness of delivering ICT services 

Measure the cycle time for ICT handling of: 
- New starter equipment 
- PC and hardware replacement 
- Web availability 
- Network availability (uptime) 

 Assess current position 

 Agree new SLA with the 3C Management 
Board 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 

2 Customer Satisfaction 

 – to assess client department 
satisfaction rating on services 

 

Measure customer satisfaction in terms of: 
 

- Overall service (quality, design, consistency & 
processability) 

- Delivery (on time and speed) 
- Staff and service (availability, knowledge and 

responsiveness)  

 Design survey to reflect measurable items 

 Agree with 3C Management Board 

 Use ‘Survey Monkey’ to carryout survey 
with client departments yearly 

 Analyse data to track performance   
 

3 Service Desk 
 
 – to assess the outputs delivered by 
the ICT service desks 
 

Measure performance in relation to: 
 

- Performance % of calls answered within 20 
seconds 

- Handling of priority calls 
- Staff and service (availability, knowledge and 

responsiveness)  
 

 Assess current position  

 Agree with SLA with 3C Management 
Board 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 

 

4 Technology Roadmap 
 
 – to track the delivery of the 
technology roadmap 

Measure the development and delivery of the 
technology roadmap 
 

 Complete technology roadmap 

 Agree with 3C Management Board 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 

 

151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BUSINESS PLAN FOR LEGAL (THE PRACTICE) SHARED SERVICE 
2016/17 

 

Service Leads 

Head of Shared Service  Maria Memoli (Interim) 

 
Cambridge City 

Council 
Huntingdonshire 
District Council 

South 
Cambridgeshire 
District Council 

Director Ray Ward Julie Slatter Alex Colyer 

Lead Councillor Cllr Lewis Herbert 
Cllr Robin Howe / 

Darryl Brown 
Cllr Mick Martin 

 

APPROVED BY Status Date 

Management Board Draft  

Shared Services Partnership Board Draft  

Joint Advisory Committee Final draft  

Cambridge City Council [Executive Councillor and Scrutiny Committee] Final  

Huntingdonshire District Council Cabinet Final  

South Cambridgeshire District Council Cabinet Final  

 
 
Version (Clearly indicate final version) Date 

V0.1 prepared by Brian O’Sullivan 26 May 2016 

V0.2 prepared by Brian O’Sullivan 07 June 2016 

 
  

153



 
 

2 
 

 
 
SECTION 1 – CONTEXT AND OVERVIEW 
 
 

 
This is the Executive Summary Business Plan for the Legal Service, part of 3C Shared Services, for 2016/17.  
 
A number of key objectives were agreed by the Leaders of the three Councils for the shared service 
partnership centred on increased resilience, savings, improved value for money, recruitment and retention 
benefits and staff development opportunities. 
 
In essence, the drivers for the creation of the Practice are: 

 savings to the three councils:  creation of a single shared service increases efficiency, provides 
better value for money and reduces the unit cost of service delivery 

 revenue generation: opportunity to generate additional income, reduce external spend and derive 
income from legal costs incurred or recovered in a legal activity     

 collaborative innovation:  increased scale enables investment in specialist roles which individually 
are not viable in the long-term 

 
The services provided by the Practice are defined in the Target Operating Model and Operational Plan. 
These are the primary source of information about the services provided by the Practice and include a 
description of the service and performance measures for each.   
 
Principles guiding the service 

 Service delivery 

 Cost optimisation 

 Rationalisation of capabilities  

 Work adds value to client departments 
 

 
The diagram on the following page shows the vision and objectives and outcomes for the 3C ICT Practice. 
Key outcomes that the service aims to achieve include: 

 Value for money 

 Cost savings 

 Staff development  

 Improved more flexible service delivery,  

 Trusted provider and commissioner of the law 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

154



 
 

3 
 

 
 
 
Vision for the Practice 
 
 

 

 
 
 

155



 
 

4 
 

 
 
Financial Overview 
 
 
Budget and Savings 
 

(net income & excluding recharges and 
overheads) 

2015/16  
Budget 

 2016/17 
Budget 

 2016/17 
Savings 

 TOTAL £1,193,360 £1,014,360 £179,000 

Proportional savings per partner council CCC  - £102,403 (57.21%) 

HDC  - £25,146 (14.05%) 

SCDC - £51,456 (28.74%) 

 

 
 
Savings Identified and Confidence Rating 
 

Identified 
Savings 

Amount (£) Stage Confidence Rating of Achieving 
2016/17 savings 

Staff restructure 105,000 In Progress GREEN 

On target to achieve savings of 
£179k removed from 2016/17 
budget 

Rationalising 
publications 

40,000 Delivered 

Reduction in 
external spend 

20,000 Work Required 

Supplies and 
Services 

20,000 In Progress 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Staffing Overview 
 

 A review of the Senior Management has been carried out with a Head of Practice and 5 Principal 
Lawyers agreed. The permanent Head of Practice is due to commence employment in August 2016 
and 3 of the Principal Lawyers post have been recruited with the remaining 2 being advertised 
externally. 

 A review of the remaining staff in underway and due to be consulted on in June. 

 An accommodation review has been carried out and is due to be consulted on in early June. 
 
 
 

156



 
 

5 
 

 
Achievements 

 The Practice is on track to deliver within budget for 2016/17 which is reduced by £179k from 
2015/16 budget. Monthly meetings are been held to monitor the budget. 
 

 A review of client demand has also led to a negotiated increase in budgetary contributions to the 
Practice form partner councils. 

 

 Senior management review completed and staff review on track for completion by September 
2016. 
 

 There is evidence of the flexible use of legal resources across the three Councils. The formal 
introduction of revised structures and working arrangements will build on and accelerate this  

 

 The Practice now operates a uniform case management and time recording system, so time can be 
captured by all fee-earners.  Further work is required to maximise the use of the system. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

157



 
 

6 
 

 
SECTION TWO – OPERATIONAL PLAN 2016/17 
This Section sets out the “Business as Usual” priorities and the activities that 3C Shared Legal Services will undertake to deliver value-adding services 
to customers.  

 Priorities for the service State where these priorities 
are outlined  

(i.e. Corporate plans, ICT 
strategy) 

Actions that will 
deliver the priority 

Outputs from the 
activity 

Outcomes from the activity Lead 
Officer 

1 Integrate varying policies 
and procedures of the 
three Councils into single 
policies and procedures 
e.g. the recording and 
collection of 
disbursements, the 
payment of fees  
 
Integrate a single fees 
charging mechanism and 
charge out rate for the fee 
earners 

Identified from the workshops 
- work in progress 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Business plan and client 
departments 

Investigation into the 
varying policies and 
procedures to unite 
these and form into 
single policies and 
procedures 
 

Single policy and 
procedure where 
appropriate 
Make a comparison of 
fees and charges and 
look at updating these 
to have a single fees 
and charges model 
 
Compare costs 
allowed by the courts 

Uniform policy where appropriate. 
Uniform procedures for handling 
legal matters 
Uniform fees and charges 
Uniform system for payment to 
bodies 
 
 
Uniform charge – out rates 

MM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Review what work is 
outsourced at the moment 
and make and review if it 
could be carried out  in-
house where possible 
 

Initial business case agreed 
at July 2015 S&R Committee 

Analysis of external 
spend and review of 
capability and 
capacity within the 
Practice 
 

Reduce the legal 
spend of the practice 

A reduction in the cost of out-
sourced work 
 
More work being carried out in-
house 

MM 

3 An interim solution to the 
work force situation  

Business Plan Procure a third party 
supplier with call off 
arrangements. Carry 
out a mini 
procurement 
exercise 
 

Appointment of a third 
party supplier to call 
upon as and when to 
plug the gaps  

The client departments to have an 
efficient and  professional service 
during the interim  

MM 

 

158



 
 

7 
 

SECTION 3: 2016/17 SERVICE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
 
 
Service Objective and Outcome  
 

 
Lead Officer 

 
Better integration of teams 
 
- Integrating the historic teams to become one  
- Easier to influence historical cultural differences 
- More clarity for client services on points of contact 

 

Interim Head of Practice 

 
Alignment with CCC and wider shared service accommodation strategies 
 
- Better use of accommodation through the 3 Councils estates 
- Increased use of hot desking 
- Focus on remote and home working 

 

Interim Head of Practice 

 
Increased flexibility for the Practice staff 
 
- Ability to work from various locations 
- Ability to work from home 
- Hubs in place near local courts 

 
 

Interim Head of Practice 

 
 
 

159



 
 

8 
 

SECTION 4 – KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)  

 

Priority Performance Measures  
 

 Next Steps 

 
1 
 

Cycle time 

 – to provide insights into the 
timeliness of delivering legal services 

 

Measure the cycle time for legal handling of: 
 

- Leases 
- Contracts 
- Planning advice 
- Monitoring Officer queries 

 Use IKEN to identify cycle time’s to-date. 

 Agree new SLA with the 3C Management 
Board 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 

2 Customer Satisfaction 

 – to assess client department 
satisfaction rating on services 

 

Measure customer satisfaction in terms of: 
 

- Service (quality, design, consistency & 
processability) 

- Delivery (on time and speed) 
- Staff and service (availability, knowledge and 

responsiveness)  

 Design survey to reflect measurable items 

 Agree with 3C Management Board 

 Use ‘Monkey Survey’ to carryout survey 
with client departments yearly 

 Analyse data to track performance   
 

3 Staff productivity 
 
 – to assess the outputs delivered by 
legal personnel 
 

Measure the chargeable hours of all staff as a 
percentage of total hours. 

 Assess current position (acknowledging 
that all staff have just started using IKEN 
for time recording) 

 Mandate the use of time recording 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly  on performance 

4 Cost effectiveness 
 
 – to reflect the quality of financial 
management  

Measure the financial performance against current 
budget and delivery of any additional savings 
 

 Track current budget performance 
monthly 

 Monitor all external legal spend and the 
business case for it 

 Identify and develop further savings and 
efficiencies 

 Report to the Shared Service Joint Group 
six monthly on performance 
 

160



 

Public 
Key Decision - Yes 

 

 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Title/Subject Matter: Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Devolution Deal 
 
Meeting/Date: Cabinet – 16 June 2016 
  
Executive Portfolio: Executive Leader 
 
Report by: Managing Director 
 
Ward(s) affected: All  
 

 
Executive Summary:  

 
 
The Leaders of 23 Councils and 2 Local Enterprise Partnerships have been in 
discussions with Government over a devolution deal for Cambridgeshire, 
Peterborough, Norfolk and Suffolk.  The results of these discussions are now ready 
to be considered by all parties.  Although the Council’s Constitution technically allows 
Cabinet to make the decision on whether to be part of a devolution deal, this short 
report sets out the reasons why Cabinet are progressing escalation of the debate 
and decision to Full Council. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That a report be presented to a special meeting of Full Council on 29 June to 
consider devolution proposals so far as they relate to Huntingdonshire.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

161

Agenda Item 10



1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report clarifies that Cabinet intends not to exercise its executive powers to 

determine the Council’s position on a devolution deal. 
 
2. WHY IS THIS REPORT NECESSARY/BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Discussion have been ongoing now across the three counties of 

Cambridgeshire, Norfolk and Suffolk and the unitary council of Peterborough to 
agree a devolution deal with Government, as trailed in the Chancellor’s Autumn 
Statement. 
 

2.2 Deal documents are now emerging, and each organisation is required to 
determine its own position on the proposals before final sign-off by Government.  
The Governments prescribed timescale for doing so is 4 July 2016. Once that is 
resolved it is intended that consultation begins on governance during July and 
August so as to allow the legislative cycle to begin in October such that the 
elections in May 2017 can accommodate any necessary changes to 
governance. 

 
3. PROPOSALS AND REASONING 
 
 Although Cabinet have the authority to determine the Council’s position on 

these issues, there are compelling reasons to put this issue to a meeting of Full 
Council: 

 

 commitment to a deal will necessarily require consultation with the public on 
changes to governance in the area by introducing an Elected Mayor; 

 there are issues to reflect on in terms of a geography for a potential deal; 

 there may be issues of local sensitivity that need reflecting on in either this 
or any future deals; 

 both the current and future deals will extend the transfer of powers and 
resources which may lead to the redesign of public services; and 

 the assessment of the likely impact of a devolution deal on Huntingdonshire 
is one which is felt should be made in the inclusive environment of Full 
Council. 

 
4. KEY IMPACTS / RISKS 
 
4.1 Referring this item to Full Council allows for full and open involvement of all 

Councillors.  Given the potential significance of the issue, a special meeting of 
Council is being convened so as to avoid the risk of a crowded agenda limiting 
debate on this one item. 

 
5. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND / OR 

CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
5.1 All strands of the Corporate Plan are served directly or indirectly by the 

proposals around devolution and links will be fully articulated in the report to 
Council. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 Referral of this matter to Full Council is permitted in the Council’s Constitution. 
 

 
 

162



CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Jo Lancaster, Managing Director 
Tel No: 01480 388001 
Email: joanne.lancaster@huntingdonshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

163

mailto:joanne.lancaster@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 REVIEW OF THE OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE OF ORPHAN SITES
	4 RISK MANAGEMENT
	Cabinet 160616_Risk register_v5
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	Appendix 3
	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v7
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	Risk_OS June_Cabinet_July_2016
	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v6
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	Risk_OS June_Cabinet July 2016
	Pages from Binde3
	Binder2
	Binder1
	Risk_OS June_Cabinet July 2016
	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v3
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	Standard risk register IR - Corporate at 26052016
	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v3 - Copy
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER



	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v5_App 5 only
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER



	Cabinet 210716_Risk register_v4
	The Risk Management Strategy requires the Cabinet to consider each of the very high or ‘red’ residual risks that exceed their risk appetite levels, and to decide whether they should be further mitigated by cost-effective and affordable actions. This r...
	1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND
	2.1 In line with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, a risk register has been developed that holds details of the significant risks faced by the Council. Details of the progress made in identifying and managing risks was reported regularly to the ...

	3. ANALYSIS
	4. COMMENTS OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL
	5. KEY IMPACTS
	6. WHAT ACTIONS WILL BE TAKEN
	7. LINK TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND CORPORATE OBJECTIVES
	8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
	9 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED DECISIONS
	10. LIST OF APPENDICES INCLUDED
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER







	5 HUNTINGDONSHIRE LOCAL PLAN TO 2036 QUARTERLY UPDATE AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING UPDATE
	6 INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT, 2015/16 QUARTER 4 (INCLUDING THE PROVISIONAL OUTTURN FOR 2015/16)
	7 SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP
	8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16
	9 3C EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BUSINESS PLANS
	3C Executive Summary business plans Appendix Building Control
	3C Executive Summary business plans Appendix ICT
	3C Executive Summary business plans Appendix Legal Services

	10 CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH DEVOLUTION DEAL



